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INTERNATIONAL

g p I G.P. Rajbahak & Co. deiémbﬁ

AUDITOR'S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHIKHAR INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (referred
as ‘Company’ hereafter), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16,
2019), the Statement of Profit or Loss, the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended along with notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position
of the company as at Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and the Companies Act,
2063.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of Financial Statements of current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Depending on the facts and circumstances of the company and the audit, we have determined that there are
no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Management’s Responsibilities for those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement in accordance with
NFRSs, and for such internal controls as management determines necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or has not
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible fg &5 arvg!

Narayanchaur, Sama Marga, Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal, t: +977-1-4415682, 4415823, e: info@gpr.com.np, w: www.gpr.com.np




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement whether caused due to fraud or error, and to issue auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can be arising
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Reporting on Requirements of Companies Act 2063, Insurance Act 2049 and Other Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with reporting responsibilities under
Companies Act 2063, Insurance Act 2049 and other regulatory requirements: -

We have obtained all the information and the explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company

The Statement of Financial Position, the statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and from our examination
of the books of accounts of the Company, we have not come across the cases where the Board of Directors
or any member thereof or any employee of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or
caused loss or damage to the Company or misappropriated the funds of the Company.

We did not obtain any information indicating misstatements in preparation of financial statements.

To the best of our knowledge, Company has maintained Insurance Fund, and other required reserves in line
with Insurance Board’s Directive.

We did not obtain any information indicating engagement of the company in activities other than insurance
business.

We did not obtain any information indicating company’s acts against interest of insured.

We did not obtain any information indicating issuance of insurance policy other than prescribed in Insurance
Board’s Directives by the company

Liabilities undertaken by the company is found to be sufficient to recover from assets held by the company
The internal control system implemented by the company is found to be effective.

The business of the company was conducted within its authority.

CA. Gopal P. Rajbahak
Senior Partner

G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accounts

Date: 05/06/2077

Place: Kathmandu

UDIN: 200922CA00004ljerP




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

As at As at
S.N.| Particulars Annexure | July 16,2019 July 16, 2018
Assets
1| Property, plant and equipment 1 606,596,726 563,378,664
2| Intangible assets 2 892,872 1,985,835
3| Investment property 3 - -
4| Investment in Associates 4 303,858,831 191,342,173
5| Deferred Tax Assets 5 42,956,516 67,299,736
6| Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 6 2,512,262,060 | 2,228,431,006
7 | Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 7 217,512,750 143,169,506
8| Financial Assets at Fair Value Through OCI 8 - -
9| OtherAssets 9 643,940,234 744,151,599
10| Reinsurance Receivables 10 950,531,476 | 1,024,463,885
11| Cash and Cash Equivalent 1" 399,364,174 361,248,373
12 | Paid up capital 12 1,057,310,600 | 1,057,310,600
13| Share Premium - -
14| Insurance Fund 1,057,310,600 828,819,011
15| Catastrophic Reserve 91,825,940 73,390,049
16 | Deferred Tax reserve 42,956,516 67,299,737
17| Regulatory Reserve 13 - 35,084,172
18| Other Reserve 14 460,535,857 220,644,251
Total Equity (B) 2,709,939,514 | 2,282,547,821
Liabilities
19| Insurance Contract Liabilities 15 1,185,511,895 | 1,357,885,026
20| Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
21| Reinsurance Contract Payables 16 1,004,140,576 | 1,047,813,863
22 | Employee Benefits 17 14,663,541 21,170,126
23| Other Liabilities 18 763,660,111 616,053,940
Total Liabilities [C] 2,967,976,123 | 3,042,922,955
Total Equity and Liabilities(B+C) 5,677,915,636 | 5,325,470,776

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Shrujana Shrestha Rajendra Prasad Shrestha CA. Gopal P. Rajbahak
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director Chairman Senior Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Siddhiman Basnyat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Independent Director

Date: 05/06/2077
Kathmandu, Nepal

Shikhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Year ended Year ended
S.N.| Particulars Annexure | July 16,2019 | July 16, 2018
1| Gross Written remium 20 3,434,866,030 3,336,777,487
Less: Premium Ceded 2,148,676,483 1,744,798,226
Net Written Premium 1,286,189,547 1,591,979,261
3| Reinsurance Commission Income 535,054,567 355,385,443
4 | Insurance Service Fee Recovery from Reinsurers 21,486,765 17,447,982
Other Revenue
51| Income From Investment 21 278,568,701 213,600,151
6| Impairment charges on Available for sales on Financial Instruments
7| Other Income (Loss) 22 11,940,387 547,319
Total Revenue 2,133,239,967 2,178,960,156
8| Gross Benefits and Claims paid 23 2,306,946,336 1,865,543,101
Less: Claim recovery from Reinsurers (1,179,990,798) (950,783,369)
Net Changes in claim provision (1,912,271) 9,077,246
Total claim paid 1,125,043,268 923,836,978
9| Fair Value Gains and Loss 19,745,282 (22,015,701)
10 | Fair Value of Investment Transferred - -
Total Fair Value Gain/(Loss) 19,745,282 (22,015,701)
Benefits, Losses and Expenses
11| Acquisition Cost 24 34,198,006 30,283,336
12| Net Change in Reserve for Unearned Premium 15 (170,460,860) 97,267,844
12| Management Expenses 25 462,518,432 345,728,617
14| Insurance Service Fee 34,348,660 33,367,775
15| Other expenses 26 4,193,579 -
16 | Depreciation and Amortisation 1 19,650,382 16,181,243
Total Expenses 384,448,199 522,828,815
Profit/(Loss) from operation 643,493,781 710,278,663
17 | Financial cost 11,841,599 6,933,127
18 | Share in Profit/(loss) of associates 23,611,557 5,378,604
Profit/(Loss) before taxation and Bonus 655,263,739 708,724,140
19 | Staff Bonus 64,338,027 58,133,519
20| Income tax 188,351,408 195,012,699
Current tax 174,702,557 193,675,985
Previous Year Tax - 791,082
Deffered Tax Expesne(Income) 13,648,851 545,632
Profit/(Loss) for the year 402,574,305 455,577,922
Net Profit attributable to Owner of the Company
Earnings per share
Adjusted EPS 38 43
Diluted EPS 30 34
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements As per our report on even date
Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Shrujana Shrestha Rajendra Prasad Shrestha CA. Gopal P. Rajbahak
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director Chairman Senior Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Siddhiman Basnyat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Independent Director

Date: 05/06/2077
Kathmandu, Nepal
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

Year ended Year Ended
S.N. Particulars Annexure | July 16,2019( July 16, 2018
Profit for the year 402,574,305 455,577,921
Other Comprehensive Income:
1 Changes in revaluation surplus 35,647,897 59,981,825
2 Re-measurements of defined benefit plans - (4,606,313)
3 | Deferred Tax Adjustment for items of OCI (10,694,369) (16,612,654)
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax 24,953,528 38,762,858
Total Comprehensive income for the year 427,527,833 494,340,779

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Shrujana Shrestha Rajendra Prasad Shrestha CA. Gopal P. Rajbahak
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director Chairman Senior Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Siddhiman Basnyat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director

Independent Director

Date: 05/06/2077
Kathmandu, Nepal
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flow

For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

As at Ast at
Particulars Notes July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Operating Activities
Net Profit for the year 402,574,304 455,577,921
Adjustment:
Provision for tax 174,702,557 194,467,068
Deferred Tax 13,648,851 545,632
Depreciation 19,650,382 16,181,243

Investment Income

Provision Writeback

Tax Paid

FV Gain Loss

Bonus Provision

Bonus Paid

Profit on sale of assets

Share in Profit/(Loss) of associates

Prior period Expenses

Changes in Working Capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in Reinsurance Receivable
Increase/(Decrease) in Reinsurance Contract Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Insurance Contract Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Benefits Obligation
Opening Adjustment of Employee Benefits Obligation
Net Changes in Working Capital

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Investing Activities

Investment in Associates

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets

Investment Income

Rent Income

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Financing Activities

Changes in Share Capital

Dividend Payment

Share Expenses

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Total Cash Flow

Opening Cash Flow

Closing Cash Flow

(278,568,702)

(227,793,523)

(213,600,151)

(172,224,335)

(19,745282)| 22,015,701
64,338,027 58,133,519

0| (52,423,336)

(639,843) (892,439)
(23,611,557)|  (5,378,604)
(136,138) (917,096)
134,328,903 | (199,148,337)
102,241,572  (3,789,675)
73,932,409 | 1,888,426,669
(43,673,287) (1,744,706,786)
(172,373,132)| 106,345,089
(6,506,585)|  (3,653,149)
87,049,881 43,473,810
212,368,957 | 344,958,932

(88,905,100)
(283,831,053)
(54,597,963)
(25,487,740)

(21,500,000)
(453,046,520)
(28,671,867)
(33,034,224)

262,011,447 | 197,778,793
16,557,254 | 15,821,359
(174,253,155) | (322,652,460)
- 1,719,027

| (12,480,200)

-l (1,331,253)

- (12,092,426)

38,115,802 10,214,046
361,248,373 | 351,034,326
399,364,174 361,248,373

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to Accounts

Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Shrujana Shrestha Rajendra Prasad Shrestha CA. Gopal P. Rajbahak
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director Chairman Senior Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Siddhiman Basnyat Chartered Accountants
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Independent Director
Date: 05/06/2077
Kathmandu, Nepal
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure 3- Investment Property

Amount in NPR

As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16,2019 ( July 16, 2018
Annexure 4- Investment in Associates

Amount in NPR

As at As at

S.N.| Particulars July 16,2019 ( July 16, 2018
4.1 Investment in Quoted Shares - -
4.2 Investment in Un-Quoted Shares - -

Total

Annexure 4.1- Investment in Quoted shares

Amount in NPR

S.N.

Particulars

As at July 16, 2019

As at July 16, 2018

Cost

Equity Value

Cost

Equity Value

Total

Annexure 4.2- Investment in Un-quoted shares

Amount in NPR

As at July 16, 2019 As at July 16, 2018
S.N.|Particulars Cost | Equity Value Cost [Equity Value
1| Kriti Capital and Investments Limited 9,100,000 9,163,465 9,100,000 9,163,465
2| Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited 161,816,865 | 229,530,107 | 112,911,765 | 157,931,463
3| Kriti Venture Fund 40,000,000 | 38,823,459 - -
4| Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 21,500,000 26,341,800| 21,500,000 | 24,247,245
Total 232,416,865 | 303,858,831 | 143,511,765 | 191,342,173
Shi kKhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure 5- Deferred Tax Assets

Amount in NPR

Chargeable/ Deferred Tax
Financial Taxable| (Deductible) Tax Liability/
S.N.| Particulars Base Base Difference Rate (Assets)
Assets 30%
1| Property, plant and equipment 271,736,726 152,773,070 124,963,656 37,489,097
2 | Intangible assets 892,872 2,009,782 (1,116,910) (335,072.90)
3 | Investment property - - -
4 | Invetment in Associates 303,858,831 232,416,865 71,441,965 21,432,589.64
5 | Financial Assets 2,729,774,810 | 2,701,881,887 27,892,923 8,367,877.00
6 | Unamortized portion of Bond 3,095,913 (3,095,913) (928,773.85)
7 | Advance Agency Commission 17,167,343 17,167,343 5,150,202.89
Liabilities -
1| Insurance Contract Liabilities -
URR 669,377,749 669,377,749 - -
Claim Outstanding (Less Rl) 516,134,146 274914379 | (241,219,767) (72,365,930.10)
2 | Leave Benefit 14,663,541 (14,663,541) (4,399,062.30)
3 | Gratuity - -
4 | Unearned Commission Income 124,558,144 (124,558,144) (37,367,443.13)
DTL(A) (42,956,516)
Opening deferred tax libility (asset) (67,299,736)
Deferred Tax (Income) expense 24,343,220
Transfer to:
1.PL 13,648,851
2.0Cl 10,694,369
Annexure 6- Investment Securities Measured at Amortized Cost
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16,2019 | July 16, 2018
1| Debt securities
2| Government bonds 39,343,818 43,228,036
3| Government treasury bills
4| Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
5| Preference Shres of Public Companies
6| Debentures of Public Companies 389,259,473 140,414,494
7| Fixed Deposits 2,083,658,769 | 2,044,788,476
8| Other - -
Less: specific allowances for impairment
Total 2,512,262,060 | 2,228,431,006
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure 7- Investment in Equity measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss Account

Amount in NPR

As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1| Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities (Annexure) 170,097,416 125,829,654
Unquoted equity securities 29,000,000 -
Others
2| Seed Money in Micro Insurance Pool 1,045,118 1,045,118
3| Investment in Mutual Fund 17,370,216 16,294,734
Laxmi Value Fund 118,320 112,750
NIBL Sambridhi Fund 1,840,759 1,866,484
NMB Sulav Investment Fund 216,400 115,500
Siddhartha Equity Scheme 194,737 -
Citizen Mutual Fund 5,000,000 4,640,000
Sanima Mutual Fund 10,000,000 9,560,000
Total 217,512,750 143,169,506
Shi kKhar
Happysurance
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 7.2 Information relating to investment in equities (Un quoted)

As at July 16, 2019

As at July 16, 2018

Number of Number of
S.No.| Particulars Shares Amount Shares Amount
1 | Sanima Hydro (Call Money) - 15,000,000 - -
2 | Nepal Warehousing Ltd. (Call Money) - 14,000,000 - -
Total -| 29,000,000.00 - -

Annexure 8. Investment in equity measured at fair value through OCI

Amount in NPR

As at As at
S.N. | Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Total - -
Annexure 9: Other Assets
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N. | Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
9.1| Prepaid expenses 13,442,296 26,517,889
9.2| Other advances 10,267,595 8,273,747
9.3| Deposits 37,565,345| 34,391,800
9.4| Staff Advance 38,976,090| 20,380,460
9.6| Advanced Payment of Agent Commission 17,167,343 17,179,304
9.7| Others
a) Advance against claim under settlement 178,424,964 | 285,308,414
b) Non Current Asset Held For Sale - -
c) Bank guarantee margin 1,036,603 949,893
d) Advance tax 265,455,741 | 231,338,203
e) Other Debtor - Rent Income 9,240,901 14,015,892
f) Advance against Investment 100,000 64,100,000
g) Receivable Against Sale of Shares = -
h) Advance for Fixed Asset Purchase = -
i) Other Receivables 72,263,357 | 41,695,996
Total 643,940,234 | 744,151,598
Annexure 10: Re-insurance Receivables
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N. Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
10.1| Local Re-insurer 483,353,321 155,183,763
10.2| Foreign Re-insurer 467,178,155 | 869,280,121
Total 950,531,476 (1,024,463,885

68hikhar
nsurance

| 34

appysmurance



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 11 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amount in NPR

As at As at

S.N. [ Particulars July 16,2019 ( July 16, 2018
11.1| Cash in hand 346,075 84,484
Total 346,075 84,484

11.2 | Bank balance

11.2.1 | Balance in commercial banks 130,643,699 | 138,762,965
11.2.2| Balance in development banks 55,086,395 44,831,340
11.2.3 | Balance in financial institutions 15,851,730 13,042,175
11.2.4| Cheque in Hand 196,643,666 | 163,788,241
11.2.5| Gold Coin 792,608 739,168
Total 399,018,099 | 361,163,888
Grand total 399,364,174 | 361,248,372

Annexure 12 - Paid up Capital
Amount in NPR

As at As at
July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018

S.N. Particulars

-

Authorised capital

a. 20,000,000 Equity Share @ Rs. 100 2,000,000,0002,000,000,000

2| Issued
a. 10,573,106 Equity Share @ Rs. 100 1,057,310,600|1,057,310,600
3| Paid up
a. 10,573,106 Equity Share @ Rs. 100 1,057,310,600|1,057,310,600
Total 1,057,310,600 (1,057,310,600

12.1 Share Structure - on basis of ownership
Amount in NPR

As at July 16, 2019 As at July 16, 2018
Equi 9 Equi )
Share Holder thua:z Sr{;(r); thua:z Srf)a?;
Nepali Organised Sanastha 1,046,737 9.90% 1,046,737 9.90%
Promotor | Nepali Citizen 5,297,127 50.10% 5,297,127 50.10%
Foreigner - -
Sub Total 6,343,864 60.00% 6,343,864 70.00%
General Public 4,229,242 40.00% 4,229,242 40.00%
Others
Sub Total 4,229,242 40.00% 4,229,242 40.00%
Total 10,573,106 100.00% | 10,573,106 100.00%
Shi khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure 12.2 - Details of the shareholders holding morethan 1% of the paid up capital

Amount in NPR

As at July 16, 2019 As at July 16, 2018
V) o,
S.N.| Share Holder srf)a?; Sh:rrg%gggtgf srﬁagg Sh::'r:%ggﬁtgt
1| Bikash Jung Bahadur Rana 7.32 774,191 8.03 849,221
2| Buddha Air Pvt. Ltd. 8.03 849,221 8.03 849,221
3| Ang Chiri Sherpa 6.88 727,904 8.03 849,221
4| Gaurav Agrawal 12.89 1,362,535 13.00 1,368,864
5| Kailash Prasad Sirohiya 4.05 428,305 4.05 428,305
6 | Pabitra Kumar Karki 1.68 177,230 1.68 177,230
7| Ang Dendi Sherpa 1.10 110,771 1.10 110,771
8 | Shekhar Basnet 1.10 110,771 1.10 110,771
9| Rajendra Prasad Shrestha 3.50 385,802 3.50 385,802
10 | Lomash Investment Pvt. Ltd. 3.49 369,231 3.49 369,231
11 | Jitendra Baheti 2.10 222,178 2.10 221,533
12| Kiran Prakash Pandey 1.50 158,241 1.75 184,616
13 | Pawan Kumar Agrawal 1.75 184,618 1.75 184,616
14 | Shashikanta Agrawal 4.94 522,271 5.94 628,276
15| Chanda Sherpa 1.15 121,317
Total 60.33 6,383,269 63.55 6,717,677
Annexure 13- Regulatory Reserve
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1| Opening Balance 35,084,172 -
2 | Transfer from/(to) Retained Earning (35,084,172) 35,084,172

Closing Balance

35,084,172.02

Annexure 14 -Other Reserve

Amount in NPR

As at As at

S.N.| Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1| General Insurance Reserve - 9,540,282

2 | Revaluation Reserve 367,436,883 342,483,355

3 | Retained Earning 93,098,974 | (118,776,684)

4 | Actuarial Reserve - (12,602,703)
Closing Balance 460,535,857 220,644,251

-
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 14.1: General Insurance Reserve

Amount in NPR

As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Opening Balance 9,540,282 9,540,282
1| Transferred to Insurance Fund (9,540,282)
Closing Balance - 9,540,282
Annexure 14.2: Revaluation Reserve
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Opening Balance 342,483,355 282,501,530
1| Change in Fair Value of Property, Plant & Equipment 24,953,528 59,981,825
Closing Balance 367,436,883 342,483,355
Annexure 14.3: Actuarial Reserve
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16,2019 ( July 16, 2018
Opening Balance (12,602,703) (9,378,284)
1| Change in Actuarial Reserve 12,602,703 (3,224,419)
Closing Balance - (12,602,703)
Annexure 14.4: Retained Earning Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Opening Accumulated Profit/(Losses) (118,776,684) (2,821,611)
1 | Total comprehensive Income for the year 427,527,833 494,340,780
2 | Dividend Declared -|  (12,480,200)
3 | Declared Bonus shares -| (237,923,273)
4 | Adjustment for Prior Period Expenses (136,138) (917,096)
5| Adjustment for share related expenses - (1,331,253)
6 | Transferred to/from Reserves
Catastrophe Reserve (18,435,891)| (20,432,520)
Insurance Fund (218,951,306) | (193,434,061)
Deferred Tax Reserve 24,343,220 (51,935,871)
Regulatory Reserve 35,084,172 | (35,084,172)
Revaluation reserve (24,953,528) (59,981,825)
Acturial Reserve (12,602,703) 3,224,419
Closing Balance 93,098,974 | (118,776,684)
Shi kKhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 15: Insurance Contract Liabilities

Amount in NPR

As at As at
S.N. | Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
15.1 [ Unexpired Risk Reserve/Unearned Premium
15.1.1 | Unearned Premium as per Liability Adequacy Test 647,609,580 808,942,688
15.1.2 | Add: Additional Reserve to meet URR as per Insurance Act 21,768,169 30,895,921
15.1.3 [ Unearned Premium (Net) (Unexpired Risk Reserve) 669,377,749 839,838,609
15.1.4 | Net Change in Reserve for unearned Premium (170,460,860) 97,267,844
15.2 | Gross Claims Reserve
15.2.1 | Claim Outstanding (Net) 274,914,379 284,314,697
15.2.2 | Claim Incurred but not Reported (IBNR) 241,219,767 233,731,720
Total Claim Reserve 516,134,146 518,046,417

Total

1,185,511,895

1,357,885,026

Annexure 15.1: Unearned Premium

Annexure 15.1.1: Unearned Premium (Gross)

Amount in NPR

As at As at

S.N. [ Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Fire 362,282,518 335,059,830
2 | Marine 89,595,309 93,083,837
3 | Motor 778,106,129 780,158,614
4 | Engineering 52,366,079 137,405,586
5 | Aviation 81,528,146 51,620,015
6 | Agri and Cattle 239,741,224 29,505,911
7 | Miscellaneous 47,517,533 152,126,029
8 | Micro 756,478 -
Total 1,651,893,418 | 1,578,959,821

Annexure 15.1.2: Unearned Premium (Net)

Amount in NPR

As at As at
S.N. [ Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Fire 59,447,790 271,849,813
2 | Marine 23,892,327 83,489,158
3 | Motor 470,516,115 120,393,080
4 | Engineering 1,155,950 114,727,685
5 | Aviation 815,281 49,577,336
6 | Agri and Cattle 19,007,013 17,459,732
7 | Miscellaneous 72,018,625 112,520,329
8 | Micro 756,478
Total 647,609,580 770,017,132
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 15.2.1: Claim Outstanding

Amount in NPR

As at As at
S.N. [ Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Fire 14,892,433 33,646,649
2 | Marine 4,015,671 12,344,014
3 | Motor 239,635,984 214,367,467
4 | Engineering 9,658,428 7,346,732
5 | Aviation - -
6 | Agri and Cattle 1,758,052 10,393,492
7 | Miscellaneous 4,953,812 6,216,343
8 | Micro
Total 24,914,379 284,314,697
Annexure 15.2.2: Claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N. [ Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Fire 5,825,072 1,782,142
2 | Marine 2,207,024 2,783,569
3 | Motor 217,105,965 214,421,204
4 | Engineering 3,675,172 3,955,622
5 | Aviation - -
6 | Agri and Cattle 8,681,689 5,963,062
7 | Miscellaneous 3,724,845 4,826,121
Total 241,219,767 233,731,720
Annexure 16: Re-insurance Contract Liabilities
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N. [ Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Premium 1,004,140,576 | 1,047,813,863
2 | Others - -
Total 1,004,140,576  1,047,813,863

Annexure17: EmployeesBenefits

Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Gratuity 11,324,148
SickLeave 4,843,209 3,483,916
HomelLeave 9,820,332 6,362,063
Total 14,663,541 21,170,127
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 17.1: Employee Benefits - Gratuity

Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 22,358,812
Fair Value of Plan Assets 11,034,664
Net Benefit Obligation - 11,324,148

Annexure 17.1.1: Movement in Present Value of defined benefits Obligation

Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars July 16,2019 | July 16, 2018
Opening Balance 20,260,070
Adjustment in Opening Balance -
Interest Cost 1,371,848
Service Cost 2,344,515
Benefit Paid During the year (6,223,934)
Settlement to defined Benefit Fund -
Actuarial Losses/ (gain) on Obligation 4,606,313
Closing balance - 22,358,813
Annexure 17.1.2: Movement in Present Value of Plan Assets

Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars July 16,2019 | July 16, 2018
Opening Balance - 9,749,308
Adjustment in Opening Balance - -
Expected Interest Income - -
Contribution during the year - 1,285,356
Benefit paid during the year - -
Actuarial Losses/ (gain) on Plan Assets - -
Closing balance - 11,034,664
Annexure 17.1.3: Net Benefit Expenses

Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars July 16,2019 | July 16, 2018
Recognised in Profit or loss Account
Net Interest Cost - 1,371,848
Service Cost - 2,344,515
Total - 3,716,363
Recognised In OCI
Actuarial Losses/ (gain) on Obligation - 4,606,313
Actuarial Losses/ (gain) on Plan Assets = -
Total - 4,606,313
Net Benefit Expenses - 8,322,676
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 17.2: Employee Benefits- Sick Leave

Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Opening Balance 3,483,916 3,533,360
Opening Adjustment - -
Leave Expenses 4,076,071 3,794,568
Leave Paid (2,716,778) (3,844,012)
Closing Balance 4,843,209 3,483,916
Annexure 17.3: Employee Benefits- Home Leave
Amount in NPR
As at As at
Particulars July 16,2019 ( July 16, 2018
Opening Balance 6,362,063 6,172,841
Opening Adjustment - -
Leave Expenses 6,244,228 4,033,234
Leave Paid (2,785,959) (3,844,012)
Closing Balance 9,820,332 6,362,063
Annexure 18: Other Liabilities
Amount in NPR
As at As at
Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
Financial Liabilities 286,103,163 173,414,951
Non- Financial liabilities 477,556,948 442,638,991
Total 763,660,111 616,053,941
Annexure 18.1: Financial Liabilities
Amount in NPR
As at As at
S.N.| Particulars July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Overdraft Loan-NIBL 154,566,874 48,602,682
2 | Other Creditors 25,259,937 82,017,637
3 | Service Fee Payable 36,083,825 35,823,221
4 | Agent Commission payable 9,833,123 2,241,162
5 | Bonus Payable 60,359,405 2,225,886
6 | Premium Deposit - 2,504,362
Total 286,103,163 173,414,951
Shi khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 18.2: Non- Financial Liabilites

Amount in NPR

As at As at

S.N.| Particulars July 16,2019 ( July 16, 2018
1 | Payable to Social Security Fund 40,058,242 26,644,853
2 | Gratuity Payable 7,570,903 -
3 | Tax payable 7,594,021 4,381,777
4 | Dividend Payable 779,869 779,805
5 | VAT Payable 52,259,592 45,648,274
6 | Unearned Reinsurance Commission Income 124,558,144 107,679,184
7 | Share Application Money Refundable 209,000 209,000
8 | Other Provisions (14.2.1) 244527177 257,296,097
Total 477,556,948 | 442,638,991
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 20: Gross Written Premium

Amount in NPR

Gross Insurance Premium Relnzt;:(air}%igézwum Insurance Premium (Net)
Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
S.N.| Types of Insurance Year Year Year Year Year Year
1 |Fire 679,152,480 | 563,957,464 | 583,874,312 466,286,103 | 95,278,168 97,671,362
2 |Marine 179,190,619 186,167,673 | 131,385,965 166,978,316 | 47,804,654 19,189,357
3 | Motor 1,602,316,183 | 1,601,959,750 | 661,187,762 346,326,530 | 941,128,421| 1,255,633,220
4 |Engineering 108,557,429 | 262,638,787 | 107,138,240 207,951,159 1,419,189 54,687,628
5| Aviation 278,762,512 | 233,445,739 | 277,233,568 222,757,224 1,528,944 10,688,515
6 | Agri and cattle 100,439,496 70,888,798 56,939,035 41,947,508 43,500,461 28,941,290
7 |Miscellaneous 484,924,753 417,401,948 | 330,917,602 292,551,386 | 154,007,152 124,850,562
8 [Micro 1,522,558 317,327 - - 1,522,558 317,327
Total 3,434,866,030 | 3,336,777,486 | 2,148,676,483 | 1,744,798,226 | 1,286,189,547 | 1,591,979,261

Annexure 20.1: Premium Earned

Amount in NPR

S.N.| Types of Insurance

Year ended
July 16, 2019

Year ended
July 16, 2018

—_

Insurance Premium (Net)

2 | Add: Opening Unearned Premium
3 | Less Closing Unearned Premium
Total

1,286,189,547
839,838,609
669,377,749

1,591,979,261
742,570,765
839,838,609

1,456,650,407

1,494,711,417

Annexure 21: Income From Investment

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended

S.N.| Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018

1 | Investment Income (Sub-Schedule) 278,568,701 213,600,150

2 | Fair value gain in Investment income - -

3 | Profit/(Loss) on disposal of Investment Property - -

4 | Net Realised Capital Gain or losses - -

5 | Unrealised capital Gain or losses = -

Total 278,568,701 213,600,150

Annexure 21.1: Investment Income

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended

S.N.| Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018

1 | Income from Government Securities 2,107,734 1,405,639

2 | Income from Fixed Deposit 221,205,814 183,199,346

3 | Dividend income from the Share of Public Company 4,089,064 4,849,924

4 | Dividend income from Preference Shares of Public Company - -

5 | Income from Debentures of Bank and Financial Institutions 20,531,085 7,799,002

6 | Income from other investment (House Rent) 16,557,254 15,821,359

7 | Income from Loan - -

8 | Income from other Bank Deposit (Except fixed deposits) 5,759,939 5,664,859

9 | Profit from Sale of investment (net of Loss in sale of Investment) 8,317,812 (5,139,979)

Total 278,568,701 213,600,150
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 22: Other Income

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended

S.N.| Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018

1 | Income from Sale of Fixed Assets 639,843 892,439

2 | Exchange Gain(Loss) 273,883 (3,613,222)

3 | Other direct Income 362,166 -

4 | Written back liabilities - -

5 | Miscellaneous Income 10,664,495 3,268,102

Total 11,940,387 547,319
Annexure 23: Gross Benefits and Claims paid

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended

Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018

Claim Paid
Total

2,306,946,336

1,865,543,101

2,306,946,336

1,865,543,101

Annexure 23.1: Net Changes in Claim Provision

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended

Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018

Opening Provision for Claim 518,046,417 508,969,171

Closing Provision for Claims 516,134,146 518,046,417

Net Changes in Claim Provision 1,912,271 (9,077,246)

Annexure 24: Acquisition Cost

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended

Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018

Reinsurance Commission Expenses - -

Agent Commission Expenses 34,198,006 30,283,336

Direct Discount - -

Total 34,198,006 30,283,336
Annexure 25: Management Expenses

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended

S.N.| Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018

1 | Staff Expenses- Subschedule 314,449,257 211,654,161

2 | Administrative and Establishment Expenses- Subschedule 143,600,694 128,437,979

3 | Selling Expenses - -

4 | Consultancy Fees - -

5 | Travel Expenses 4,468,481 5,636,476

Total 462,518,432 345,728,617
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure 25.1: Staff Expenses

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended
S.N.| Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Salary 103,050,132 97,332,779
2 | Allowances 140,167,744 74,022,572
3 | Training 6,436,741 3,325,765
4 | Insurance 8,556,554 6,622,869
5 | Provident Fund 9,350,184 5,131,881
6 | Gratuity Expense 11,619,329 3,716,363
7 | Leave Expenses 10,320,299 7,827,802
8 | Staff Welfare 5,285,843 4,766,468
9 | Vehicle Allowance 14,719,390 13,160,815
10 | Others 4,943,041 2,369,716
Total 314,449,257 218,277,030
Annexure 25.2: Administrative and Establishment Expenses
Year ended Year ended
S.N.| Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Auditor's Remuneration (Fee)
Audit 300,000 300,000
Audit related other 610,000 623,220
Non Audit 1,075,140 921,539
2 | Advertisement Costs 15,905,525 16,684,583
3 | Rent 27,683,612 18,631,294
4 | Water and Electricity 6,214,706 3,552,264
5 | Repair and Maintenance 6,449,932 6,445,739
6 | Communication 9,452,964 6,635,354
7 | Printing and Stationery 13,770,649 10,677,844
8 | Office expenditure 9,727,891 8,655,733
9 | Vehicle Running 10,879,498 9,021,321
10 | Security Expenses 4,646,235 2,894,401
11 | Legal and consultancy expenses 9,495,405 13,934,157
12 | News Paper and Books 212,308 338,256
13 | Guest Entertainment 1,287,181 499,838
14 | Donation and gifts 1,962,821 2,081,221
15 | Board Committee Expenses 2,227,263 2,398,517
16 | Other Committee / Sub Committee 1,296,267 1,595,482
17 | Annual General Meeting Expenses - 1,636,408
18 | Bank Charges 672,737 534,182
19 | Fees & Charges 5,871,828 981,743
20 | Courier and Postage 3,051,701 2,121,914
21 | Insurance expenses 2,604,936 4,538,621
22 | Renewal and Registration 864,949 156,500
23 | Business Promotion 3,308,875 4,757,461
24 | Other Expenses 4,028,273 3,245,250
Total 143,600,694 123,862,841
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure 26: Other Expenses

Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended
S.N.| Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Expenses Written off - -
2 | Stamp Expenses - -
3 | Other Direct Expenses 4,193,579 -
4 | Provision for losses-Subschedule - -
5 | Prior Period Expenses - -
6 | Impairment Loss on fixed assets = -
Total 4,193,579 -
Annexure 26.1: Provision for losses- Subschedule
Amount in NPR
Year ended Year ended
S.N.| Types of Insurance July 16, 2019 | July 16, 2018
1 | Provision for Investment losses - -
2 | Provision for Loan losses = -
3 | Provision for Doubtful Debt - -
4 | Other Provisions - -
Total - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Significant Accounting Policies
For the year ended 16 July 2019

1. General Information

1.1. Reporting Entity

Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd. (hereinafter called company) is incorporated as a Public Limited
Company on Jestha 25, 2061 under the Company Act, 2053. Its registered office is situated at Thapathali,
Kathmandu. The company has obtained license on Kartik 26, 2061 under section 10 (3) of Insurance
Act 2049 and Rule 8 (1) of Insurance Regulations, 2049 in order to carry out insurance business. The
ordinary and promoter shares of this company are listed on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd (the only
stock exchange in Nepal) for trading purpose by general people. The company has been providing
non-life insurance services from its 95 branches.

The major financial activities of the company include providing Insurance Services to its customers
from its business units and branches, settlements of the claims for losses of the Assets insured and
investing collected insurance premium in financial instruments.

1.2. Reporting period and approval of Financial Statements

1.2.1 Reporting Period
The company follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar. The corresponding
dates for the English calendar are as follows:

Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Components Date/Period Date/Period
Statement of Financial Position 31st Ashadh,2076 16th July,2019
Statement of Profit or Loss and 1st Shrawan 2075 17th July,2018
other comprehensive income to to
Statement of Cash flow 31st Ashadh, 2076 16th July,2019
Statement of Changes in Equity

1.2.2 Responsibility for Financial Statements

The management and those charged with governance is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of Financial Statements as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063, Insurance Act, 2049 and
other relevant regulations.

The responsibility for preparation of following Financial Statements is inherent with the management.

a) Statement of Financial Position showing financial position of the company.

b) Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive income showing financial performance of
the company.

c) Cash flow Statements for assessing the company’s ability to generate Cash and Cash equivalents

d) Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

1.2.3 Approval of Financial Statements by Directors

The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its
resolution dated 21 September 2020 and recommended for its approval by the Annual General Meeting
of the shareholders.

2. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).
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Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by Nepal Accounting Standards Board and its carve-outs issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). Nepal Financial Reporting Standards include
all accounting standards along with descriptions as issued by Nepal Accounting Standards Board which
are applicable at the time of preparation of the Financial Statements.

Standards neither issued nor made effective
Standards neither issued nor made effective up to the date of approval of the financial statements are
as follows.

These standards will be applied when issued and made effective making a reasonable difference
in the Financials. Pending a detailed review, the financial impact can not be reasonably estimable as
of the date of the approval of these financial statements.

a. IFRS 17- Insurance Contract

IFRS 17, if issued would be an updated version of NFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. IFRS 17 requires
entities to reflect the time value of money in estimated payments to settle the incurred claims, which
is not provisioned by NFRS 4, IFRS 17 requires a company to recognize profits as it delivers insurance
services rather than when premium is received and to provide information about insurance contract
profits the company expects to recognize in the future.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the authorization of the financial statements are set out
below which will be adopted when they become effective. Pending a detailed review, the financial
impact is not reasonably estimable as at the date of the authorization of these financial statements.

a. NFRS 9- Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
NFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on replacement of NAS 39 and applies to classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

Since NFRS 9 consists of mixed sets of standards from IAS 39 and IFRS 9, this standard has been
brought to the attention on issuing body and The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal. This
is under review and will be effective after this has been resolved.

Use of estimate, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management's
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of the financial statements. Actual
results may differ from these estimates and assumptions used in preparing the accompanying financial
statements. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Any revision to
accounting estimates are recognized in current and future periods.

The estimates as at 16 July 2019 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance
with NFRS (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies).

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have most significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:

a. Going Concern

The Board of Directors has made an assessment of the company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern and is satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, the Board of Directors is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
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doubt upon company’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate
or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going
concern basis.

b. Consistency

The entity has retained the presentation and classification of items in the financial statements unless:

i. Itis apparent, following a significant change in the nature of entity’s operations or a review of its
financial statements, that another presentation or classification would be more appropriate having
regard to the criteria for the Selection and application of accounting policies in NAS 8; or

ii. ANFRS requires a change in presentation.

2.5. Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the
discounting is material.

2.6. Limitation of NFRS implementation
Wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop the same would exceed
the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective
sections.

2.7. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee ('NPR'), except otherwise indicated.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:

- financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value
- investment property is measured at fair value
- liabilities for cash-settled share-based payment arrangements are measured at fair value

- the liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized
past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses

- class of Property, plant and equipment: Free hold land and Building are measured in fair value.

3.2. Product classification
Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company has accepted significant insurance risk
from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified
uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline,
the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits payable after
an insured event with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also
transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk, but not significant
insurance risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest
rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or rates, credit
rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable
is not specific to a party to the contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all
rights and obligations are extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified
as insurance contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes significant.
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3.3. Property, plant and equipment

3.4.

a) Recognition and measurement:

Initial Recognition: Property, plant and equipment are measured at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for free hold land and Building which are measured in fair
value by using revaluation model. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. All Value Added Tax paid on procurement of PPE is excluded from the cost of the PPE
except for vehicle (four wheeler) where 60% of the VAT is added to the cost of the PPE and directly
attributable to nontaxable transaction for VAt

Subsequent Measurement: Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized
as a separate asset, as appropriate only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred. Property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 10,000 are expensed off in the year
of acquisition.

b) Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation is calculated using the Straight Line Method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
value, over their estimated useful life, from the date the assets are ready for its intended use. Leasehold
assets are amortized over the primary period of lease. When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment.

Management's estimate of the economic useful lives and rate of depreciation of various fixed assets
are as follows: -

SN | Assets Type Life of an Assets (in Year)
1 | Building 50
2 | Furniture and Fixtures 20
3 | Office Equipment 10
4 | Computer 5
5 | Vehicles 10
6 | Electrical Equipment 8
7 | Other Assets 8

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale
or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss within other gains/ (losses).

c) Capital work in progress:

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as on each reporting
date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are
disclosed under capital work- in-progress within property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets
a) Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition.

b) Amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:
The company has intangible assets with finite useful life as follows:

Assets Type Useful life

Intangible Assets 10
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period
and the amortization method for the intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

3.5. Investment Property
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for the use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

3.6. Investment in Associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence. If an entity holds, directly
or indirectly (e.g. through subsidiaries), 20 per cent or more of the voting power of the investee, it is
presumed that the entity has significant influence, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that this is
not the case. Conversely, if the entity holds, directly or indirectly (e.g. through subsidiaries), less than
20 per cent of the voting power of the investee, it is presumed that the entity does not have significant
influence, unless such influence can be clearly demonstrated. An entity with significant influence over
an investee shall account for its investment in associate using the equity method.

Representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the investee evidences the
existence of significant influence by an entity. An entity with significant influence over an investee shall
account for its investment in associate using the equity method.

3.7. Taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

i) Current tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period."

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary difference arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except
when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss
at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
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3.8.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Purchase or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trade) are recognized on trade date.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are classified in
the following categories:

- non-derivative financial assets comprising amortized cost, equity instruments at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) and fair value through profit and loss account (FVTPL),
non-derivative financial liabilities at amortized cost or FVTPL and derivative financial instruments
(under the category of financial assets or financial liabilities) at FVTPL.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model for which
it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

a) Non-derivative financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
Based on business model assessment, for purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are
classified in two categories:

i) Debt instruments at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest ('SPPI') on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Financial assets, measured at amortized cost, are assessed at each Reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original EIR. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
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This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Amortized cost is represented by bank or other deposits, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
employee and other advances.

ii) Mutual funds and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost, is classified
as FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair values with all changes in
the statement of profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when:
- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized.
Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred since initial recognition.

Provisions for Investment in bank or other deposit, if such investments are unable to be refunded for
any reason even after its maturity date, the company sets aside the provision amount equal to such
investment amount.

b) Non-derivative financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of amortized cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
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modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

c) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Accordingly, the reinsurance assets and liabilities have been grossed up in the financial statements.

d) Investments
Investment in debt and equity securities are accounted as per the business model assessment described
above.

3.9. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in
banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand, book overdraft and are considered part of the Company’s cash management system.

3.10. Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

i) Level2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

iii) Level 3—  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At each reporting date, the Management analyzes the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For
this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Shikhar
-+

apyaqsuvance




3.11. Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the
closing rate of exchange at the balance sheet date, Exchange differences arising on foreign currency
transactions settled during the year are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they
arise in the Profit and Loss account or Revenue account as the case may be.

3.12. Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys
a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

As a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the group, as lessee, has substantially transferred all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized
at the lease's inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Operating leases are not recognized on the balance
sheet. The company has recognized accrued lease for the period as an expense on incremental basis
(as per lease term) considering the general inflation as more appropriate than Straight Line Method
considering economic benefit rendered by leased assets and in accordance with the provision contained
in para 34 of NAS 17 Lease.

As a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding
in respect of the lease.

The Company has opted for carve out provided by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)
as per Section 11(da) of Nepal Chartered Accountants Act, 2059 for accounting operating lease.

3.13. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's or cash-generating units' (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. When the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.
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3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

3.18.

3.19.

Reinsurance ceded to reinsurance companies

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all segments of its businesses.
Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims
associated with the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an
indication of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs when there is objective
evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that
the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the
event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the
reinsurer.

Reinsurance assumed

The Company also assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for non-life insurance
contracts where applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as revenue
or expenses in the same manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business,
taking into account the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent
balances due to insurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with
the related reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance.

Claims incurred

Claims incurred comprise claims paid (net of salvage and other recoveries), estimated liability for
outstanding claims made following a loss occurrence reported and estimated liability for Claims Incurred
But Not Reported (‘IBNR’). IBNR has been estimated as per report provided by Acturial Consultant
after conducting Liability Adequacy Test (LAT). The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
to pay claims expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

Claims are recognised on the date of intimation based on estimates from surveyors/insured in the
respective revenue accounts.

Estimated liability for outstanding claims at each reporting date is recorded at net level.

The company has assessed whether its recognized insurance liabilities are adequate, using current
estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts through actuarial valuation.

Premium received in advance
Premium received in advance represents premium received in respect of policies issued during the
year, where the risk commences subsequent to the reporting date.

Premium received in advance is presented on gross basis i.e. amount in respect of direct business
and reinsurance accepted are presented as insurance contract liabilities whereas amount in respect
of reinsurance ceded is presented as reinsurance asset.

Unearned Premium Reserve

Unearned Premium Reserve is made on the amount representing that part of the net premium written
which is attributable to, and to be allocated to the succeeding accounting period based on the 1/365
days method.

Unearned Premium Reserve is presented on net basis i.e. amounts in respect of direct business and
reinsurance accepted less reinsurance ceded are presented as insurance contract liabilities.

Insurance Fund

As per the provision of the Insurance Act, 50% of Net Premium of the year are transferred to Insurance
Fund. Such fund amount is apportioned to individual portfolio wise Insurance Fund Account as per
the ratio of Income generated from those portfolios as depicted by Revenue Accounts and in case of
portfolios in loss, no fund is apportioned as per the directive issued by Insurance Board. Transfer to
such fund is done until total insurance fund equals paid up capital of the company.
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3.20. Catastrophe Reserve
The Company has set aside an amount equivalent to 10% of amount available for appropriation under
Catastrophe Reserve as per direction of Insurance Board.

3.21. Deferred Tax Reserve
Deferred Tax Reserve is created of every deferred tax assets and liabilities as per Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards.

3.22. Employee Benefits

i) Short term Employee Benefits
All Short term employee benefits are recognized at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid
as an expense over the period of services rendered to the Company.

ii) Provident fund
Contributions paid / payable to the recognized provident fund, which is a defined contribution
scheme, are charged to the revenue account and statement of profit and loss.

iii) Gratuity
The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined contribution plan till financial year. The
Company's net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated as 8.33% of
monthly gross salary of individual staffs as per the provisions of Labour Act, 2074

iv) Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating
and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is
determined by actuarial valuation based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result
of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying
assumptions and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is very sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Expense on non-
accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

v) Bonus plans
The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

3.23. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. The discount rate used to settle the obligation is a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expenses.

3.24. Segment Reporting

Business segments

Based on the primary segments identified by chief operating decision maker (‘'CODM') and in accordance
with the "NFRS 8 - Operating Segments", the Insurer's business in Nepal is segmented into Fire,
Marine, Motor, Engineering, Aviation, Cattle & Agriculture and Miscellaneous. There are no reportable
geographical segments, since all business is written in Nepal.
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Segmental revenue and expenses
All segment revenues and expenses are directly attributed to the respective individual segments.

Allocation of Operating expenses for Segment Reporting
Operating expenses relating to insurance business are assigned to Fire, Marine, Motor, Engineering,
Aviation, Cattle & Agriculture and Miscellaneous business segments as follows:

i. Expenses directly identifiable to the business segments are allocated on an actual basis.

ii. Other expenses, which are not directly identifiable, are apportioned to the business segment at
the end of the year on either
a) total number of policies issued during the year or
b) annualized premium income or
c) total sum assured for policies issued during the year or
d) total premium income
e) Asset under management or
f) Weighted average number of policies issued during the year as considered appropriate by the
management.

Segmental assets and liabilities
Segment assets and liabilities include those, which are employed by a segment in its operating activity.
Other common assets and liabilities, if any, are allocated to the segment on a pre-determined basis.

3.25. Revenue recognition

a) Gross premium
Premium (net of taxes) in respect of insurance contracts is recognized as income over the contract
period or the period of risk, whichever is appropriate, after adjusting for reserve for unexpired risk.
Any subsequent revisions to or cancellations of premiums are recognised in the year in which
they occur.

b) Reinsurance premium
Premium (net of tax) in respect of re-insurance contracts is recognized as income over the contract
period or the period of risk, whichever is appropriate, after adjusting for reserve for unexpired risk.
Any subsequent revisions to or cancellations of premiums are recognised in the year in which
they occur.

c) Investment income

Interest income on investments are classified as Fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
category and amortised cost category, is recognised using the Effective Interest Rate ('EIR'")
method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. The EIR is computed on the of the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument. The calculation includes all fees, transaction
costs, and all other premiums or discounts paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses

Investment income also includes dividend income which is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.

d) Premium / discount on purchase of investments
Premium or discount on acquisition, as the case may be, in respect of fixed income securities,
is amortised /accreted on constant yield to maturity basis over the period of maturity/holding.

e) Profit/ loss on sale of investments
Net realized profit / losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include profit and losses on
financial assets. Profit and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference
between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost/fair value and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction
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3.26.

3.27.

3.28.

3.29.

3.30.

f) Commission on reinsurance ceded
Commission on reinsurance ceded is recognized as income in the year in which reinsurance
premium is ceded.

Profit commission under reinsurance treaties wherever applicable, is recognized on accrual basis.
Any subsequent revisions of profit commission are recognized for in the year in which final
determination of the profits are intimated by the reinsurers.

Premium on reinsurance ceded

Premium on reinsurance ceded is accounted as an expense in the year in which the risk commences
and over the period of risk in accordance with the treaty agreements with the reinsurers. Any subsequent
revision to or cancellations of premiums are accounted for in the year in which they occur. Premium
on excess of loss reinsurance cover is accounted as per the terms of reinsurance agreements.

Gross claims incurred

The components of the cost of claims comprise the claims under policies and claims settlement costs.
Claims under policies comprise the claims made for losses incurred, and those estimated or anticipated
under the policies, following the loss occurrence event.

Recoveries from Re-insurers - claims
Reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according
to the terms of the relevant contract.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs are those costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acquisition of new and
renewal insurance contracts. The most essential test is the obligatory relationship between costs and
commencement of risk. Acquisition costs, if any, shall be expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively if the
number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization,
bonus share or share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic
and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to Accounts
For the year ended 16" July 2019

1. Employee Benefits

() Post-Employment Defined Contribution Plan
The Company contributes to the Provident Fund (PF) maintained by the Employee Provident Fund.
Under the PF scheme, contributions are made by both the Company and its eligible employees to the
Fund, based on the current salaries. The amount contributed by the employer has been charged to the
Statement of Profit or Loss. Apart from making monthly contribution to the scheme, the Company has
no other obligation.

The Company has also separated an amount as required by the Labour Act, 2074 for Gratuity as Gratuity
payable. The amount contributed by the company for the same has been charged to the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

() Post-Employment Defined Benefit Plan- Compensated Absences

The Company provides for Compensated Absences (Sick Leave and Home Leave), a defined benefit
retirement plan covering eligible employees. As per the scheme, the Company creates a liability based
on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is very sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

1.1 Home Leave

a) Reconciliation of Amounts recognized in Balance Sheet

16-Jul-18 | 16-Jul-19
Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability, Beginning of Period 6,172,841 | 6,362,062
Total Expense/(Income) Recognised in Profit & Loss 4,033,234 | 6,244,228

Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Benefit Payouts (3,844,012) | (2,785,959)

Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability, End of Period 6,362,063 | 9,820,331
b) Actuarial assumptions

Economic Assumptions

Date of Valuation 16 July, 2018 16 July, 2019

Discount Rate 8.00% 6.50%

Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Expected Rate of Return on Assets N.A. N.A.

Demographic Assumptions

Mortality

Nepali Assured Lives
Mortality 2009

Nepali Assured Lives
Mortality 2009

Employee Turnover/ Withdrawal Rate 5.00% 4.00%
Leave Availment Ratio - 1.00%
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years
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1.2 Sick Leave

a) Reconciliation of Amounts recognized in Balance Sheet

16-Jul-18 | 16-Jul-19

Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability, Beginning of Period 3,633,360 3,483,916
Total Expense/(Income) Recognised in Profit & Loss 3,794,568 | 4,076,071
Acquisition/Business Combination/Divestiture

Benefit Payouts (3,844,012) | (2,716,778)
Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability, End of Period 3,483,916 4,843,209

b) Actuarial assumptions

Economic Assumptions

Date of Valuation 16 July, 2018 16 July, 2019
Discount Rate 8.00% 6.50%
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets N.A. N.A.

Demographic Assumptions

Mortality Nepali Assured Lives Nepali Assured Lives

Mortality 2009 Mortality 2009
Employee Turnover/ Withdrawal Rate 5.00% 4.00%
Leave Availment Ratio - 1.00%
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance Contract liabilities includes Unexpired Risk Reserve and Gross claim reserve.

21

2.2

2.3

Unexpired Risk Reserve
Unexpired Risk Reserve comprise of Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR) and Premium Deficiency
Reserve (PSR).

Unearned Premium Reserve is made on the amount representing that part of the net premium written
which is attributable to, and to be allocated to the succeeding accounting period based on the 1/365
days method.

As per the circular issued by the Beema Samiti, the Unexpired Risk reserves are evaluated at an overall
Company Level i.e. the Company is expected to hold NFRS UPR or Statutory UPR whichever is higher.
The evaluation is done at an overall Company level.

Since Premium Deficiency is also a component of Unexpired Risk Reserves, PDR would also be
maintained at an overall Company level only. If the summation of expected ultimate loss ratio and
maintenance expenses of the unexpired part of the already written risk is more than the unexpired
premium, a PDR needs to be maintained. As per LAT, no PDR has been recognized.

Gross Claim Reserve

Gross claim reserves is booked as sum of total outstanding claim reported and claim intimated but not
reported (IBNR). For IBNR, amount suggested by an independent Actuarial Consultant has been
recognized. Care is taken for reserve for liability under claims under dispute and/or obligation and such
estimate has to be consistent with prior practice.

While reporting for the claim reserve, higher of actuarial valuation under NFRS 4 and of regulator
prescribed rules is taken for consideration.

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)
This contains provision for claims which has already occurred but has not yet been reported.
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2.3.1 Accounting Policy, Nature & Frequency for Liability Testing
Frequency of the liability testing will be annual and it will be based on the analysis of the paid claims
data using standard actuarial methodology of Basic Chain Ladder Method.

2.3.2 Cash flows Considered
Individual claims wise and aggregated claims wise cash-flows were considered.

2.3.3 Valuation Method and assumptions

Based on the Ultimate Loss Ratio Method Ultimate losses for each line of businesses are estimated.
Paid claims and outstanding claims as on 16 July 2019 are then subtracted from the ultimate losses
to arrive at the IBN(E)R as on 16 July 2019. These IBN(E)Rs are then compared with the 15% of the
outstanding claims (set aside akin to the IBN(E)R as per the regulations) to test for adequacy.

2.3.4 Discounting Policy
Discounting was not applied anywhere.

2.3.5 Aggregation practices
Aggregation of paid claims data was considered based on accident year cohort. The accident year
grouping is annual ending on 16th July.

3. Tax Liabilities
3.1 Calculation of Tax Liabilities

The tax liabilities of the company has been calculated on the basis of profit derived as per Financial
Statements prepared as per Beema Samiti Guidelines as under:

Profit as per NFRS (before tax) 590,925,713
Adjustment as shown in Note 1.3 (except tax) 11,883,475
Profit as per Financials Prepared as per Beema Samiti Guidelines 579,042,237
Add: Inadmissible Expenses

Provision for losses 0
Deferred Expenses 209,158
Donation 1,962,821
Other Expenses 686,739
Unabsorbed repairs 3,137
Depreciation as per books 23,284,906
Provision for Gratuity 0
Provision for leave 2,743,665
Provision Expenses 0
Total 28,890,426
Less: Deductible Expenses and Non-Taxable Income

Provision Written back 8,059,946
Depreciation as per the Act 23,623,378
Dividend Income 4,089,064
Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset 507,576
Total 36,279,963
Profit as per Tax 571,652,701
Tax Rate 30%
Current Year Tax Liability 171,495,810
Fines and Penalties calculated as per Income tax Act 3,206,746
Total Tax Liability 174,702,556
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3.2 Calculation of Deferred Tax

Chargeable/ | Deferred Tax

(Deductible) Liability/

SN | Particulars Financial Base | Taxable Base Difference (Assets)

Assets

1 | Property, Plant and Equipment 277,736,726 152,773,070 124,963,656 37,489,097

2 | Intangible Assets 892,872 2,009,782 (1,116,910) [  (335,072.90)

3 | Investment Property - - -

4 | Investment in Associates 303,858,831 232,416,865 71,441,965 | 21,432,589.64

5 | Financial Assets 2,729,774,810 | 2,701,881,887 27,892,923 | 8,367,877.00

6 | Unamortized portion of Bond - 3,095,913 (3,095913) | (928,773.85)

7 | Advance Agency Commission 17,167,343 - 17,167,343 | 5,150,202.89

Liabilities - -

1| Insurance Contract Liabilities -

URR 669,377,749 | 669,377,749 - -

Claim Outstanding (Less RI) 516,134,146 | 274,914,379  (241,219,767) |(72,365,930.10)

2 | Leave Benefit 14,663,541 -1 (14,663,541) | (4,399,062.30)

3 | Gratuity - - -

4 | Unearned Commission Income 124,558,144 -| (124,558,144) ((37,367,443.13)

DTL(A) (42,956,516)

Opening deferred tax liability (asset) - (67,299,736)

Deferred Tax (Income) expense - 24,343,220
Transfer to:

1. PL 13,648,851

2, OCl 10,694,369

3.3 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority.

Risk management

Introduction and overview
As an insurer, the Company is exposed to multiple risks and the following chart shows all those risks:

(A) Insurance Risk:
- Non-Life Insurance Contracts
- Reinsurance

(B) Financial Risk

- Market Risk
(a) Interest Rate Risk
(b) Currency Risk
(c) Equity Risk

- Credit Risk

- Liquidity Risk

- Operational Risk

This note presents information about Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks, and the manner in which the
Company manages its capital.

Risk management
Being an insurance company, acceptance and active management of risks are core competencies of the
Company. This implies that the major mission for risk management is adequate risk steering, as opposed
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to mere risk avoidance or minimization. Risk management therefore is an integral part of the management
and control system, ensuring the timely identification, analysis, measurement, management and reporting
of risks. This system provides the basis for successful value based management, including the efficient
allocation of capital and the optimization of key performance measures through consistent consideration
of risk-return implications.

Risk management framework

The key elements of the risk management framework are:

e Promotion of a strong risk management culture supported by a robust risk governance structure.

e Consistent application of an integrated risk capital framework across the Company to protect the capital
base and to support effective capital management.

e Integration of risk considerations and capital needs into management and decision-making processes
through the attribution of risk and allocation of capital to the various segments.

The Company’s risk appetite is defined by a clear risk strategy and limit structure. Close risk monitoring and
reporting allows the Company to detect potential deviations from the predetermined risk tolerance level at
an early stage.

The four primary components of the Risk Management framework include:

Risk underwriting and identification: A sound risk underwriting and identification framework forms the
foundation for adequate risk taking and management decisions such as individual transaction approval, new
product approval, and strategic or tactical asset allocation. The framework includes risk assessments, risk
standards, valuation methods and clear minimum standards for underwriting.

Risk reporting and monitoring: A comprehensive qualitative and quantitative risk reporting and monitoring
framework provides transparency and risk indicators to senior management on the overall risk profile and
whether it falls within delegated limits and authorities.

Risk Strategy and risk appetite: The risk strategy clearly defines the Company’s risk appetite. It ensures that
rewards are appropriate for the risks taken and that the delegated authorities are in line with the Company’s
overall risk bearing capacity. The risk-return profile is improved through the integration of risk considerations
and capital needs into decision-making processes. This also keeps risk strategy and business objectives
consistent with each other and allows the Company to take opportunities within the risk tolerance.

Communication and transparency: A transparent and robust risk disclosure provides a basis for communicating
this strategy to our internal and external stakeholders, ensuring a sustainable positive impact on valuation
and financing.

The primary objective of the Company’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the Company’s
shareholders from events that could hinder the sustainable achievement of financial objectives, including
failure to exploit opportunities. The management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company’s risk management framework and thus, their approval is necessary for the risk
management strategy and risk policies pertaining to all activities of the Company.

The Company has a Risk Management Team and the members are proposed by the Company’s CEO. lts

existence is a requirement of the Company's Policy. The main responsibilities of the risk management team

include:

- Promoting the risk culture and developing risk management talent for the Company.

- Pre-approving the Company'’s risk management policy, risk strategy/appetite and carrying out reviews
to ensure alignment with local regulatory requirements.

- Monitoring the approved risk tolerance and exposures to individual risks.

- Determine management actions for non-compliance of risk owners to limits or the risk policy.

- Request, follow-up and assess contingency and action plans in case of (imminent) limit breaches. Review
the risk management function’s effectiveness and development in the context of regulatory requirements.

- Escalate material issues to the Board of Directors.
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a) Capital management objectives, policies and approach

The Company has established the following capital management objectives, policies and approaches

to manage the risks that affect its capital position:

— Meet regulatory solvency requirements and the internal threshold set by the Company, thereby
providing a degree of security to policyholders.

— Efficient allocation of capital to support business development by ensuring that returns on capital
employed meet the requirements of shareholder.

— Financial flexibility by maintaining a strong liquidity position.

— Alignment of asset and liability profiles by minimizing asset-liability duration mismatches.

— Maintain financial strength to support business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the
policyholders, regulators and other stakeholders.

The operations of the Company are subject to regulatory requirements. Such regulations not only
prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g.
Solvency Margin, unexpired risk reserve, outstanding claim reserve) to minimize the risk of default and
insolvency on the part of the Company to meet unforeseen liabilities as they arise.

The Company has been in compliance with all these regulatory requirements throughout the financial
year to the best of our knowledge.

The Company maintains its capital as per the regulatory requirements of the Beema Samiti (Insurance
Board) ('BSIB').

b) Approach to capital management
The Company seeks to optimize the structure and sources of capital to ensure that it consistently
maximizes returns to the shareholders.

The Company’s approach to managing capital involves managing assets, liabilities and risks in a
coordinated way, assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels on a regular basis
and taking appropriate actions to influence the capital position of the Company in the light of changes
in economic conditions and risk characteristics.

The primary source of capital used by the Company is equity shareholders’ funds. The capital
requirements are routinely forecasted on a periodic basis by the management. The solvency margins
are calculated on a monthly basis and shared with the management.

c) Regulatory framework
The insurance regulator of the Country - BSIB is primarily interested in protecting the rights of
policyholders and monitors the Company closely to ensure that it is satisfactorily managing affairs for
the benefit of policyholders. At the same time, they are also interested in ensuring that the Company
maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities arising from economic shocks,
natural disasters, etc.

Thus, the operations of the Company are subject to regulatory requirements of the BSIB as well as
various other regulators such as Office of Company Registrar, Nepal Rastra Bank, Securities Board
of Nepal, Inland Revenue Department etc.

Insurance Risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments
or the timing thereof, may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity
of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long—term claims. Therefore, the objective
of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. The variability
of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well
as the use of reinsurance arrangements.
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The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
® Product design risk;

® Underwriting and expense overrun risk;

® Claims risk

a) Product design risk
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:
Fire
Marine
Motor
Engineering
Aviation
Cattle & Agriculture
Miscellaneous
Micro

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate
leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles and the steady
escalation of costs in respect of spares in the auto industry. A long tail claim which takes time to finally
settle is also exposed to risk of inflation.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts.
The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies,
which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review
of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place
to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that
can negatively impact the business.

The Company has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts
as well as using reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events (e.g. :
hurricanes, earthquakes, flood damage, etc.).

The purpose of these underwriting and reinsurance strategies is to limit exposure to catastrophes. The
Company uses its own risk management framework to assess catastrophe exposure. However, there
is always a risk that the assumptions and techniques used in these assessments could fail or that claims
arising from an unassessed event is greater than those arising from an assessed event.

Some of the specific actions by the Company to mitigate Non-Life Insurance Risks are shown below.

b) Underwriting and expense over-run risk
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the internal underwriting procedure manual. Some
of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

e Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management staff,
including those attached to the distribution network.

e Strict controls are maintained on the issue of temporary cover notes and also limiting them validity
period as per guideline by BSIB.

e Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate
risk prior to acceptance.

e Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

e Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers.

e Financial Authority limits are in place clearly prescribing the limits in respect of each underwriter based

on the sum assured.
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Concentration of the insurance risk

Gross Reinsurance Net

Portfolio Premium Ceded Premium %
Fire 679,152,480 583,874,312 95,278,168 7.41%
Marine 179,190,619 131,385,965 47,804,654 3.72%
Motor 1,602,316,183 661,187,762 | 941,128,421 73.17%
Engineering 108,557,429 107,138,240 1,419,189 0.11%
Aviation 278,762,512 277,233,568 1,528,944 0.12%
Cattle & Agriculture 100,439,496 56,939,035 43,500,461 3.38%
Miscellaneous 484,924,753 330,917,602 | 154,007,152 11.97%
Micro 1,522,558 - 1,522,558 0.12%
Total 3,434,866,030 | 2,148,676,483 | 1,286,189,547 100%
c) Claims risk

Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:

e Claims are governed by the internal Claims Manual.

e Fire, marine and motor claims intimation are carried out through a working hour fully-fledged Call
Centre.

e Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors/loss adjustors working
throughout the country on a 24 hour basis.

e Claims are assessed immediately and reserved accordingly.
The adequacy of reserves made in relation to Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and Incurred But
Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims, are made based on Liability Adequacy Test.

Reinsurance Risk

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation program. Reinsurance ceded is
placed on both a proportional and non—proportional basis. A proportional reinsurance arrangement
includes both Quota Share and Facultative Treaty programs which is taken out to reduce the overall
exposure of the Company to certain classes of business. Non—proportional reinsurance programs,
which are primarily excess—of-loss reinsurance arrangements, are designed to mitigate the Company’s
net exposure to large single and catastrophic losses. Retention limits on the excess—of-loss reinsurance
programs vary by product line.

Premium ceded to the reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programs already agreed based
on the risks written by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on
the cession made in respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding
claims provisions made for the loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance
arrangements, the obligation to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company.
Default of reinsurers does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit
risk up to the extent ceded to each reinsurer.

The following table shows the credit ratings of the reinsurance companies with whom the Company
has arrangements.

Rating

Financial| Long term issuer | Rating
Reinsurer Strength rating credit rating | agency
Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Limited B BB+ | AM Best
FAIR Oil & Energy Insurance Syndicate B+ BBB- | Company
The Hanover Insurance Group, Inc. Subsidiaries A A
Save Reinsurance Company A A
General Insurance Corporation of India A- A-
Nepal Reinsurance Company Ltd., Nepal N.A. N.A. | NA.
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Financial Risks

The Company is exposed to a range of financial risks through its;
e Financial assets

e Financial liabilities

e Reinsurance receivables, and

e Insurance liabilities

In particular, the key financial risk is investment proceeds not being sufficient to fund the obligations
arising from insurance contracts. The key risk categories are;

e Market risk

e Credit risk

e Liquidity risk, and
e Operational risk
Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of possible adverse movements in the values of assets due to changes
in market factors, including interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of interest rate volatility adversely affecting the market value of the investment
portfolio. In an increasing interest rate environment, there will be a drop in the value of treasury bills
and bonds when they are marked-to-market. The company monitors its interest rate risk on a monthly
basis by analyzing the movement in the interest rate-sensitive asset duration, the allocation to interest
rate sensitive assets, and the sensitivity of interest rate movements on the Solvency Margin.

The Company is not exposed to any material interest rate risks on financial assets and liabilities.

b) Currency risk
The risk of fluctuation of fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument due to a change in
exchange rates, is referred to as currency risk.

The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in Nepalese Rupee and hence, its exposure to
foreign exchange risk is minimal.

The Company is not exposed to any material foreign currency risk on financial assets and liabilities.

c) Equity price risk

The risk of fluctuation of fair values or future cash flows of investment in equity shares, is referred to
as equity price risk. The Company have some investment in equity shares, which are restated at
reporting date fair value based on market information available as on that date.

Credit risk

Credit risk is counter-party default risk, and includes the risk of failure of financial institutions with which
the Company has placed deposits/ investments to meet obligations, and the failure of reinsurers to
meet claims when they fall due. It also includes the risk of default by policyholders on premium
receivable, and failure of employees to meet loans provided by the company.

In addition to strict limits on single counter-party exposure, the Company follows a prudent credit policy
which limits its investments to high grade corporate credit in line with the Company's policy, and above
the regulatory minimum criteria. Single counter-party exposure is monitored on a monthly basis, and
any deviations require special approval. The Company’s investment approach is also guided and
monitored by the Company.

Credit risk to external reinsurers appears when insurance risk exposures are transferred by the Company
to external reinsurance companies to mitigate insurance risk. Potential losses can arise either due to
non-recoverability of reinsurance receivables already present or default on benefits that are under
reinsurance treaties in-force. The Company’s exposure to reinsurance risk is minimal, as majority of
the reinsurance is placed with companies as mentioned under reinsurance risk and with reinsurers
with strong credit ratings approved by the Company.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated liabilities
due to lack of funds or having to meet these obligations at excessive cost.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the financial assets of the company based on their
market value. The Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable securities that can be easily
liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption of cash flow. Some of the specific actions by the
Company to mitigate the liquidity risk are shown below;

e Assets are categorized into different tiers based on liquidity and a minimum allocation to each tier

has been specified in the Company’s Investment Policy Statement.

e Cash outflows identified in advance are matched through short-term deposit

Maturity Analysis of Financial Assets and Less than More than

Liabilities as at July 16, 2019 1 year 1-3 years 3 years No Maturity [ Carrying value
Investment measured at amortized cost

Investment in deposits of Commercial Banks 1,307,000,000 457,500,000 - 1,764,500,000
Investment in deposits of Development Banks 231,600,000 29,500,000 - 261,100,000
Investment in deposits of financial institutions 50,500,000 - - 50,500,000
Interest Receivable on Fixed Deposit 20,300,274 20,300,274
Investment in government bond 18,536,785 20,000,000 - - 38,536,785
Investment in debenture 15,175,000 362,150,000 - 377,325,000
Investment in equity measured at fair

value through profit/loss account - -
Investment in unlisted equity shares 29,000,000 29,000,000
Investment in shares of public companies 170,097,416 170,097,416
Mutual Fund 17,370,216 17,370,216
Seed Money in Micro Insurance Pool 1,045,118 1,045,118
Local Re-insurer 483,353,321 - - 483,353,321
Foreign Re-insurer 467,178,155 - 467,178,155
Liabilities - -
Reinsurance liabilities: -
Payable to reinsurers 188,820,184 - 188,820,184
Payable to other insurers 815,320,392 - 815,320,392
Claim outstanding - -

Operational risk

This is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
Company’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than
credit, market and liquidity risks, such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of corporate behavior.

Operational failures could result in dire consequences such as producing misleading financial information,
loss of return, financial penalties from regulators or damage to the reputation of the Company. Operational
risks arise from all operations of the Company.

While it is acknowledged that the Company cannot eliminate all operational risks, it is in a position to
manage such risks by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding to
potential risks.

The Company’s risk management team assesses all foreseeable risk involved in its operation and they

develop and implement action plan to control those identified operational risk. These action plans

recommended by the team is to manage the operational risk in the following areas:

e requirements for having appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization
of transactions;

e requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions

e compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements
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e documentation of controls and procedures

e requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls

and procedures to address the risks identified

development of contingency plans

training and professional development

ethical and business standards

risk mitigation, including insurance where this is cost effective.

requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action

Compliance with recommended action plans are supported by periodic reviews undertaken by Senior
Manager Risk and Control and the Compliance Officer. The results of internal reviews are discussed

frequently and necessary actions are taken.

Moreover, business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored

through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting process.

5. Earnings / (Loss) per equity share
Earning per equity share (EPS) of the company is calculated as under

Net Profit

Number of shares

Bonus Shares

Adjusted Number of shares

Adjusted EPS

Adjusted Weighted average no. of Shares after Right Issue of
February 24, 2020*

Diluted EPS*

Year ended Year Ended
July 16, 2019 | July 17, 2018
402,574,305 455,577,922

10,573,106 10,573,106

10,573,106 10,573,106

38 43
13,445,582 13,445,582
30 34

* Note: Diluted EPS is calculated to give retrospective adjustments of Right Issue of 3,171,932 shares on February 24,
2020 since the date occur after the reporting period but before financial statements are authorized for issue.

6. Related party disclosure

a) Relationship

Related parties Relation
1 Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Chairman
2 Ramesh Kumar Luitel Director
3 Saurav J.B. Rana Director
4 Shrujana Shrestha Director
5 Skand Amatya Director, Public Shareholder
6 Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Director, Public Shareholder
7 Siddhiman Basnyat Independent Director
8 Dip Prakash Panday Chief Executive Officer
9 Kiriti Capital & Investments Limited Associate
10 Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. Associate
11 Nepal Re-Insurance Co. Ltd. Associate
12 Kriti Venture Fund Associate
Shi kKhar
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b)

i. Key Management Personnel

Details of Transactions with Related Parties

Short-term Post- Other long-term
Key management | employee |Employment employee Termination |Share based
personnel benefits benefits benefits benefits payment
Dip Prakash Panday| 13,262,454 853,333

Board of Directors

Transactions with related parties

16th July 2019

Board Meeting Allowances
Board Meeting Expenses
Other Meeting Allowances
Other Meeting Expenses

1,540,000
687,263
895,000
401,267

iii. Others (Associates)

Related Party Amount of transaction Closing balances
Kriti Capital & Investments Limited |Investment in Share via
related party 81,950,061
Citizen Life Insurance Co. Ltd. Life Insurance Premium 4,360,169 -
Nepal Re-Insurance Co. Ltd. Premium ceded 483,991,563 382,398,441
Commission 101,593,122
7. Fair value measurements
Financial instruments by category
16 July 2019 16 July 2019
Amortized Amortized
Particulars Cost FVTPL Others Cost FVTPL Others
Financial assets
Investments Securities 2,512,262,060 | 217,512,750 -12,228,431,006 | 143,169,506
Cash and bank balance 399,364,174 361,248,372 -
Reinsurance Assets 950,531,476 - 1,024,463,885 -
Total financial assets 5,609,205,839 | 217,512,750 3,614,143,263 | 143,169,506
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance liabilities 1,004,140,576 1,047,813,863 -
Loan and advances 154,566,874 48,602,682 -
Others 131,536,289 124,812,269 -
Total financial liability 3,037,291,869 -1 1,096,416,545

Fair value hierarchy

The table shown below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined below:

- Level 1:
- Level 2:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)
Financial Assets and Liabilities measured
at fair value as at 16 July 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets 212,820,283 212,820,283
Total Financial Assets 212,820,283 212,820,283

Notes: Financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortized cost which is approximately equal to their fair value.
6 |nsu rance |72

appysurﬂnca



8. Segment information for the year
The management of the company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as
defined by NFRS 8, Operating Segments. The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates
resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators.

The CODM reviews following business segment periodically:
Fire

Marine

Motor

Engineering

Aviation

Cattle & Agriculture

Miscellaneous

Micro

NGk~ N =

Segment assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are measured in the same way as in the standalone
financial statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical
location of the assets.

Shikhar
nsurance |,
H

ﬂpfrysu;‘ance




€21'916°196'C 9v5'0L0'6Ly | 060°28L°98 1SZ'LL8'0VT  |616°108'E6 | 8L9'81SVBE L |VER'CER' VS | PS LE8'98S

111'099'€9/ 05'8€¢ €6€'118'201 | ¥1€'08e'ee 191'9/6'19 Trl'GeL'ye | 88G'967'9G€ |8€L'8E8'6E | 1LC'€66'0G)
17G'€99'71 005'9 851'0L0'C 6.1'82 G70'061'} Gev'eoy £ee'0v8'9 0/6'79. 12£'668'C eI 9seaT aoueuld
9/6'071%00' L0L'GhY 1G2'19/°1pL | ¥¥2'298'6C 111'267'18 lZy'ses’le | L0€'L1¥'897  |091'V8ECS | €28'LYS'86l sjyouag sakojdwz
- - - - - - - - - Saljl|iqel] soueinsulay
G68'115'G8)) 16Y'628 GYZ'19€'/91  |€GL'G99'VE  [GL2'TLT'96 18G'/9V'1€ | 6VY'¥20'€SS  |196'GK8L9 | 8CL'€0V'¥ET I J0BAUOD 8OUBINSU|
sall|iqel] juswbag
9£9'G16°L19'G L02'765°108 | 188'820°99L  |¥60°L08°09Y  |v20'SPY'6LL | SP6'999°8Y9°T |SLE'902°967 |082'SS9°TZL') sjosse [ejoL
vL1'p9e'66E | - v20'LLL ¥11'18€'99 GI8'L19'}) 2601128 62.'129'C) | 1LL'162'98) |260'VE8'0C | 9€G'€96'8L JuseAinb3 yse) pue yseo
9Lt'1€5°086 | - gee'ley 89€'€6L'vEL | 1S9'V6L LT 1€0'eyL'LL 621'1V0°0 | vCr'60V'ErY |2LY'/8G'6 | €90°CK6'L8) S9|qeAIBOSY BOUBINSUIDY
veT'ove'er9 | - Lev'682 9/9'606'06  |G95'68'8L  |180'092'CS 8vy'1GE'0Z | 196'88€'00S |ELL'EBG'EE  |Z88'1TE L) sjessy Joul0
0sLzisLe |- 996 0v8'20L°0¢ 12€'09€'9 G29'789'L) G6E'7/8'9 909'99%'L0L  |6€T'LYE'LL | €0E'L00°Cy | $SOTJ0}y0Id YBnouy L anjen Jied Jy sjessy [eroueuly
090'292°218°T | - 665°€LL') 2ILYL9VSE  |8LYIOV'EL  |986'988'E0Z  |9€6'86E'6L | bS'VEG'LLL'L |€0°090°LEL | 0EETEL'9BY 1800 pazipowy je sjessy [eloueuld
916'9%6'cy | - 06l 08Y'790'9 660952} 1z'98y'e 229'16¢') ¥09'8€0'02  |296'0¥2'C L6Y'e6Y'8 sjessy Xe| paiajeq
1£8'838'€0¢E | - 069'vE} 866'/68'cy | 1816888 161'099'7C 62£'¢09'6 9z8'SyL'LyL  |¥SL168'GL | 126'60'09 S3JBI00SSY Ul JUBLISAAU]
- - - - - - - - - - Auadoud yuswysanu|
718'768 - 96¢ £€50'92) 60192 £9v'eL 612'82 2159y 6.G'9F 176'9.) sjosse ajqibueyul
921'965°909 £€88'892 G29'/€9'G8 16G'1€1'1)  |0L¥'62C'6Y qeT'LLL'6L [ 162'896'282 |LEO'GKO'LE | 90Z'8E6'6LL juswdinba pue jued ‘Apedold
sjassy juswibag
G0E'7/G'207 | 698°L5€'6C yeL'y9e (96%'6L1'S) LLL'gie'sy [ (zzL‘oLs's) 190'629'27) | 159'925'651 |659°18L2G  [2LL'6¥E'60L Xe} Jaye Jjoid
807'1GE'881 | ¥6'06G'SEL'EL | €0'LYY'0L) (gLe'czy'a) | 1p9'v20'c | (65€'909°7) 858'906'S G2e'/€9'v.  |0Z8'v69'VC | 161'19L°LS Xej} awoou|
€12'G26'065 | 09v'€60'cy 18€'GES (r18°209'2)  |8i¥'e6ezL  [(180°LLL'S) GZ6'LES'8L  [9.6°€9L'vET  |6LY'OLY'LL (69601509 Xe} 31099 Jyoid
€11'GZ6'06G | 09¥'€60°cy 18¢£'G€S (718°209°2) 81Y'e6e'TL (180°2LL'8) GZ6'L€S'8L  |9.6°€9L'VET |6LY'OLY'LL  [696°0LG09) Jnsal juswibag
068'199'G92°C | 661 ¥8°L) €28'eLY') G29'122'78¢  |€19'08G'6C)  |89G'8VLL6G  [S6V'GLLTLL | L€9'GY'VTT| [88G'9LL°C8 | TV6'86E'8CC asuadxg
£09'/85'9G€'E | 650'GE6'S ¥02'800'C 18'819'vLE | 2E0'VL6'L0T [ L8Y'1.G'€8G  |6LY'L0ELEL | €19'600'6GK L [990°€SZ'09) | 116'606'88E anuaay
lejol pun4 OIDIN snoaue||aosipN | 8|}e) pue uoljeiny Buusauibug |Jojop aulep all4 sJe|naiued

s Japjoyaieys ainynouby
(000, Ut ¥dN)

:Japun se paziewwns si 6,0z AINF 91 papus Jeak ayj Joj uonewoul [eyuswbeg

|74

har
surance

Happysurance

5

-




9. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars

As at 16
July 2019

As at 16
July 2018

1. Contingent Liabilities

i) Claims other than those under policies not acknowledged as debts -

ii) Reinsurance obligations
iii) Statutory demandsl/liabilities in dispute, not provided for

iv) Other money for which the Company is contingently liable
2. Commitments

i) Estimated amount of commitment remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for

ii) Uncalled Liability on shares and other investments partly paid

iiiy Other Commitments (specify nature)

1,83,06,513.22
(Note-1)

1,83,06,513.22
(Note-1)

Note-1 : Additional taxes and fines & penalties of FY 2064/65, FY 2065/66, FY 2066/67, FY 2067/68
imposed by Inland Revenue Office on Tax re-assessment. Tribunal decision is yet to made by

Inland Revenue Department.

10. Details of Associates

Accounting for investment in investee with significant influence is done in accordance with equity method.

The details of associates is as mentioned under

Proportion of ownership interests and voting rights held
As at 16 July 2019 As at 16 July 2018
No. of % No. of % Significant Influence
Name of Associate Shares Holding Shares Holding Through
Kriti Venture Fund Limited 450000 39.30% 450000 39.30%| Voting rights more than 20%
Kriti Capital and Investments Limited 91000 12.02% 91000 12.02% Representation in BoD
Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited 1618169 1.93% 1129117 1.57% Representation in BoD
Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 215000 1.23% 215000 1.23% Representation in BoD
10.1. Kriti Capital and Investments Limited
As at As at

Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017

Total Non current assets 7,021,538.00 7,698,910.00

Total current assets 72,968,104.00 50,593,588.00

Total Non current liabilities 1,268,971.00 676,883.00

Total current liabilities 2,484,645.00 4,887,094.00

For the year ended| For the year ended

Particulars 16 July 2018 15 July 2017

Revenue 12,386,386.00 18,163,907.00

Profit/(loss) for the year 511,265.00 1,404,491.00

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 511,265.00 1,404,491.00

*Note: Financial Statements for FY 2018/19 has not been finalized and published.
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10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

Kriti Venture Fund

Particulars

As at 16 July 2018

Total non current assets
Total current assets

Total non current liabilities
Total current liabilities

78,461,049.00
33,003,671.00

672,518.00

Particulars

For the year ended
16 July 2018

Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

(2,399,458.00)
(2,993,644.00)

*Note:

Financial Statements for FY 2018/19 has not been finalized and published.

Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited

As at As at
Particulars 16 July 2019* 16 July 2018
Total non current assets 10,173,297,000 8,181,502,000
Total current assets 10,118,964,800 5,854,407,000

Total non current liabilities
Total current liabilities

6,696,691,000

3,996,621,000

For the year ended| For the year ended

Particulars 16 July 2019 116 July 2018
Revenue 1,827,114,000 1,457,950.00
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,178,034,000 966,410,000
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,178,034,000 966,410,000
Dividends received from the associate during the year - -
*Extracted from Quarterly Published report of Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited
Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

As at As at
Particulars 16 July 2019* 16 July 2018
Total non current assets 2,106,808,000 574,777,000

Total current assets
Total non current liabilities
Total current liabilities

982,223,000

395,237,000

1,665,019,000

266,183,000

For the year ended| For the year ended

Particulars 16 July 2019 116 July 2018
Revenue 212,165,000 156,656,000
Profit/(loss) for the year 170,487,000 108,617,000

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

*Extracted from Quarterly Published report of Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Interim Financial Reporting

The Interim Report of the company is not comparable with the final report because some of the amounts
may vary due to restatement done as per NFRS since the company has not prepared its Interim Financial
Reporting as per NFRS.

Investment Property

The Company building situated at Ward No.11, Thapathali, Kathmandu is 8.5 storied and has leased out
4 stories for rental purpose which could not be separately sold. The major portion of the building has been
used by the company for its business purpose so it shall not be classified as investment property.

Events after the Reporting Date
There were no material events that occurred after the reporting date that require adjustments to or disclosure

in the Financial Statements.

Regrouping and Rearranging of figures

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary.

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Reconciliation of Total Equity reported in Financial Statements prepared accordance with
Beema Samiti Guidelines and Total Comprehensive Income in accordance with NFRS

Particulars 18/19 17/18
Total Equity (Shareholders’ Funds) under previous GAAP (A) 2,573,380,094( 2,172,116,992
Add/(Less): Adjustment on account of :

Proposed Cash Dividend to be allowed on approval basis - -
Additional employee benefit expenses as per actuarial valuations 8,725,278 12,888,417
Fair value remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation (18,003,861) (18,003,861)
Adjustment for Unearned Income as required under NFRS -
Fair valuation of investment in equity shares and mutual funds (13,263) (19,758,544)
Additional gain on sales of equity shares and mutual funds (769,521) (1,860,475)
Adjustment of amortized value of government bonds (646,002) (916,944)
Short (Excess) depreciation on property plant and equipment 8,170,390 4,535,866
Provision for Claim Outstanding adjustment (241,219,768) | (233,731,720)
Additional gain on disposal of fixed assets (48,788) (181,054)
Fair Value measurement of land and Building 378,131,252 342,483,355
Adjustment for Prior Period - -
Provision for loss of Investment (written back) 20,056,100 28,116,046
Agency Commission 17,167,346 17,179,307
Reinsurance Commission (124,558,143) (107,679,184)
Share in Profit of Associates 71,441,965 47,830,408
Additional deferred tax impact on account of above adjustment 18,126,434 39,529,212
Total adjustments (B) 136,559,420 110,430,829
Equity under NFRS (A+B) 2,709,939,514 2,282,547,821
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16. Reconciliation of Net Profit (Loss) as reported in Financial Statements prepared accordance
with Beema Samiti Guidelines and Total Comprehensive Income in accordance with NFRS

Particulars 2018/19 2017/18
Net profit/(loss) after tax reported under previous GAAP (NAS) 401,399,238 | 399,274,784
1 Additional employee benefit expenses as per actuarial valuations (4,163,138) 19,600,081
2 Adjustment for Unearned Income as required under NFRS -
3 Fair valuation of Financial Assets 19,745,282 | (22,015,701)
4 Additional gain on sales of equity shares and mutual funds 1,090,955 (901,783)
5 Additional income on measurement of investments at amortized cost 61,785 (787,361)
6 (Excess)/ Short depreciation on property plant and equipment 3,634,524 3,559,045
7 Claim outstanding reserve adjusted as per LAT (7,488,048) 66,953,508
8 Additional income (Loss) on disposal of fixed assets 132,266 (181,047)
9 Share in profit (loss) of Associate 23,611,557 5,378,604
10 Reinsurance Commission (16,878,959) | (27,527,857)
11 Agency Commission (11,961) 4,032,682
12 Expenses written off for Bond adjusted in Amortized Cost 209,158 159,181
13 Provision for Loss of Investment (Written back) (8,059,946) 19,654,824
14 Share issue expenses charged to Other reserves 1,331,253
15 Additional deferred tax impact on account of above adjustment (10,708,408) | (12,952,292)

Total adjustments 1,175,066 56,303,139

Net profit/(loss) as per NFRS 402,574,305 455,577,922

Other comprehensive income 24,953,528 38,762,858

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 427,527,833 | 494,340,780
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PBrEaw s wvaer fafies
ST QY

dwr afwfaer frmaeRT wiwer i @ afvesr

QAT ATADTT

RrEr T T (a9 g, wFaer afHuEn) 9.8, 059 e WSS QY T A9Tahl HRET U,
043 FHITH JYTAAT TITIAT AUH! Ufecisr fAfHEE HTAT 87 | TF FFIATRT BIATAT ITATAl,
FHISHATSIHT TEhT G | AT FFAT STAT FHTaare SrHT T, 0%, &1 R 90 H JUSHT 3 adr ST
fraaraet, 0¥ F a9  F1 IJutvaw 9 FHitaw fGfq 2089 A Fwifde % T dTHERT FHTT
T UTd HE ATHT AT g ATAd 9 IR T FFIAT & | T FFIAR] AR AT JAT
FXTIE AT A ITA W TFASA [AHEE (FIATAH! UHHTA Teh Tageso) HT AAATTRITHT
FRIERE! AT FATRT TRURT G | T FFAAA A9 ARSI Y, F2T rErane fAsiiad drr
4T YT TS ATTH 3 |

FEA ATHT FTANIF SHge® qdT AEEEATE ATHFT AeFeedls (Mistdd JA] FaT JaI T,
AT TRTPT FEITAPT AT TFredT ITET Fegdia T AT AHT ek aTTcdehl THHATS (e SIehuraT
FATAT T HFIATH] FHE Aradr & |

faefir foramur TaieT smaR @ fachar faamor wfter SoreThea

FEATA GTHT Frafae! Maaasr garsaaer At Heaaitaas fbda fqarer qar afusr 3 0
%) ATHT FHTTHT IHTRRT FATSAART AT FAR TRUST HFIATH [0 [eqaiel e gaed
q) T FfAfTHT FMEATERT TASHE AR TIR MRS FFE TRl [0 18 GH7ET gargaE!

T) AT FETTRT HIHTENT SR AT TR TRTH 708 9T 998 A qcd FordT THA7
o) AT AfAfTeH MaAa®nT GATSTTH! AT TR TRUHT FEAIH! STITHT TUH! TRacqTH! =1

TR T SHTCTHT FUHN qRFd FFedl [Garr qar STl THE @l Aid a1 37 qraiHe
FaTe® FHTA FUH! [aoquy |

Ik faxirg faavues qar war A gtafaer fHefrer, Smr 7 0¥, 99T AT T, 3083 ¥
@I A (3T AET TR TRUET A | ATHT AT (ARITRT 97 Tl FaAT [Fgrear=
=TT TERT Fa=ATHT ATHT GTATTRT FTETATS AaAEIT TRTH B |

FEIAT TF 083 THITH FFIATR! ATMIE AR FAHT T T faird faaer fasward qure =nde
THIIrEve IR (ASOT A6 A@IATATAITTH gqerdt fa<fra fagzor qgw afvusr 5

fareirar fara=ora S@TgUewT gvdfa, ifaca, AT, @EATe TUTT F9AT (7.%.) A YR TRUHE B

A foeRue® UqeTias dRTdH! ATIRAT TAR TRUH B |
@Shikhar
nsurance

Happysurance

1993



foirr foaRor JAR 9T FET @S R ATH T 9T q@l Adees aR] T4 HAAT T8
&l TA{adebel UiT JANT TRTEH! T |

Ik o faeroe® qur ar SOReded g Aied W@ g |

3. Wouwe giafdae facfir faavumer e
ATMIF 9 00 HTEU q TALMG 00 ATHE 34 TAGHHE! [aid faarues a9 el Gardd
afafaer Sz fHfa 00 afva © T aifed w3 )

THE @ wifiee
1 fairar faa=or qamdie! faafaamAT HFme dR] TRE THE @l Alides e aHIiTH g | A79T
ool HUFHTHT aTed AT Afdes M=y ST 9T 58 U 3 |

8. ST (Equity)
qETIATe TFEI I T AT TN T@A STARTRT T § FGT (Equity) & | TF Avaid
SPIREAT TR THT G ThH, Fioad HATRT qAT Asad FqATRTETe fafaas aiusr st #iies
TS |
FFIAT ATHAT AT (ATIT) TZehT T TTIATS ATTATTHT SR ISAT TAT FHET/ FITHT FTHT TEIA
Tdg A AT oG ATAMATS ST ArEfAS dreh SIS gEartad ararersl of A gd awqa
TEG | YEATAT ATAIT AT AR TATA ATRGT AT AATF T [GAqTH TTHT T3 |

SIST qUT &
FHEIATS ST AT T AT ATIRY ST, 97 ffaay, garfad ST 99R, W &% qead
SIS TN T ST T A= SST HIAH T8 AT B |

T B

a7 afafaer fMEem aHitaw gcie fefawerr SR o7 ggrag ST #I Ted 99 JEdH 3 |
ATRT ATFRITHATE ATUH GE ATRTATE G ATRUH T ATTAR] THH H2Te T AST AT L0% IHAATS
ek feRfaHeT STHT HITHT qIfhU THITAH AISHTS TR F |

wetfaafa seIeT Her
a7 aftafaare I L FEIE SighigHET AT IuA THEFHN (0% HETaqra SIST HITAT
AT TRTHT T | T AU STST HITHT AALAT TRTFT THHATe HH+T, ATCII(ERl, STl
HeTfadfaare goiar g+ el RgAear STANT T T |

y. fer wwfa
feor grafqes areafas fHfawET (tangible items) AT TFIAE® &9 SIS AT a1 JaT ATI(

TH, ATATS ATSTHT (&, a7 JTAAE ILeTAHT AT TN TH [ASUHT 7 T Ueh ATIF qUAT
G AAfTHT AT AN (A AT RUHT E |

T T YT 45, H=T S T Gieheg | TEARTHT HFIA (A0 T g Grafde® Taar
STEETE ATaHT i ITAT D AT TRUH §7 |

feqr TrafaeEars adATT AT ATIAH ATNT ANTHT TFI0T Geiells THTEET T ey Feid
IS T TRTH G |
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FHaare IiasAT greq T4 Al ATfIE ATHR] ARITAAr 97 A7 Gl aErdars aeaqaa
TaReT ATIT T FiebT ATIRAT [&qr Frafaep! ARTqg rIebl FTAT G TRTH 3 |

[ FFfaATdT qoae=ma AUH @=eEdars arIde! qie=rd TH ATIEUE I Tl ATTITHT AT
Frfae! FOHT1 fg=TT T | FFIHT qie=a T9 Jraedsd WIeve R A &l @=rs HHd
JAT ¥R @< @l ATRT AT A [EHEHT @Tgdhd TS 3 |

¥.90,000 w31 HH HAF JHAAls @XT TITF GHIAT @= q@TFT TH AT EH B |

. qifacagE

forRTcerT TaAThAaTe ITa TUHT FFIAIH] STAF] IMIAe®, TAH! HEAF a@q AMdF a1 g
T aATfEfe TRITEAT @ AT TR g7, § FFIATH AMTAE g | FFIATH! I A
AR farque 2Ty, epT=T fam afehT fafrare aradiess, SepT=l famque Araier, SsRiiar sarsies, aredr
TR ffaaw smeaT, fafqg aEes a9 o= Ifacdes Tea |

. AT

FEATE® AMREd THT TAT AT T AT g1 | AqATS AP TTHAT AT Targ
g STl AR [T TEATHAATE MAcAb] (FTAAT a1 HTAATCHD) ATEIT IoI~ geeg T Al
TaEH AT a@d ATMGF AT g AT e TrTadT sl g7 ¥ Tl aigcadrs [aeaaird
TARATE UMET T Fichr AATAT T6+5, | SAATATH VAT / ATHTT T&T ETAH] A, favTaerr avars
7 Hiehd Midesdrs A=A MG, | AT FH AGATHT, FTeag={r TUHET T ThiPUd! aTcaemed
AGTS TR | AT SAAEEATE GEATET STkl TTHT AT T, |

TRIT UG [IRTaRl ST faavurel ATeRAT ST T ThH Gl T TRTH B T FT @
AT Tl THY Al TEae] TUHT SFFXAT GHATAA TRUH B |

FHART AT FTEAT
ATRT AT EdTe AT Y ATTHN G AR (0% THH FHANT AFE ATqAR] AT TR
@

FHHET fagT amder =
FHAT (a7 Aaaert @< faar arad qehtr g afdqafd 84 3 A1 HFiel @iekd [aaaaar aHieH
FHARIEEATS aTis o2 faar, fawrdr faar araq gam wfer afqafd odeqT )

IUETH TAT T2 BIS
TITFTRT FAT afg ATTT AU, FFIAIRT ST FHAREE HHIAIH dardre (Had gar qar= T
T IS, TIT F=od HIUh] AT T |

FHHATS FafAd STAT F=o B9 a1qahl SMAcae® (THIUH] AT ThH STEAT T3 ATSEHT g | AT
ATEE fAfese ANTETH AT (Defined Contribution Plan) &7 T TFHT FFIHIh! ST, HITHT TNTETHH
AT FeHld THT dehehl geqvH AT GIfHT B+ |

FEIAH] TR [ATAATTATHT AUH FaTAT THITTH FHANEE JAH TG, TAT T=oAT FHITP]
T TUMET T ITebebl TR (accrual basis) AT ATHT ATRITH fE@TeHT @9 Af@UR B | 59T HIT
FTIART I Ted FledT (e Teg | Toied araerd Mfaasy SUaT ardde! S diraeTar
TUET T AT F qh! ATedq AIEATHT FIRRE TRTHI G | FISTH QMIcT ATIdb! ThH ANTE

AT HITRT FISTH HITHT TMGAT TRTH! 3, |
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AETEA qATIHT Feafaeed! (A1 gaT8 a1 gfg a1 qMfacaceed! FHI gIhl HR ATdE ATTEH 15
T SARGAEEF] STATH qfg (TIARIATEE THT ANTAT qTeeh) g 91F &1 | JTTAT STHT Ao
HTRRTHT, AT AL, T, HA TAT 7 q1E AUH! AT, THId q9T IIAH! [HETeme It
I e 9EEA |

AT ST e At

AT 9o ATRRTAT AT UA, ST ATl ST aHINH T8 FIierl Aremear afed fAfq fagsr
g, T AU @A JHITH G | q¥ AT ek AR G I (ATqTeaT S esb SRt
IO fAfq afg ToAT afgedr fAfqar e ameeTer aret Aifq fasus g )

JAEHT FTHR T aT9d YT & STAT 9ot ATFRTAIR] J@Tgd GIEHTAT Accural HTITRAT TRUHT & |

T ek U AUHRT dGl AATIRT AT THHSE GTeq HUHT ST qafael afedl auqar gq qra+
AT ATERTAT ATAT ATHT T8l YW Gg GRS @IATHT AETH G |

RISl GIATHT ATGUHT THHATS IS aUewaT STHT Fafdl T arfas SaaT ST ek ATFaTT

e AT TBH B |

AETHT IV TR qerse st

qHAATHT FHFIATEE YT FAAATS AE YT a1 TAe A FFIArare THET YTqehl ATIRHAT AT
q@r3T TR B | Profit commission @TE THAETHT HFIHIT HUHT TERIAT ATAR (LTI TRTHT
Y TG TG a7 ASTAT FFIAIEre THET Yol ATERAT AR AEghd TRUH F |

ATHTI 31T

IR ANHIETE Ul g G ATATST AT ATHIT T g AT T AUH(g d@rsd Mg | @ia
TRUET FEAHT AT FHATRET AT ATRTATE VT TR ATAAATE @RE FHAF! AT AT g
AT FAT GEATIA HISATs Agrold ATTAH! AAATH TTHT @5 e | @XE AHTH! ATe a1
qfgepT ST AT FEATI HoATE TUAT I ATHIITATS AIsh AR TTHT AQIH T |

T ATALLT ATTH FIHT F Fadl T Tl g AURA TG ATHIT A5 FTTHT FLbedl TRY
T ATehl Teehl THHBT ATATRHT A@TF TR B, |

AT SR GO WS AT YT g4 ATRR T HUATard A TS T@ed J@rgd e |

Rty foreiare WgaT aw /gt
fea Teafaept T/ SToer@ TXHT RO TUHT AT TAT &THIeTs AT AIer@d Tb THIAT ATRT a7
ATFATAAT FHTALT TR, | AT TAT STHIHT ITOAT A FAep! [aiiane 9T @3 ThH q47 feharar
e Frarept faetarars fog femg |

qT AT @3 9T @A ATAR GIEHTEl ATIRHAT (Accrual Basis) TRUHT 3 |

AT FTHTTERT ARl AT TET A, FSAT AT AT AUHI ATTATE AT A1, 7 JAF
FHAT STAATTRT TR FAT FFIATR! T THH ATHE TATAH! 7T T4 (Net Worth) @Tg ATHRT AT
feamare R "l Frafead ST SEAreEr AT g FhrEaET ¥ ATRT A EhraHT aigwie T
qifeq & B
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90. EEE
TS AATTHT FFATAewdd! aTed JaTe al &d aT IMIcAeehl GoTdT gl HIROT ATdE ATHH! FHI
T SOREHE&H] STATHT FHT (SIRIATATS LT [qq0 ATeeh) A9 7 @ & |

FHART e

FEIATS FHATNEEATE YT Tl FaAT AT9d AL I Fel [{aHepT aedre FHATT @= A0
)

FHAT GAHT BT THINTHET TS

(F) ABTATT FHART Gole®, T Jod, T, foar arqqepr afqafd

(@) Farare Had wudleg TRl g9 IS, I99 HY MG, T

HHBTATT FHAT Gob] @3 FHAN GaT JEF T T a7 Far FaF Tl HRO &fadfa
(qrfediitrer) 9T T At fasHr 9T ge=rg i |

a1 fAaa 9uafs Gl g4 @Hadl AErsd = Ga1 A Thl BRI A&l diqafdss (
qIRAITE) I T ATIRRD! (T ACAT TR |

BN &g '

BT AT qrITehl IUATNTAT AT T TOTARTe faferaista § g9 &1 (eIl e qfg=
T Al gk feR TEiaes geTgy TN TS MRS @ | o fear weataeT Heawn T
TH U9 ATEF YAF AATRT 1T AT qral qUHl ATRT A9 fGQradr qQ@rEdd g |

T A G HARATIART AT FTET TANT T 9 2479 ¥ feafqan e "=mem a1 SO are
U qfeg ZT HER! TUET T g | FFAIRT (€qR qerafdesdl SAaeaTITel ATHT Tl aTediaes
JIATNTAT AT (Effective Useful Life)T ATITRHTIHER JUITAT (Straight Line Method) &1 #TITRHT g9
FHET AT TH AIq AFATAT TRTHT G |

AT ¥ar Yo
FFIATA AT UH, 0% & THT ¥O & ITEHT R THITH Bl ATHT Tesbebl § T TeH ATAT
AT T AT G AGTGHA TH G |

AT SREW SIET (Unexpired Risk Reserves):

T fATwTEet, 0% IR QU @) AT FFIAT oI, AEiEE, Jie, sfiiatey, garg | & qar
fafae 9T % @3 ST Tk ATFRTHIB] LO% THH AFAT S@H SHISTHT IE@TRUR B | T
AT TRUHT THHATS Aol AT TTAT AT TAGUH @ | ¢ ATHEF ATHRT ghaT T8
AT TRUHT THAATE 3 9 GIgehl ATIF TUAT AR STATSTH 3, |

&1 aTud et

F FEATTRT (BT TeAT=T JAA SR &7 Hed FH TUHT B g TUHT &A1 a7 T BT
AT AT &9 TUH! eTHIATs & ATIdqh! AR TIHT ATRI-ATFRT [EQTaH F@rg" TS, |
STTEE HTETHT, GRS ST TAT FehaUed e 97 faeiid FEqE®aT AUhl Hioaraarsg aqgiaerd
LT T ATHRT AT [EdTe A=aiid AT @3 T AIfd HF=Idl AI9T0R © | Sth Aq<dT
TRTRT THEA UTT ATHAT I FUHT ATTIF TUAT AR @rs= T G |

(37) TR FrETet SAaeT
fardras aSTRHAT GeI6d AMAIH] FFAT, FA AR ARTAART [dArds aoRare dd TH Fichel
THH FH g GUHAT & qIT AR FaedT T g | [aras aeiear IiRasaq sRian

@Shikhar
nsurance qqq

Happysurance




Eef SRTTATRT BPHT, A T AfepT THH (recoverable amount) T IUAT AT faara=esT o ?&c—«‘Tol'fT
HATIRHAT Mg | 8T AT AR AaedT (haTel Hed YT g o Hedwwal a¢l AUH aad
fetor fewg; |

fHepTaRT STATHT ATIRHT (equity basis) FHETor Tfews | =A< fAaizor quepr agqe T AfeT TFH
IR ANTAART FH JURT TALITHT, &7 ATl FaLdT M, |

(311 fR wwFuafaer &= (Impairment Loss)
FFEATA FFIANAT T8 GaT8 T G670 g4 q97 o Ferdes a1 GrIfdeed] THed (931 78
JATEA=T T TE [EaR qeqiae qauwaT AT GHeH! GfEe TH S A TR el TIh

T AR AHUHEH T&d] GEIAh! & ATacAehl AT Seaed RE |

I Fiqaan HTqwT, FFIwrer ATRAT F TETAT faaTder qTUeEAT qie=r AwHr & qrar
HIETTHT & AEH! T U THIH THEEH HATRA Mo | T ALEE (AT TEHT, FHFIAl
TIEAT TFITAR] AGA T Alehed THHPB! ATHT T4, | AT AHATAH FAqA T Al 7oA feparar
Hed AT el FUHT favae! auesdr A GEIel AN TRTHT & AR 23aF AR o@rgT
S |

AAGY &=
ATTFET AT TF TUHI H, AT FT AT AGTIIEF T FEATeIT H FTAAZRT feizor afeaar
99 ATTHT AT TS, |

aATT BT

FEATA ATAFL U, 045 AT TAYATT ATTHY TTHAT TUH! FNITH! ATTTHT Mg AR FTEqT
TRTHT B | FAT faxira faarorar Seo TRUHT ¥, F AR TAT ATReh ATTT FrATAdare
[HER TRTHT FT A=T FF FH FHG |

T &Y

fairar faamor aameepT qwafa qar SMcasl YA TAT HIHT AR Bk T3 2T g AT
A=Y (Temporary Difference) T FRI AIATHT 2STAT & &< ST qAT FFITAR] T el I
TR FIHI A@I TRUH G | TF HT GHq qIT I TIT THHT AT T aUAT F=G1aT0
AR FHTATSA g7 qFg el qUHT AN TAGRT AN AE Hebehl HIehl ¥ AT BTAB] FXhl 3T AN
B SATATT TRUST B | A A F AEaars Aaed mar w2 an 9 fafsa wE 5w #w
AT ATHT FHTATS T GO ATHA T A@IEA TRTH B | 97 A@TAT (et T THITH
forfrar faramoraT ToRTe FRaTe SIaw gRqd T quarafa 79 faxir faawomr @ w7 qwta qar
TIAATE AT T q= G A= SETIUR G |

TRl gTicage

I STIcae®HT SeTd THITSTHET [quTes FHEL TRUH B

(@) faaEr gearhHare I g W aEdl FWIad qMAcaEE SHH AT AT T ar
TFAT TE AR TIATRHEE AFTe THE, T FFIAIH Faeauw=T aie whl 573,
ar

@) faTd®r GEATR AT IA AUHT d¥ SETAHT HIRUTA &l BT AGIST ARUH! MIcAe®
- qMged [TEET THET AT ATF ATH g FId aAlE TFAEAT A8 Hl,
- ifIea "I T AlEd TAT [Iead{ T AR AU |
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IIRITh aTedh dTa] AUAFAS! FHU R (Material) ITAEH! AT TAT a2l TRUH G | FRAT
artgcasr afgsrar fees afvoma |qrga 9 "fEd gard faegaarg Ara A9YUR] @USHT Il
Tfocaarg Fifad Siaed A= @Tss, |

ufy y&x s

ATIRET 9 19X ATFTAT (basic earnings per share) FFIAIHT ATRY SREAIEEEH AN ITAH
ATRT 3T AT STITRAT, Td JRIRTT TUHT, (ARedr qearaqare TUHl AThRT a7 Araamare o<l
SRR ATNT U ThH FHAHT ATITRHT TOMAT IS, | AT AT ATATRIT STIRLATRT ATHT
3IqAST ATRT a7 ATFAAATS AAIITRT AT AT QIR N7 F&ATd 0T T ey |

TONET AGTEA ey
AT A=ANT ATHTAT AT TTRTEATT Tl (HETT, TFRT REATTTe® gug, feasar, ardfes
FPITRT AT ST+ TS FEITRT STATAT TR Al AT TEBHA |

AR FAfqEF T grer T grafas SEed Afed TRUST TS (79T AXRRE] a=dqa a1 HrT
AT FATA FIHRB] STHAT YT HUGTAT TRTHT AT A5 F9Te @I STHINTH AT Hedw
HATETRAT 99 THH (Tas) qor ure el g2 (FeThTave) ag ATl Sehd FHTA/GHTATTT T
AGTST TT T TS AT fafd (effective interest method) T ATTRHT ST ATEETAT A@TST
THOH qTaeTT 7@ 991 ArAT Atafaer MEmeHiaH e v RE aeded a1 HoraT a1 9
TXHRH STATT ITl HTTTH TSB! TAIATS Afebd Al AT A A HH S el G Alel Hea#H
@IS TRTHN B | AR AT AT TR Hed FGl ATAT AT T61 IhHATS ATHIh] AT
afemr suer@s T RS ) |

afedter [AfHeE HFITel ST TRl HITAEEHH] AMMAT A@TFT I HeAR! ATIRHT TRTH B | TR
HAAT TR Hed FH ATAT HH AUR] THHB AT T A1 fquet g |

AT AAETTRT (e S| i HFIATRT SRE TR HedHT AUH! TR HRITA FoTaT
qUH ATHATS @TST TRTEHT T |

S qor faxira TRt Hedl fEqHT TP g AaT THHHT I@IEUH G | AR AT AR
T FHTET 15 H FROEL ThTA (Rl g AARAT oTAT THUHT AT AT FXTaRHT TG
T+ fafa fawer g

Y& Teag YA s

fareeft Hamar T2 Twta o qfcrEETs aUTTHT el [T HT R ST SYATHT TR TRTHT
B | B faaell 51 g fAfq a1 Jorue fafqer #em wd fafHaa e drarR A darsd
T B A @ O TUAT qUET ATAT FAH TeH! [ATHT TR ATRAT Tk T S IHHATS
fafra=aT AT a1 | e I@reT Aid AgdET MRUH B |

AAT FTATTHT FARTTRT ATITRHT HFATIT @RI Q0 FATA THH ATHRT AR EqradT @9 @re
ATl THEAATS THATeIT ATHT AR FTT AR AT ATTHAT HIHTT HET T & AT IHHATS
TG ST ATAIRT AR WA Fo STAT AGEqTTh] AT AT [EAEHr aighie T Aid EHl 3 |

AT gTel WeRTE S dETse it
FEIATA ITETRT AT IO &7 SAHTAG FHITH AHTAT T I THH JAT IT T4 BGATSHT AT
AP RIAL TN ATHAT G GHTAL T @I TRUH G | TR ATHbR] TRIHR AT FHATA

TR FTHH! TIRATHE T A @ ATTqBT ThH THATAL ThT o |
@Shikhar
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AT Tt aTua qTiice SawT wEsd it
AT AT, 0% FHINH AT TUEN FTAHT SThHTAT &1 ATl Teehl qTaT aTad e SqaedT
gg e AT FrEr THHB Q9% Ffqerae TRUH 3 |

ATRT ATFT [EETaeTe ATCH @3 ATHTTE T F ST (Deferred Tax Reserve) aTIdd! THH
FHTATSAA T Tl TEehl THHBT YO FIATd ThH AT FrHfaerr faaerd aHifsrs geies frfawepr
FITHT AT Y [GEATIE ATTH] TR ATITTAT T FAFFTT ATTHT FT BITHT ST aRTREBT THH
afg argwTE TRUHT T | FThrdl Lo Ffqerd ThH SShISHN AT Jqded Thg AT ATHRT Aragry
femeraT SHTSUeR g |

AETfaufe HIer FreT
a7 gtafaewr [ET THITH SISRISHT AT JTA ATHRT THHAB! 0% HEHaard TAST HITAT
LT RTH F |
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ey s svast faties

ST Q%
fachiar faerurir wrafem s wrmdt femofiee
q. FRTfaa qTRIcaE®

9.9 TTRT T HTATT g STl TMet
FEAATRT ST a1 RTAT & STl AT ST |

9.9 Ve ufeer@ar (Underwriting Commitments)
FEAAT Bdf fpfaaerr geamdfa 9fqagdr (Underwriing Commitments) STTET TT¥ehT ST |

9.3 JATIE FOdHGT SIEhdlE HAHIUR GIET UVl a¥ S GIiicd LAY A9Ieehl gIried © THUH!

9.3 FHTIE TIaHeT aIadhaTe [qSUHT JATRUET
FFIAT STHTCRG ST aTeeh el qiF [ehiHepT TIRUar fauer S |

9y 3 FRITTaA gTRIcaE®
ATF.R0%Y /SY, R0%Y /%, R0%E /%9 0%9/%5 FI JUd &2 (LRTare AT feaior
TH g9 FHY TIT ARATT 5.9,53,0%,4931%R F1 favg A= Ioeq [qare T TaREaadisdTew!
1T e feguarar a1 feaea faarmar faamifas w@@rer A En e MaRer TWWEr 99 w7
qAT AT rATfaa Sfocael Tq9T B B |

2. VTR I STt el AT AT AeATE NG STaavae ARYHT TREE
forTa auEwe! I¥a T ATHT AT T TRFT ITET TATSHAR! ATIRAT ATANT ITET (o
TRTHT G | AT FATATET, 0%, B AT AT Grad T ARl ATATAT ST
FFIATRT AR §94% o G ATSH THH Il aT9d HILAT TRUH B |

3. wrafawT difvaar qur faages
FEATH] GEARTHT B 4T Aeerar qor faarees argesr g |

8. Ui ufaagar
FEE Y PR o afEaar T O |

Y. o grafe wig el TRedEEsT 7
give TRUHT rafae! T@iies Y THUHT @ o |
fersr wifvuerr edfaerT STEhTT OTeT & TEhEl ¢ B |

€. U9 TEHI FARTHT T ot fasey ¥ fimat fager aomefier faemor

T TRTET TAMHTEEeh! faazor

ferarur TE T
qATA ARBR D HATT -
TS Sebepl  HOAT 3¥99%0,000
anforsar et et fAard ¥¥0,400,000
fereprar Srepept el fdrg 9%¥,04 300
fa=irar Same! Hedr f9ed 33,000,000
gfeeteh FIAIRT 9T EEERLERLE]
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Tst WA iRt WowT et

faeRuT IEH .
AT AXRRBT T ¥ Y JY,000
ST SFepebTHRTaT ¥,000,000
aforsr e HEedT e ¥\9] 400,000
fererer Sepept qEalT fdg Q§,49 00
fercira geaept |l e ¥,000,000
qiecteh HEIIRT AT a¥,R9Y,95Y%
9. ¥ e fraw

T g HEATEwATE HisaTd GHAT I I TdbHl g |

. umdtAesr feama fram
qAarHEa faq ¥ faq afer feara avawaar anfds aw 00y /9% e FETRT GEAE GHIT 97
I TS ATAAF FHAS TREAREH B |

B. et faquerer afvareer
TS TRPR TAT AT A Fehebl FUSHT U ATH AT ATeeh TG HEIwT Tl T FeAterdy
A U, et qar drer afafaer fAdem awifiam w@E g | e RER TG A T SRR
JUg TEA=aRAT AT T THHATE STHT ATATTRT (AE9T awitoTs aforsd sfepebr Heell ferasr e
TRTH 3 |

q0. Frafeerd ARFTRT HIRIETR
T AfATaERT RN FEANTT qEE FFaedT e aiteas aifds a9 00¥19y J1 Fearas qur
IITIFEEF! =Jaqra 1 grawefra &+ 9fq 737 fiwgrag ardr afeesr 37
HaTreh FifdeT Seeaeedts waw Afvgwt gfeaur
FATeTE ATATTR AIEEATS AT.d. 0L /9% AT STTRTHT TRUHT THHT T GeAehl (gavT
faaRur & T.
e AT TEF AT 4,1¥0,000
GTeTE ATATTRT ToF @ %5983
o+ afAfaet doF war 54,000
o afafaet Jo& @+ ¥09,3%0
THE SEGRT Sfdaars uat Tiger glewr
aifd F aY 06U AT FFIATH THE FTAFRT AldEHddrs AR TRTH T AqTH [Fa07
[RESECIEEECCICE
fqaxur IHA T.
SEEREIRSI 99,34%,00%
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9.

0.

93.

8.

V.

%.

0.

.

.

TG FEAFRT AGET ded A [N THEEEATS TRl TRUH qad q97 e
feamor T T

SEERSRIR:S RV TR 9%

A Ieeiad dTadh THE PRGN Adhd T Tarddhaedls HFAIH [MaATael AR qar dfadT,
Togd qT FAR FiadT [$eusl § |

e STORAT FUTeehT GRETUTAT ol Ufel SRUTeT frmT, ord o afifercar

FFIATA ATAISAHT AT AT SFeheeehl HEel Aqaee JAT FFIATRT T q4T Faq faar arg
AAHINAT HOT FraeT (qUHr G | I AABINAT HIT aATTd (IRl §.99,5%9, %% AT GodATs
AT G AeaTd U TRUH! ) |

HHEHA Y TAHT JHTUTIR WITT IR 3T.d. qAT AT TThT YATUT U g arept oma. ¥ W qeamedt
faavuTer T SrftreAT T A EEHT BT TG TS A gl UNeT ¥ AW ST.a.AT HTRTET HUSHT IhH
FFIATER] AT T, 30\9% /09Y T FY T THIT T YT TEAHF! G |

firat sReT dWTyeReT afvATOT T @®RUT

T AT AT FFA B, 39 4% 9% AH] ok [MF FRIEE TaT Hdl TH G |
F.  fafqae! ARIHT dTHIE THH HSUH

g RRRT AMATE ST &d Tl

M. FFET YUTAGRT ABRI ATHTAE ST & TR

o

g

éﬁmﬁwmnﬁ@ﬁmm

AT Ooft 7edr TR HTPTet WTW (Paid in advance), WTRTHT WG g &TeT (Calls in arrears) ¥ WO
ARTHT TR U forshroe Aurfeuet JrReT faavur

=[ThT TSIl Wl ATIH TThAT YT (Paid in advance), SIThTAT YT &4 @@l (Calls in arrears) ¥ JTd

TR T2 G T AR S S

forer gieg aruta ¥ WieT USSR (Amortization) ¥FeiT faawuT
FEITERT Tt Eleg THafd @ S |

AAATT AT(ERBT FRIAR®T [q@aRuT
FEATS a9 AT ATAATT AMfERebT B G (BaHePT FRER TPl B |

stftre aviawwor wrafoua wedgweT faavor
FFIATER! Aol a0 FT THEITIT %A @9 €935 935 Wl G |

WA &Y
0% FER 39 B AT AT 91 T F Fefd /Facaa! [Fazor Hear 3 |
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Q0.

.

N.

CER

8.

T FHY R X qiidea fqamor T drgr | aq nfie aster | aifewr A
IS qqT [T arda e 9%,9R0,R%0 SR3,0%% 9%,R%¥3,34%
T T 90,050,k (R,%99,%53) VB %&R,505
FIA HOTART GTTTH 5%%,0%% %R,9¥5 ]R5,99%
feow gwata amaa 903 ¥ ¥\ q,¥05,300) (0¥ 5%0)
STHAT R8, 080 YRY (RR¥0,¥¥3)| R¥,530,059

T b dr9dehl SISl (Deferred Tax Reserve)

T FUFEH TITH FT TS FIT (Deferred Tax Reserve) AT &. 8,090 Y3Y TEHIHT J&Id FuHT
F.2,2¥0 ¥¥3 Udl & ¥.3¥,530,05] &% FFGHT {¥ AT IW@EUH T |

A% AW (Cheques in Hand)
AT 9% A <Ak HioaTd aTqd &.9%% §¥3 & AT A 0% ATSH @ TEIHT FFIATHT b GITHT
ST AEAdE G |

fafaer smamt
fafaar ey wel S ROA d=aId ST qURT STHT AG AvAIAR! ATATH TAT ATeAT AT BT
AT AT ATIdH! [Aqae A FHET G |

ardr fafay araml AT faurd o o HT AR SEaeT BH TREhRT ATEH TR 5.%,994,5%5
AT T |

A9 AT
A AT A H FX ATR T ATRTH §0 GIAqT THA FHEART GG AT9d ATT TRUH G |

HHATST ATATHDT AGELIT
FHAT ATATAR AT AT TRURT ST

T

8.9 T @Yo

T Ftafdqare 084 /1 ST ST T9 drHEd! [ (@R g Meae™ ST g wwar @t
FTIH TEH! ATHT BITATIAR THH T, 2 U ¥0,35 @15 [aTTHT dTg=T 1% Fid HIEROT UL
TIHT T@IEHAT TG AT T AT THAATE TSR] THHAT A1g ATIAT 4R AT I@EUH 3 | 4T
TEHAATE AT T fe@Taehl =l ATATTHT Tedh [h{aHepT STHTT STHT HTTHT I@ISTHT B | STHT
TawTEer aHItTH g8 ATHTHN L0 AT THH ATHIRITAT AT FTIT AUHAT =T AT HT 4O
GfFeTasT=aT afee ATHTRITHT THH AT Fe =Thl Ioil aTeR SMH] FY HIH TRTH G |

faaor & .
T AT, TEIHT ST BT THH 535,59%,091
FAGET ¥ B AR SESTETE SATHT HITAT AIRTH THH 5 ?,%¥0,35%
TR AT feQrarare qivuesr THH 3 95,249,300
T A1 9. FFHb ATHTRY THH q,049,390,500

8.0 THHB! UeAcHIIHRUT T UAGHEIHRUT
TT qUF THFHEEATS ATAYAFAT AR TR0 T JAGHETHLT TRTH G T T ATe®
fAepad® ®UATHT TE@TEUH G |

@Shikhar
nsurance

Happysarance | qQ3



rrd
o
o
@
O
S
- - - - ot ort 20"k %0°% ¥'b red BlsBlh Blollb lhekolb |3 [
bt %08 (2 BoRd By R Wb 2%'b FONY tR'b BlsBIK L2k 1epplkle oD M,,
122 kbl i 3 Ik [bPBIklE lbrh bl | % (/) =
or’en SRk Syat 2275k or'%e Sr%b S2'%b RERYY abox aR'RE INET 2k 1Rkl 183 hble he DI .klnﬂ
2 Lk 1eBRlklp ek heblpk hb ki | A e
boRaE 32%k ara'st %akR xak'bob PR abo'bix bRRFRE RER20% RRRBRE ik Lok 1ebblble 12 bl bb | & (@))
0 '0% IR 227%6 22736 to'bX RRRY 0%'e0 br'ak PRYY PR blsblh b lblpls 1Bl blnk
b bi 2 L@k el Lble b3 ik | 22
0076 toth a2 RO 2%y 33 BR ok 2%'0% 60 Rk 6otk Dlsblk ey lplo @ik Lplek 2 b lplb Iple b3 lplwk | by
PRI *oRERE axt'aot boo'baE  [Ebd'2t PRF 0 1 JINA S bRARAR bREER b3z'00% Lk Blehe @ kb Blehd | ok
obtx b2'ox ko ERIR 2%°bR AR AERR bo'oy ¥R2% 227%) BlsRIA EP bhikebhe 2 kP Rlahe | Sh
ob ob bb b 2h ot K& % 62 tob Lk L2k Lbkblkls | 2}
tob obb 28 oxb tab bkt K2y pEH o’% or3 Lk bk Lleb | ab
1) o 0 ¥y o % 23 23 % X% ok Ltk ekl bl | b
XX% ont 28t ot'R a2t 2kt o 2%'0 to'h 00’ Bliblb @ihlp b 2 bb Lkt Wekle bip %
b3'bb ER'bb %8'bb %2°bb a3'bb 3E'bb 62" 22'0b 32°bb at'xb BlsBlh @lilitlp b 2 bR bhikykke | 2b
2'bb REh Sbob &b'ob 22'bb PERY bR bbob 28'bb 60"3b Blsblk e lilble b 2kl blshie whlpbh | &b
) FERY ¥ ob ) B0 ab'ab SHX ax'x oy2 28 Blsblk Lisde > Lblltb bk 2 bl 2lblind 2 Lblbb | b
RS 02 %200k R obt2b 6 53b 22'0b %2°2%b EyERb 2 kkb BlsBlh Blib b 2 els bl b | bb
bty L1 3b'be 2% RY FYRYS ebiak 2375 AR 20°% ExbE BlsBlh 2 Litlp b 2 Lhlb 2B | ob
Stok oa'ht 28bt by ¥R oxaR ERbR 3X'bX o R0k BlsBlh ellitlp b 2 wlslblp 2B | S
ba'2b EOR e Y2 Reh &&'bb 20'R% %0°RK 20 23R Blhbke (oney 3d) blhble lplotlle w2k | 2
00k 00'R0% 00k %08 0’% 0% SRR bas'h %2% %2% 2 (Sdd) b2k 2lisk 2kls LIE |6
Eh - obe’ ¥o'be oo’ok 1313 2%bEY xR0k - = @ (SdQ) Lol 2kls BIK | %
R EYR PN bo"3R bbax RO'RR oR'b3 thoy EO'AR weak Rt 2 (Sd3) klke 215 ik | %
PROMESEE | RARDR [ SERWBROR | 25%BRR%2 [bebarbbeb [3x2'abyoby | 2bEbbi%or »320%t000%t [226'20k%%E | 60REBAROR S Lshlb 2B | &
%bokb %0'b2b a% AL 0330k br3%b 3333 FLRTN ¥ bt LR ROX S8R 2 ok lplbdh) 2kl BIA | &
000'0%:'b ooo'oxe’b | o0oooR:’b |0o0'o¥a’h |oranad:  |obbAakE | Eab%0'% E23i0ba yobtaxob sob%ak'ob L2k L2k 2kl | &
seatabab | robRraxd | brebibad [w0bhobhik [H22B3b k2R [EhEtan2be | R202aktea’h | akt'onkten’h | E2R0StabY | dEt'rerank S JIR-TN R
63/330¢ | 23/630¢ | A3/230% |06/a%02 | b6/0602 | E6/bAOE| Ba/Ea0E | 8a/Ea0t | Re/8602 | B6/ROOE | Zlwrbh lnabb) | RY
L wpjie
azzionh B
62 -Lezhbie

S0 Ushede RedlweZ 2B



R == wvuer fafes
M. 004/okE BT oY T SrguTa

. | U T TSI P IGEIGH
(BSTTHT) (FSTRAT)
q | AfET AITaEEE g

9.9 | % fawmeTed AT Afg (T AT TR TAATHSE)

F faATeTehAT Alg (ATl a§ TR TAATHE) R5,055.4¥| 3,335,999, ¥% RRY

R9 | Gz fqwmeredHT gig (@9 a9 FH qAATHS)

9.9 | #f=

R9.R | Hrex g

9.3 | "HisE
R9.¥ | sffaafey mm
9.4 | EaTE A

R9.& | TerHElT qUT ATl
R9.9 | fafae

R94.5 | o &

R | GE AT dfg (e av FH qAATCHS) (304,85 %) 9,49, .3% 3,00
9 | afe dmr (RIRUNR) AA I (R¥Y)
RRR | FEfEE FrE RE,%94.30 9R,95R.3% 1¥R.9R
3 | HIEX & (31¥,40%¥.50)| q,RUY,TIIRR (R¥.04)
RY¥ | sfifrafeg A (M3RRE.¥Y)[ LY R50.53 (R9.%0)
AL | BATE A (R,94%.49) 9055549 (5Y.1%0)
9.5 | Terdel qar aredr ¥ ,4R.98  RER¥Q.R ¥0.3
9.0 | fafay RRALRLR| 9RY,5RO.4% RR3M
9.5 | Y AT q,304.%% EY AT R.=9

3 | ST afeg 880,639.33| 2,993,933.99 99.9
Teft variar ¥ Sieneit
¥ | 951 ¥ g STEET gETeRl daTd 9,¥03,303.00 ¥ 55§ ¥¥Q. ¥R 30.09
Y | gz faHATere® T Sl 9,35%,95R.44| q,¥03,30%.00 R9.%%
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INTERNATIONAL

AUDITOR'S REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHIKHAR INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shikhar Insurance Company Limited(referred as
‘Company’ hereafter), which comprisethe Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2077(July 15, 2020),
the Statement of Profit or Loss, the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended along with notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position
of the company as at Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and the Companies Act,
2063.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of Financial Statements of current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N. Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

a) | Claim Incurred: We verified operational guidelines of the
company relating to claim processing, have
performed test of controls, test of details and
analytical review procedures on the outstanding

Insurance claim is the major area of expense for
the insurance company.

Total claims incurred include paid claims, claims. Verified the claim paid and provision on

outstanding (OC) and claims incurred but not sample basis with payment proof and preliminary

(enough) reported (IBN(E)R). loss advice received from the cedant company
and the same is further verified from the surveyor's
report.

For IBNR and IBNER, these cases has been
captured by the actuary appointed by the company.
The actuarial valuation of liability in respect of
claims IBNR and IBENR as at July 15,2020 is as
certified by the company’s appointed actuary and
we had verified the amounts and the related liability
based on such report.

Further, we have examined the appropriateness
of key assumptions and information provided by
the company to the actuary.

Narayanchaur, Sama Marga, Naxal, Kathmandu, Nepal, t: +977-1-4415682, 4415823, e: info@gpr.com.np, w: www.gpr.com.np




S.N.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

b)

Net Earned Premium:

Net earned premium is the major area of revenue for
the insurance company.

Net premium income is the differential of gross earned
premium and reinsurance premium ceded.
Gross earned are arrived at after deducting unearned
premium reserves from Direct Premium and Facultative
Inward Premium.Unearned premiums are those
proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to
periods of risk after the reporting date.

Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total
premiums payable, for the whole cover provided by the
insurance contracts entered into the period, which are
adjusted for unearned reinsurance premiums.

We tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over
Revenue Recognition.We verified underwriting
documents and premium calculation thereon
as per regulatory requirements and internal
policies of the company on sample basis along
with receipt of the premium. Verified the premium
ceded from the treaty or policy slip as the case
maybe.

Unearned premium reserves and unearned
reinsurance premiums, based on 1/365 method,
is as certified by the company’s appointed
actuary. Further, no need for Premium Deficiency
Reserve is also certified by the company’s
appointed actuary.

Investment valuation, identification and impairment:

Investment of the company comprises of investment in
government bonds, in fixed deposits of various banks
and financial institutions, debenture and in quoted and
unquoted ordinary shares of various companies. The
valuation of the aforesaid securities has been done in
compliance with NFRS 9 and IAS 28. The investment
in the government bonds, fixed deposits, debentures
and preference shares has been done on Amortized
cost, investment in associates is measured following
Equity Method as per IAS 28 and rest have been valued
through Fair Value through Profit or Loss Account. The
valuation of the investment requires special attention
and further in view of the significance of the amount of
the investment in the financial statement the same has
been considered as Key Audit Matters in our audit.

We tested the design implementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over
valuation process of investments.

Sample checks for actively traded equity shares
are performed by us to determine the
correctness of the valuation of these

d)

Impact of Covid-19

Covid-19 is a pandemic that affected life and business
of people all around the globe. Major Impacts of Insurance
Business are:

- 1/3rd discount on the premium rate& 50% discount
on RSD/MD/DT for 83 days in case of property
insurance of factories that were closed due to
pandemic.

Since the matter imposescreated impact on the
performance of the company, we have considered this
as our keyaudit matter.

We verified the calculation of the premium
rebate provided on sampling basis.

Furthermore, due to COVID 19, we
havemodified our audit approach and most
of the review of underwriting procedures
has been done from Head Office instead
ofBranch visit.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statement in accordance with
NFRSs, and for such internal controls as management determines necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or has
not realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement whether caused due to fraud or error, and to issue auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can be arising
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the requirements oflnsurance Act
2049,Companies Act 2063 and other regulatory requirements: -

We have obtained all the information and the explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company

The Statement of Financial Position, the statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and from our examination
of the books of accounts of the Company, we have not come across the cases where the Board of Directors
or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss damage to the Company or violated Directives issued by Insurance Board of Nepal or acted
in a manner, as would jeopardize the interest and security of the company, its shareholders and insured.

Returns received from the branch offices of the company were adequate for the purpose of our audit though
the statements are independently not audited.

We did not obtain any information indicating misstatements in preparation of financial statements.

Company has maintained Catastrophe Reserves, Insurance Fund and other required reserves in line with
Insurance Board’s Directive.

We did not obtain any information indicating engagement of the company in activities other than insurance
business.

We did not obtain any information indicating issuance of insurance policy other than prescribed in Insurance
Board’s Directives by the company

Liabilities undertaken by the company is found to be sufficient to recover from assets held by the company

The business of the company has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its jurisdiction and has
been functioning as perDirectives issued by Insurance Board of Nepal.

CA. Gopal P. Rajbahak
Senior Partner

G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accounts

Date: January 4, 2021
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
UDIN : 210105CA00004d1bgf




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 (15th July, 2020)

Assets

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties
Deferred Tax Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates
Investments

Loans

Reinsurance Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Insurance Receivables
Other Assets

Other Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

Equity & Liabilities

Equity

Share Capital

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Share Premium

Insurance Fund
Catastrophe Reserves
Retained Earnings

Other Equity

Total Equity

Liabilities

Provisions

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Insurance Payables

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Loans and Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Fig. in NPR
Notes Current Year Previous Year
4 873,207 892,872
5 623,883,859 606,596,726
6 - -
7 75,562,819 42,956,516
8 - -
9 79,346,813 303,858,831
10 3,034,494,126 2,709,474,536
11 - -
12 2,088,524,379 1,851,102,522
21 67,578,879 90,753,183
13 1,214,045,662 950,531,476
14 225,800,837 258,278,288
15 149,983,847 138,390,581
16 538,197,550 399,364,174
8,098,291,979 7,352,199,705
17(a) 1,057,310,600 1,057,310,600
17(b) 194,674,500 -
17(c) - -
17(d) 1,057,310,600 1,057,310,600
17(e) 132,381,114 91,825,940
17(f) 428,319,186 93,098,975
17(9) 452,866,903 410,393,400
3,322,862,901 2,709,939,515
18 153,812,656 82,372,262
19 3,136,727,230 3,036,614,418
7 - -
20 975,066,482 1,004,140,576
21 - -
22 183,386,418 154,566,874
23 101,356,378 143,290,610
24 225,079,912 221,275,450

4,775,429,077

4,642,260,190

8,098,291,979

7,352,199,705

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Shrujana Shrestha Rajendra Prasad Shrestha CA. Gopal Pd. Rajbahak
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director Chairman Senior Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Siddhiman Basnyat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Independent Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: January 04, 2021
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Income:

Gross Earned Premiums

Premiums Ceded

Net Earned Premiums

Commission Income

Investment Income

Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Other Income

Total Income

Expenses:

Gross Claims Paid

Claims Ceded

Gross Change in Contract Liabilities
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers
Net Claims Paid

Commission Expenses

Service Fees

Employee Benefits Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Impairment Losses

Other Expenses

Finance Cost

Total Expenses

Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net
Profits of Associates Accounted for Using Equity

Method and Tax

Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted
using Equity Method

Profit Before Tax

Income Tax Expense

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year
Earning Per Share

Basic EPS

Diluted EPS

Fig. in NPR

Notes Current Year Previous Year
25 3,305,592,653 3,371,060,185
26 (2,097,909,592) | (1,914,409,778)
27 1,207,683,060 1,456,650,408
28 538,847,556 535,054,567
29 273,349,679 270,250,889
30 2,471,160 19,745,282
31 18,389,424 8,317,812
32 2,032,667 11,940,387
2,042,773,546 2,301,959,344

33 1,665,832,392 2,306,936,364
34 (806,123,579) | (1,179,980,825)
35(a) (62,664,587) 468,378,166
35(b) (10,566,031) (470,290,438)
786,478,195 1,125,043,267

36 29,963,930 34,198,006
37 11,436,046 12,861,895
38 398,246,687 378,787,284
39 18,046,925 19,650,382
40 - -
41 160,454,671 152,262,754
42 20,736,373 11,841,599
1,425,362,827 1,734,645,187
617,410,719 567,314,157

9 (62,695,152) 23,611,557
554,715,567 590,925,714

43 145,457,233 188,351,408
409,258,334 402,574,306

50 - -
38.71 38.08

30.44 29.94

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Shrujana Shrestha Rajendra Prasad Shrestha CA. Gopal Pd. Rajbahak
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director Chairman Senior Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Siddhiman Basnyat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Independent Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: January 04, 2021
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value

Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for

using the equity method
Income Tax Relating to Above ltems
Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments

Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method

Income Tax Relating to Above ltems

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax

Fig. in NPR
Current Year| Previous Year
409,258,334 402,574,306
14,096,000 35,647,897
(4,228,800) (10,694,369)
9,867,200 24,953,528
419,125,534 427,527,834

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Shrujana Shrestha

Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya

Chief Financial Officer Director Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: January 04, 2021
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Rajendra Prasad Shrestha
Chairman

Siddhiman Basnyat
Independent Director

As per our report on even date

CA. Gopal Pd. Rajbahak
Senior Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Fig. in NPR

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received

Commission Received

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers

Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Others (to be specified)

Other Income

Change in Other Liabilities and Other Financial Liabilities

Cash Paid

Gross Claims Paid

Reinsurance Premium Paid

Commission Paid

Service Fees Paid

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid

Other Expenses Paid

Others (to be specified)

Change in Other Assets and Other Financial Asset
Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investment Properties

Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties
Rental Income Received

Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Payment for acquisition of Subsidiaries/ Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates
Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments

Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares

Purchase of Debentures

Current Year

Previous Year

3,468,579,943

3,401,794,307

537,366,038 | 551,933,526
565,857,047 | 1,275,409,971

- 273,883

2,058,110 11,026,661
9,334,457 |  (40,245,942)
(1,635,142,575) | (2,200,062,886)
(2,295,691,324) | (2,192,349,770)
(37,792,896) |  (26,594,084)
(34,901,469)|  (34,088,057)
(394,954,966) | (307,542,453)
(159,667,672) | (139,323,300)
(1,334,788)|  (19,074,740)
(179,683,593) |  (227,793,523)
(155,973,688) 53,363,593
(135,000) -
13,789,843 16,557,254
(16,385,012) |  (26,416,946)
30,271 929,205

(61,145,811)
63,654,134
(2,702,904)

438,134

(146,361,000)

(88,905,100)

(60,604,481)
72,258,803
(975,627)
257,669

(247,150,000)

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures 15,000,000 5,000,000
Purchase of Bonds - -
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 18,475,000 4,525,000
Investments in Deposits (571,060,000) | (726,575,200)
Maturity of Deposits 531,250,000 686,075,200
Proceeds from Finance Lease - -
Loans Paid - -
Proceeds from Loans - -
Interest Income Received 245,230,730 251,564,777
Dividend Received 3,185,014 4,089,064
Others (to be specified)
Seed Money in Micro Insruance POOL (345,571) -
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] 92,917,830 (109,370,381)
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flow

For the year ended on Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
Fig. in NPR

Current Year | Previous Year

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid (20,736,373) (11,841,599)
Payment of Finance Lease - -
Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital 194,674,500 -
Share Issuance Cost Paid (868,436) -
Dividend Paid - -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - -
Others - -
Increase (Decrease) in Bank Loan Overdraft 28,819,545 105,964,192
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] 201,889,236 94,122,593
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3] 138,833,377 38,115,805
Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period 399,364,174 361,248,373
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period 538,197,550 399,364,174
Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand 917,614 346,075
Cheques In Hand 232,123,856 196,643,666
Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)

Gold Coin 855,819 792,608
Balance With Banks 304,300,261 201,581,825
Notes:

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using Direct Method.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Shrujana Shrestha Rajendra Prasad Shrestha CA. Gopal Pd. Rajbahak
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Director Chairman Senior Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Siddhiman Basnyat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Independent Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: January 04, 2021
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

1.

General Information

Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on 15th
Jestha 2061 and operated as general insurance company after obtaining license on 16th Kartik 2061 under
the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at Thapathali Kathmandu. The Company's shares are listed
on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on January 4, 2021.
Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as per the provisions of
The Nepal Chartered Accountants Act, 1997. These confirm, in material respect, to NFRS as issued
by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are
consistently used.

(b) Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets
& Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value
ii. Defined Employee Benefits

ii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for
Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
or 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable &
the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

(c) Use of Estimates
The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
reported balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date
of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
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on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the financial
statements.

(d) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

(e) Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
pro?tability, cash ?ows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it.

(f) Changes in Accounting Policies
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an
accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the ?nancial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other
events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
N.A.

(h) Carve-outs
N.A.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
i) Recognition
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for
more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to pro?t or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

ii) Revaluation
After recognition as an asset, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, have
been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount
as at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally
qualified valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase
is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation,
is recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.
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Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

iii) Depreciation
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s

Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line Method
(SLM)/ based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting
date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Land Not Applicable

Buildings 50

Leasehold Improvement Lease Period

Furniture & Fixtures 20

Computers and IT Equipments 5

Office Equipment 10

Vehicles 10

Other Assets 8

iv

~

Derecognition

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future
Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

v) Impairment
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi

~

Capital Work-In-Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress
would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress
is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Intangible Assets
i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is re?ected in statement of pro?t or loss in
the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
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Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

ii) Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either fnite or indefinite. An intangible asset
shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net
cash inflow for the entity.

Amortisation is recognised in income statement on straight line method over the estimated useful
life of the intangible assets or diminishing balance method from the date that it is available for use
since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLMis categorised as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Softwares 10
Licences Licence Period

iii) Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk
specific to the assets.

(c) Investment Properties

Cost Model:

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciaiton or both, is classi?ed as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.
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(d)

(e)

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the
date of change in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

Cash & Cash Equivalent
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash & Cash Equivalents includes
Cash In Hand, Bank Balances and short term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

Financial Assets

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case
of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisation of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income in these financial
assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets
are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit
or loss.

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial
Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not
derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued
to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
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or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

(f)  Financial Liabilities
i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the
Financial Liability.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition
AFinancial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

(g) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

(h) Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the resinsurer's share of
insurance contract liabilities.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred
after the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts
due to it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount
that the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company
reduces the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

(i) Share Capital
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do
not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

() Reserves and Funds
i) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other
than share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium
is allowed for distribution of bonus shares.
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ii) Insurance Fund: The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 50% of the
net profit every year as per Regulator's Directive until the fund equals paid up capital.

iii) Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which
is 10% of the distributable profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

iv) Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount
of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s
directive.

v) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by
Insurance Board.

vi) Actuarial Reserves: Reseserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation resuting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions.

vii) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction, and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in other comprehensive income.

viii) Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipments
& intangible assets, other than the reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged to profit or loss.

ix) Other Reserves: Reserve other than above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve, others (to be
specified)

(k) Insurance Contract Liabilities
i) Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating
to the unexpired term of coverage.

Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written
premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired
period of the polices.

ii) Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related
claims handling costs.

iii) Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, the
ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial position date.

The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection
techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse
deviation.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets
relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the
carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the de?ciency is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

As per the circular issued by the Beema Samiti, the unearned premium reserve(UPR) are evaluated
at an overall Company Level and the Company is expected to hold UPR as suggested by LAT
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report or Statutory UPR (50% of Insurance Premium and in case of marine insurance the amount
kept at reserve fund for at least three years shall not be considered to be profit) whichever is higher.

() Employee Benefits
i) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the Statement of Financial Position.

ii) Post - Employment Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plan
The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as
per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contribution are recognized as Employee Benefit Expense when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan , the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position.
Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in
which they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits
are already vested and otherwise is amortized on a Straight Line Basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Statement
of Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted
for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any
Asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

iii) Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

iv) Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these
benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

(m) Revenue Recognition
i) Gross Earned Premiums
Gross Earned Premiums are arrived at after deducting unearned premium reserves from Direct
Premium and Faculative Inward Premium. Direct premiums comprise the total premiums receivable
for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the reporting period. They
are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.
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(n)

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The
proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

ii) Reinsurance Premium
Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided
by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts.
Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate
to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the
term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of
the reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented
as negative items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with
how the business is managed.

iiij Commission Income
Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they
are deferred and recognised over those future periods.

iv) Investment income
Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the EIR method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the
financial asset are recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

v) Net realised gains and losses
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if
a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits
paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer
financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i) Fire Portfolio - Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts
of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss or
damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily included among
the risks insured against in the fire insurance business.

ii) Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use
of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

iii) Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

iv) Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides
economic safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and
machines and equipment in project operation.
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v) Micro Portfolio - Micro insurance means the insurance done for the protection of life and property
of people or community with low-income and possessed to risk due to economic, social and
geographical reasons.

vi) Aviation Portfolio — Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for
passenger injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or
damange to Cattle and crops.

viii) Miscellaneous Portfolio — All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above categories fall
under miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances,
Professional indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.

(o) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(p) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

(q) Leases

Finance Leases

Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
classi?ed as Finance Leases. Assets acquired under Finance Leases are capitalised at the lower of
the Fair Value of the Leased Assets at the inception of the Lease Term & the Present Value of Minimum
Lease Payments. Lease Payments are apportioned between the Finance charge and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The Finance Charge is allocated to periods during the Lease Term at a
constant periodic Rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are classi?ed as Operating Leases. The company has recognized accrued lease for the period as an
expense on incremental basis (as per lease term) considering the general inflation as more appropriate
than Straight Line Method considering economic benefit rendered by leased assets and in accordance
with the provision contained in para 34 of NAS 17 Lease.

(r) Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets &
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in Financial Statements, except when the Deferred
Income Tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time
of the transaction.
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Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

(s) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets
(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to
determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as interest expense.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution
and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes
that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any
probable cash outflow.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms
of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow
of resources are provided for.

(iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are
not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(t) Foreign Currency Transactions
The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

(u) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by
the Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(v) Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income &
Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are
considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

4. Intangible Assets

Fig. in NPR
Specified)

Particulars Softwares | Licenses |Others (to be Total
Gross carrying amount - - — -
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 4,077,779 - -| 4,077,779
Additions 135,000 - - 135,000
Disposals - - - -
Revaluation - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 4,212,779 - - 4,212,779
Accumulated amortization and impairment

As at Ashadh 31, 2076 3,184,907 - - 3,184,907
Additions 154,665 - - 154,665
Disposals - - - -
Impairment losses - - - -
Impairment reversal - - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 3,339,572 - - 3,339,572
Net Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2076 892,872 - - 892,872
Net Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 873,207 - - 873,207
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

6. Investment Properties
Fig. in NPR

Particulars Land Building Total

Gross carrying amount - - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -
Depreciation and impairment - - -
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
Depreciation charge - - -
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -
Net Carrying Amount - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -
Capital work-in-progress as at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
Additions - - -
Capitalization - - -
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Capital work-in-progress as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - -
Net Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2076 - - -
Net Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2077 - - —

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss for investment properties

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year

Rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income - -
Profit from investment properties before depreciation - -
Depreciation charge - -
Profit from investment properties - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

7. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Intangible Assets 252,786 335,073
Property, Plant and Equipment (39,017,966) | (37,489,097)
Fair Value Gains/ (Losses) (2,006,421)| (29,800,467)
Provision for Leave Encashment 6,163,505 4,399,062
Impairment Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets = -
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - -
Unamortized portion of Bond 928,774 928,774
Deferred Agency Commission (4,739,906) (5,150,203)
Insurance Contract Liabilities net of Insurance Assest 77,059,061 72,365,930
Gratuity - -
Deferred Commission Income 36,922,988 37,367,443
Total 75,562,819 42,956,516

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liablities)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

Charged/(Credited) to Statement of Profit or Loss
Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

42,956,516 67,299,736
36,835,103| (13,648,851)
(4,228,800)| (10,694,369)
75,562,819 42,956,516

Investments in Subsidiaries

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars Cost

Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Shares of Rs
Shares of Rs

each of
each of

Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
......... Shares of Rs....... each of ......... Ltd. - - - -
......... Shares of Rs....... each of .......... Ltd. — = - -
Total = = - -
68hikhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Information Relating to Subsidiaries Fig. in NPR

Percentage of Ownership

Current Year | Previous Year
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............eachof ................ Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs.............each of ................ Ltd. - -

9.

Investments in Associates

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Associates
Investment in Unquoted Associates
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

—| 229,530,107
79,346,813 74,328,724
79,346,813 | 303,858,831

Investment in Quoted Associat

es

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars Cost |Fair Value |Equity Method| Cost  |Fair Value | Equity Method
Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd. - - - 161,816,865 -| 161,816,865
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - -| 45,019,698
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - - - 22,693,544
Total - - -1161,816,865 -| 229,530,107

Note: Investment in Nepal Reinsurance Co.

recognised at Investment measured at FVPTL

Ltd. has been deregonised as Investments in Associates and

Investment in Unquoted Associates
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Cost  |Fair Value | Equity Method| Cost  |Fair Value | Equity Method
91,000 Shares of Rs 100 each of
Kriti Capital and Investments Limited 9,100,000 - 9,100,000 | 9,100,000 - 9,100,000
400,000 Shares of Rs 100 each of
Kriti Venture Fund 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 | 40,000,000 -| 40,000,000
215,000 Shares of Rs 100 each of
Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited 21,500,000 - 21,500,000 | 21,500,000 - 21,500,000
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - 3,728,724 - - 2,810,710
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years
being financial statements published in
current year only - - 1,421,761 - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - 3,596,329 - - 918,013
Total 70,600,000 - 79,346,813 | 70,600,000 - 74,328,724
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Information Relating to Associates

Fig. in NPR
Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Particulars Year Year Year Year Year Year
Name Kriti Capital and Citizen Life Insurance Kriti Venture Fund
Investments Limited Company Limited
Place of Business Kathmandu Kathmandu Kathmandu
Accounting Method Equity Equity Equity
% of Ownership 11.28% 11.28% 1.23% 1.23% 21.62% 22.22%
Current Assets
i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,628,425| 3,677,539| 229,832,000 12,461,377 | 42,365,986
ii) Other Assets 67,817,378 73,379,950 607,819,000 1,665,019,000| 22,877,925| 11,731,452
Non-Current Assets 8,532,437| 10,139,717| 3,694,114,000| 574,777,000| 161,435,995 | 130,852,680
Current Liabilities
i) Financial Liabilities 1,449,830 1,435,265 3,030,285 2,410,530
ii) Other Liabilities 1,134,695 847,432| 563,980,000 266,183,000
Non-Current Liabilities 3,143,015 2,789,744
1,973,613,000
Revenue 19,028,635 17,653,106| 115,003,000 156,656,000 12,062,759 | 12,589,574
Interest Income - -| 156,940,000 12,062,759 | 12,589,574
Depreciation and Amortization 2,415335| 2,239,399 - -
Interest Expenses 195,399 134,090 - -
Income Tax Expenses 891,670 78,052 2,105,675 (387,321)
Net Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations (1,874,065) 296,634 200,718,000{ 108,617,000 6,205,424 | 6,247,386
Post tax profit or Loss form Discontinued Operations
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income (1,874,085) 296,634 200,718,000 108,617,000 6,205,424 | 6,247,386.00
Company's share of profits
Net Profit or Loss (211,349) 33,453 2,465,964 1,334,437 1,341,713 1,388,308
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - -
10 Investments
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Investments measured at Amortised Cost
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
ii) Investment in Debentures 508,686,000 377,325,000
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 20,000,000 38,536,786
iv) Fixed Deposit of "A" Class Financial Institutions 1,800,810,000 1,764,500,000
v) Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks - -
vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions 259,600,000 261,100,000
vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions 55,500,000 50,500,000
viii) Others Debentures of Public Company
Less: Impairment Losses
Investments measured at FVTOCI
i) Investmentin Equity Instruments - -
ii) Investmentin Mutual Funds - -
iii) Investment in Debentures = -
iv) Others (to be Specified) - -
Investments measured at FVTPL
i) Investmentin Equity Instruments 369,533,926 199,097,416
i) Investment in Mutual Funds 18,973,511 17,370,216
iii) Others - -
Seed Money in Micro Insurance PoolE 1,390,689 1,045,118
Total 3,034,494,126 2,709,474,536
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/

Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions
Others (to be specified)

Total

b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds

Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with "B" Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposits with "C" Class Financial Institutions
Others (to be specified)

Total

150,892,061

18,973,511

20,000,000
1,777,310,000

254,600,000
55,500,000

170,097,416

17,370,216

18,475,000
1,307,000,000

231,600,000
50,500,000

2,277,275,572

1,795,042,632

c) The Company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 1,050,786,000 to Insurance Board.

11. Loans

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loans at Amortised Cost
Loan to Associates

Loan to Employees
Loan to Agent

Others (to be specified)
Less: Impairment Losses
Total

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to Associates
Loan to Employees
Loan to Agent

Others (to be specified)
Total

Sh

K
n
-+

har
surance

ﬂPPt’I“}‘ﬂI’lﬁe

| 159



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

12. Reinsurance Assets

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance Assets on:
Unearned Premiums

Provision for Premium Deficiency
IBNR and IBNER Claim
Outstanding Claims

Margin For Adverse Deviation
Less: Impairment Losses

Total

1,373,430,009

210,533,474
494,108,968
10,451,928

1,146,574,183

128,702,438
575,825,902

2,088,524,379

1,851,102,522

13. Insurance Receivables

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurers

Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

503,578,608 467,178,155
710,467,055| 483,353,321
1,214,045,662| 950,531,476

a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurers

Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Total

503,578,608 467,178,155
710,467,055| 483,353,321
1,214,045,662| 950,531,476

14. Other Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

Claim Advance

Advance To Suppliers

Staff Advances

VAT Receivable

Printing and Stationery Stock

Stamp Stock

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses
Finance Lease Receivable

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

12,647,086 13,442,296
147,735,147 | 178,424,964
49,618,916 49,243,685
15,799,687 17,167,343
225,800,837 | 258,278,288
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

Claim Advance

Advance To Suppliers

Staff Advances

VAT Receivable

Printing and Stationery Stock

Stamp Stock

Deferred Expenses

Deferred Re-Insurance Commission Expenses
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses
Finance Lease Receivable

Others (to be specified)

Total

12,647,086

13,442,296

147,735,147 | 178,424,964
49,618,916 49,243,685
15,799,687 17,167,343

225,800,837 | 258,278,288

15. Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits

Accrued Interest

Other Receivables

Other Deposits

Sundry Debtors

Others

Bank Guarantee Margin
Advance against investment
Less: Impairment Losses
Total

29,571,858 20,300,274
72,053,466| 72,263,357
38,780,042| 37,565,345
10,603,026 9,240,901

1,091,353 1,036,603

- 100,000
(2,115,898)|  (2,115,898)
149,983,847 | 138,390,581

a) Expected maturities within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Security Deposits - -
Accrued Interest 29,571,858 20,300,274
Other Receivables 69,937,568 70,147,459
Other Deposits 38,780,042 37,565,345
Sundry Debtors 10,603,026 9,240,901
Other
Bank Guarantee Margin 1,091,353 1,036,603
Advance against investment - 100,000
Total 148,892,494 137,253,978
Shi khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

16. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Cash In Hand 917,614 346,075
Cheques In Hand 232,123,856 196,643,666
Bank Balances

i) Balance with "A" Class Financial Institutions 229,362,302 130,643,699
i) Balance with "B" Class Financial Institutions 55,256,567 55,086,395
iii) Balance with "C" Class Financial Institutions 19,681,391 15,851,730
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months - -
Others - Gold Coin 855,819 792,608
Less: Impairment Losses S -
Total 538,197,550 | 399,364,174

17 (a) Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

ii) Share Issue

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Ashadh 31, 2076

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Ashadh 31, 2076

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

Total

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

20,000,000 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Issued Capital:

10,573,106 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
10,573,106 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Total

2,000,000,000

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

2,000,000,000

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

(ii) Preference Share Capital

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Authorised Capital: - -
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
Issued Capital: - -
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital: - -
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each - -
Total - -

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Number of Shares Percentage
Current Previous | Current | Previous
Particulars Year Year Year Year
Promoters
Government of Nepal
Nepali Organized Institutions 1,046,737 | 1,046,737 9.90% 9.90%
Nepali Citizen 5,297,127 5,297,127 50.10% 50.10%
Foreigner - - = -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (A) 6,343,864 | 6,343,864 60.00% 60.00%
Other than Promotors
General Public 4,229,242 | 4,229,242 40.00% 40.00%
Others (to be Specified)
Total (B) 4,229,242 4,229,242 40.00% 40.00%
Total (A+B) 10,573,106 10,573,106 | 100.00% | 100.00%

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 1% of the aggregate shares in

the Company:

Number of Shares Percentage

Current Previous | Current | Previous
Particulars Year Year Year Year
Bikash Jung Bahadur Rana 774,191 774,191 7.32% 7.32%
Buddha Air Pvt. Ltd. 849,221 849,221 8.03% 8.03%
Ang Chiri Sherpa - 727,904 0.00% 6.88%
Gaurav Agrawal 1,362,535 1,362,535 12.89% 12.89%
Kailash Prasad Sirohiya 428,305 428,305 4.05% 4.05%
Pabitra Kumar Karki 177,230 177,230 1.68% 1.68%
Ang Dendi Sherpa 110,771 110,771 1.05% 1.05%
Shekhar Basnet 110,771 110,771 1.05% 1.05%
Rajendra Prasad Shrestha 385,802 385,802 3.65% 3.65%
Lomash Investment Pvt. Ltd. 369,231 369,231 3.49% 3.49%
Jitendra Baheti 222,178 222,178 2.10% 2.10%
Kiran Prakash Pandey 158,241 158,241 1.50% 1.50%
Pawan Kumar Agrawal 184,618 184,618 1.75% 1.75%
Shashikanta Agrawal 522,271 522,271 4.54% 4.94%
Chanda Sherpa 748,933 121,317 7.08% 1.15%
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

17 (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Total

194,674,500

194,674,500

17(c) Share Premium

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus sharess
Transaction costs on issue of share

Others (to be Specified)

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

17(d) Insurance Fund

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 1,057,310,600 828,819,011
Additions -| 228,491,588
Utilizations - -

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

1,057,310,600

1,057,310,600

17(e) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2076 91,825,940 73,390,049
Additions 40,555,173 18,435,891
Utilizations — -
As at Ashadh 31, 2077 132,381,114 91,825,940
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

17(f) Retained Earnings

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As at Ashadh 31, 2076

Net Profit or Loss

Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets
Transfer to/ from reserves

Capital Reserves

Insurance Fund

Catastrophe Reserves

Insurance Reserves

Regulatory Reserves

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserves

Depreciation on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
On Disposal of Revalued Property, Plant and Equipment
On Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI
Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of share

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax

Others- Prior Period Expenses

As at Ashadh 31, 2077

93,098,976 (118,776,684)
409,258,334 402,574,306
9,867,200 24,953,528

-| (218,951,306)
(40,555,173)| (18,435,891)
-| 35,084,172

-|  (12,602,703)
(9,867,200)| (24,953,528)
(32,606,303)| 24,343,220
(868,436) -
(8,212) (136,138)
428,319,186| 93,098,976

17(g) Other Equity

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Reserves
Insurance Reserves
Regulatory Reserves
Fair Value Reserves
Actuarial Reserves

Revaluation Reserves 377,304,083 367,436,883
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves - -
Other Reserves - -
Deferred Tax Reserve 75,562,819 42,956,516
Total 452,866,903| 410,393,400
Shi khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

18.

Provisions

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

i) Defined Benefits Plan

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligation
Bonus Provision

Provision for tax related legal cases
Provision for non-tax legal cases
Others

Total

20,545,016

129,896,946

3,370,694

14,663,541

64,338,027

3,370,694

153,812,656

82,372,262

(a) Additional Disclosure under of Provisions

Additions | Utilised | Reversed o
During the | During the | During the | Unwinding

Opening
Year Year Year of Discount

Balance

Closing

Description Balance

19

®Shikhar
nsurance

Provision for tax
related legal cases - - -

Provision for non-tax
legal cases - - -

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

i) Defined Benefits Plan

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligation
Bonus Provision

Provision for tax related legal cases
Provision for non-tax legal cases
Others

Total

1,401,882

1,321,519

1,401,882

1,321,519

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unearned Premiums
Premium Deficiency

1,978,729,331

1,815,951,932

IBNR and IBNER 455,344,004 | 369,922,205
Outstanding Claims 680,148,960 | 850,740,281
Margin For Adverse Deviation 22,504,935 -

Total

3,136,727,230

3,036,614,418
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

20.

21.

22.

Insurance Payables

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers

Payable to Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Total

189,403,370 | 815,320,392
785,663,112 188,820,184
975,066,482 | 1,004,140,576

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurers

Payable to Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Total

189,403,370 | 815,320,392
785,663,112| 188,820,184
975,066,482 | 1,004,140,576

Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (Net)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities
Income Tax Assets
Total

177,311,299
244,890,179

174,702,558
265,455,741

(67,578,879)

(90,753,183)

Loans and Borrowings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bond

Debenture

Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdraft

Others (to be Specified)

Total

183,386,418

154,566,874

183,386,418

154,566,874

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Bond - -
Debenture - -
Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - -
Bank Overdraft 183,386,418 | 154,566,874
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 183,386,418 | 154,566,874
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

23. Other Financial Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares
Payable to Agent

Refundable Share Application Money
Payable to Insured

Lease Liability

Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payable
i) Salary Payable

ii) Bonus Payable

iii) Other employee benefit payable
Audit Fee Payable

Others (to be Specified)

i) Gratuity Payable

Total

636,502 9,833,123
209,000 209,000
36,509,378 24,089,509
5,945,215 60,359,405
1,963,338 835,928
334,500 334,500
55,758,445 47,629,146
101,356,378 | 143,290,610

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares
Payable to Agent

Refundable Share Application Money
Payable to Insured

Lease Liability

Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payable
i) Salary Payable

ii) Bonus Payable

iiiy Other employee benefit payable
Audit Fee Payable

Others (to be Specified)

Total

636,502

9,833,123

209,000 209,000
36,509,378 24,089,509
5,945,215 60,359,405
1,963,338 835,928
334,500 334,500
55,758,445 47,629,146
101,356,378 | 143,290,610

24. Other Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 7,049,182 7,594,021
VAT Payable 59,037,832 52,259,592
Dividend Payable 50,217 779,869
Deposit Premium - -
Deferred Commission Income 123,076,626 124,558,144
Insurance Service Fee Payable 35,866,056 36,083,825
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 225,079,912| 221,275,450

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Payable within 12 months:

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
TDS Payable 7,049,182 7,594,021
VAT Payable 59,037,832 52,259,592
Dividend Payable - -
Deposit Premium - -
Deferred Commission Income 123,076,626 124,558,144
Insurance Service Fee Payable 35,866,056 36,083,825
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 225,029,695 220,495,581

25. Gross Earned Premiums
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Direct Premiums 3,385,429,484 | 3,434,866,030
Facultative Inward Premiums 82,940,568 -
Gross Change in Unearned Premiums (162,777,399) | (63,805,845)

Total

3,305,592,653

3,371,060,185

Portfolio-wise details of Gross Earned Premiums

26

Facultative Inward Gross Change in Gross Earned
Direct Premiums Premiums Unearned Premiums Premiums
Particulars Current Year (Previous Year|Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year |Previous Year|Current Year|Previous Year
Fire 751,598,004 | 679,152,480 - (36,222,762) | (23,815,727)| 715,375,242 655,336,753
Motor 1,383,321,293| 1,602,316,183| 69,650,104 -| 74,672,393 1,795,613 [ 1,527,643,790| 1,604,111,796
Marine 189,555,703 179,190,619 - -1 (151,207,930) 3,051,933 | 38,347,773| 182,242,551
Engineering 172,688,455 108,557,429 - (32,065,513) 74,396,681 | 140,622,942| 182,954,109
Micro 62,373,843 1,522,558 | 13,290,464 (37,070,874) (661,804) | 38,593,432 860,754
Aviation 263,262,996 278,762,512 - 7,749,758 | (26,165,082) | 271,012,754| 252,597,430
Cattle and Crop 109,452,210 100,439,496 - (4,506,357) | (15,757,440) | 104,945,853 84,682,056
Miscellaneous 453,176,980 484,924,753 - 15,873,887 | (76,650,018)| 469,050,867| 408,274,735
Total 3,385,429,484  3,434,866,030 [ 82,940,568 -1(162,777,399) [ (63,805,845) | 3,305,592,653| 3,371,060,185

Premiums Ceded

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

2,324,765,418

2,148,676,483

Reinsurer's Share of Change in Unearned Premiums (226,855,826) | (234,266,705)
Total 2,097,909,592 ( 1,914,409,778
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

27.

Portfolio-wise detail of Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

Fig. in NPR
Premiums Ceded to Reinsurer's Share of Premium
Reinsurers Change in Unearned Premiums Ceded

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Fire 628,795,533| 583,874,312 (22,460,611) (30,984,915) 606,334,922 | 552,889,397
Motor 585,648,233 661,187,762 37,769,764 (187,196,935) 623,417,998 | 473,990,827
Marine 163,590,885 131,385,965 (154,913,818) 17,786,176 8,677,067 | 149,172,141
Engineering 172,223,689 107,138,240 (32,542,725) 63,517,556 139,680,964 | 170,655,796
Micro 61,205,648 - (30,602,824) - 30,602,824 -
Aviation 249,614,218| 277,233,568 13,809,675 (31,135,529) 263,423,893 | 246,098,039
Cattle and Crop 88,408,316 56,939,035 (15,734,640) (11,050,788) 72,673,676 45,888,248
Miscellaneous 375,278,896 330,917,602 (22,180,647) (55,202,271) 353,098,249 | 275,715,331
Total 2,324,765,418 2,148,676,483 (226,855,826) (234,266,705) | 2,097,909,592 | 1,914,409,778

Net Earned Premiums

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Earned Premiums

3,305,592,653
2,097,909,592
1,207,683,060

3,371,060,185
1,914,409,778
1,456,650,408

Premiums Ceded
Total

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums Net Earned
Premiums Ceded Premiums
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Fire 715,375,242| 655,336,753 606,334,922 552,889,397 | 109,040,320 | 102,447,356
Motor 1,527,643,790| 1,604,111,796 623,417,998 473,990,827 | 904,225,793 | 1,130,120,969
Marine 38,347,773 182,242,551 8,677,067 149,172,141 29,670,706 33,070,411
Engineering 140,622,942| 182,954,109 139,680,964 170,655,796 941,977 12,298,314
Micro 38,593,432 860,754 30,602,824 - 7,990,608 860,754
Aviation 271,012,754 252,597,430 263,423,893 246,098,039 7,588,861 6,499,391
Cattle and Crop 104,945,853 84,682,056 72,673,676 45,888,248 32,272,178 38,793,808
Miscellaneous 469,050,867 408,274,735 353,098,249 275,715,331 115,952,618 | 132,559,405
Total 3,305,592,653| 3,371,060,185 2,097,909,592 1,914,409,778 | 1,207,683,060 | 1,456,650,408
28. Commission Income
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Reinsurance Commission Income 537,366,038 | 551,933,526
Deferred Commission IncomeE 1,481,518| (16,878,959)
Profit Commission - -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 538,847,556 535,054,567
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

29,

Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Income

Fig. in NPR
Reinsurance Deferred Commission Profit Others Commission

Commission Income Income Commission (to be specified) Income
Particulars Current Previous Current Previous Current |Previous | Current | Previous Current Previous

Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
Fire 207,080,219| 176,073,176 | (1,350,688) | (29,753,399) - - - 1205,729,532|146,319,777
Motor 154,363,968| 237,376,921 | 6,400,000 (2,700,317) - - - - 1160,763,968|234,676,604
Marine 46,650,833 30,161,721| (2,807,209)| 13,808,649 - - - - | 43,843,624| 43,970,370
Engineering 23,389,770 17,059,636 | 2,490,601 (493,414) - - - -| 25,880,371| 16,566,222
Micro 1,234,235 - (327,072) - - - - - 907,163 -
Aviation 20,130,365| 14,417,414 | (663,284)| (2,279,711) - - - -| 19,467,081| 12,137,703
Cattle and Crop | 14,904,278 6,035,212 | (2,217,266) 113,173 - - - -| 12,687,012| 6,148,385
Miscellaneous 69,612,370| 70,809,446 (43,563)| 4,426,060 - - - -| 69,568,806| 75,235,506
Total 537,366,038 551,933,526 | 1,481,518 (16,878,959) - - - | 538,847,556 535,054,567

Investment Income

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Income from Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Costs

i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions 167,946,209 | 189,771,022
ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank - -
iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions 24,640,260 26,444,951
iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Instituions 5,555,241 4,989,841
v) Debentures 46,890,673 20,531,085
vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 1,808,819 2,107,734
vii) Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
viii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 8,171,495 5,759,939
ix) Policyholder Loan - -
x) Agent Loan - -
xi) Employee Loan - -
xii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -
Financial Assets Measured at at FVTOCI

i) Interest Income on Debentures - -
i) Dividend Income - -
iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -
Financial Assets Measured at at FVTPL

i) Dividend Income 3,185,014 4,089,064
ii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -
Rental Income 15,151,968 16,557,254
Others - -
Total 273,349,679 | 270,250,889
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

30. Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged ltems in Fair Value Hedges
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges
Gains/(Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedge

Others (to be specified)

Total

2,538,098 19,792,787
(66,938) (47,505)
2,471,160| 19,745,282

31. Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of
Financial Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures

ii) Bonds

iii) Others (to be specified)

Total

18,301,495 8,291,422
87,929 26,389
18,389,424 8,317,812

32. Other Income

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
i) Employee Loan

i) Bonds

iii) Others (to be Specified)

Foreign Exchange Income

Interest Income from Finance Lease

Profit from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortization of Deferred Income

Stamp Income

Others (to be specified)

Management Income (Micro Pool)

Grant Income

Miscellaneous Income

Total

273,883

(25,443) 639,843
1,334,525 362,166
566,786 3,857,734
156,799 6,806,761
2,032,667| 11,940,387
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

33. Gross Claims Paid

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Gross Claims Paid
Total

1,665,832,392

2,306,936,364

1,665,832,392

2,306,936,364

34. Claims Ceded

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Claims Ceded to Reinsurers
Total

806,123,579

1,179,980,825

806,123,579

1,179,980,825

Portfolio-wise detail of Gross Claims Paid and Claims Ceded

Gross Claims Ceded Net Claims Paid before

Paid Claims Change in Contract Liabilities
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Fire 219,335,991 120,026,505 171,135,063 86,393,746 48,200,929 33,632,759
Motor 819,257,301| 1,067,356,534 169,583,526 146,644,370 |  649,673,775| 920,712,164
Marine 33,896,176 62,989,546 28,645,544 52,621,796 5,250,632 10,367,749
Engineering 216,168,422| 114,940,928 204,766,560 103,446,586 11,401,861 11,494,342
Micro 757,349 485,972 234,000 523,349 485,972
Aviation 956,243 549,188,017 591,513 544,524,778 364,731 4,663,240
Cattle and Crop 72,611,155 105,286,767 51,775,871 74,523,000 20,835,284 30,763,767
Miscellaneous 302,849,755 286,662,095 179,391,504 171,826,549 123,458,251 114,835,546
Total 1,665,832,392( 2,306,936,364 806,123,579 1,179,980,825 859,708,812 | 1,126,955,539

35. Change in Contract Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
(a) Gross Change in Contract Liabilities
Change in Contract Outstanding Claim (170,591,321) 98,455,961
Change in IBNR and IBNER 85,421,799 369,922,205
Change in Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD) 22,504,935 -
Change in Provision for Premium Deficiency - -
Total Gross Change in Contract Liabilities (62,664,587) 468,378,166
(b) Change in Reinsurance Assets
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Outstanding Claim Provisions (81,716,934) 107,856,280
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on IBNR and IBNER 81,831,036 362,434,158
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD) 10,451,928 -
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Provision for Premium Deficiency -
Total Change in Reinsurance Assets 10,566,031 470,290,438
Net Change in Contract Liabilities (73,230,617) (1,912,272)
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Fig. in NPR

Gross Change in Change in Reinsurance Net Change in

Contract Liabilities Assets Contract Liabilities
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Fire (36,018,547) 47,127,752 (51,927,360) 61,839,039 15,908,813 | (14,711,287)
Motor 185,849,544 422,335,865 54,678,467 394,382,587 131,171,078 27,953,277
Marine (333,250,649)| (27,064,377) (97,434,995) (18,159,490) | (235,815,654) (8,904,888)
Engineering 33,751,268 46,779,354 26,268,339 44,748,109 7,482,930 2,031,245
Micro 2,025,000 - 1,215,000 - 810,000 -
Aviation 56,912,678 - 55,319,017 - 1,593,661 -
Cattle and Crop (2,663,784)| (29,142,766) (1,512,511) (23,225,952) (1,151,274) (5,916,813)
Miscellaneous 30,729,903 8,342,338 23,960,074 10,706,145 6,769,829 (2,363,807)
Total (62,664,587)| 468,378,166 10,566,031 470,290,438 | (73,230,617) (1,912,272)

36.

Commission Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Commission Expenses on Direct Insurance Contracts 28,596,275 34,186,045
Commission Expenses on Reinsurance Accepted - -
Deferred Commission Expenses 1,367,656 11,961
Others (to be specified) - -
Total 29,963,930 34,198,006
Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Expenses
Commission Expenses on | Commission Expenses on | Deferred Commission Others Commission

Insurance Contracts Reinsurance Accepted Expenses (to be specified) Expenses
Particulars Current Previous Current Previous [ Current | Previous | Current | Previous Current | Previous

Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
Fire 9,122,890| 10,619,669 - -1 1,103,439 | (1,187,919) -| 10,226,330 9,431,750
Motor 10,042,357 12,052,395 - 578,810 | (291,823) - -| 10,621,167 | 11,760,572
Marine 967,942 1,757,113 - -| (854,149) | (118,960) - - 113,793 1,638,153
Engineering 1,414,554 1,502,878 - 17,683 | 2,576,981 - -1 1,432,238 4,079,860
Micro - - - - - - - -
Aviation - - - - - - - - - -
Cattle and Crop | 1,778,806| 1,622,174 - -1 (121,958) | (280,683) - -1 1,656,847 1,341,491
Miscellaneous 5,269,726| 6,631,815 - 643,830 | (685,634) - -| 5,913,556 5,946,181
Total 28,596,275 34,186,045 -1 1,367,656 11,961 29,963,930 34,198,006

37. Service Fees

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Gross Service Fees 34,683,701 34,348,660
Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees 23,247,654 21,486,765
Total 11,436,046 12,861,895

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

38.

39.

Portfolio-wise detail of Service Fees

Fig. in NPR
Gross Service Reinsurer's Share of Net Service
Fees Service Fees Fees

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Fire 7,515,980 6,791,525 6,287,955 5,838,743 1,228,025 952,782
Motor 14,529,714 16,023,162 5,856,482 6,611,878 8,673,232 9,411,284
Marine 1,895,557 1,791,906 1,635,909 1,313,860 259,648 478,047
Engineering 1,726,885 1,085,574 1,722,237 1,071,382 4,648 14,192
Micro 756,643 15,226 612,056 - 144,587 15,226
Aviation 2,632,630 2,787,625 2,496,142 2,772,336 136,488 15,289
Cattle and Crop 1,094,522 1,004,395 884,083 569,390 210,439 435,005
Miscellaneous 4,531,770 4,849,248 3,752,789 3,309,176 778,981 1,540,072
Total 34,683,701 34,348,660 23,247,654 21,486,765 11,436,046 12,861,895

Employee Benefits Expenses
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Salaries 237,335,683 | 226,928,653
Defined Benefit Plans
i) Gratuity - -
ii) Others - -
Defined Contribution Plans
i) Provident Fund 10,316,573 9,350,184
ii) Gratuity 10,039,448 11,619,329
Leave Encashments 12,017,813 10,320,299
Termination Benefits - -
Dashain Allowance 19,761,829 16,289,223
Other Allowance 16,011,739 14,719,390
Training Expenses 6,039,783 6,436,741
Uniform Expenses 5,454,217 4,749,616
Medical Expenses - -
Staff Insurance Expenses 9,765,233 8,556,554
Staff Welfare 5,580,528 5,285,843
Bonus 65,558,919 64,338,027
Others (To be specified) 364,922 193,425
Total 398,246,687 ( 378,787,284
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 5) 17,892,260 18,557,419
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note 6) - -
Amortization of Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4) 154,665 1,092,964
Total 18,046,925 19,650,382
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

40. Impairment Losses

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Impairment Losses on PPE, Investment Properties and
Intangible Assets

i) Property, Plant and Equipment
ii) Investment Properties
i) Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
i) Investment

i) Loans

iii) Other Financial Assets

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalent

v) Others (to be Specified)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets
i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables

iii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Total

41. Other Expenses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Rent Expenses 29,874,010 27,683,612
Electricity and Water 3,711,582 6,214,706
Repair & Maintenance
i) Building 1,334,184 920,770
i) Vehicle 1,717,577 1,836,433
ii)y Office Equipments 418,331 681,580
iv) Others 3,337,079 3,011,148
Telephone & Communication 10,676,713 9,452,964
Printing & Stationary 11,593,443 13,770,649
Office Consumable Expenses 8,683,547 9,727,891
Travelling Expenses
i) Domestic 1,835,720 2,723,651
i) Foreign 2,062,447 1,744,830
Agent Training
Other Agent Expenses
Insurance Premium 6,013,583 2,604,936
Security Expenses 4,352,426 4,646,235
Legal and Consulting Expenses 8,709,613 9,495,405
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 233,214 212,308
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 18,888,740 15,905,525
Business Promotion 5,475,809 3,308,875
Guest Entertainment 1,476,067 1,287,181
Gift and Donations 4,658,967 1,962,821
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

41.

42.

Other Expenses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Board Meeting Fees and Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances
ii) Other Allowances

Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses
i) Meeting Allowances

ii) Other Allowances

Annual General Meeting Expenses

Audit Related Expenses
i) Statutory Audit

ii) Tax Audit

iii) Long Form Audit Report
iv) Other Fees

v) Internal Audit

vi) Others

Bank Charges

Fee and Charges

Postage Charges

Others (to be specified)
Membership and subscription fees
Pooja expenses

Notice Expenses
Miscellaneous

Computer support service
Exchange loss

CSR expense

Anniversary Expenses
Vehicle Running Expenses
Renewal and Registration
I.  Other direct expenses
Total

~T T TQ@ e a0

1,648,000 1,540,000
538,389 687,263
1,775,000 895,000
50,345 401,267
2,202,775
300,000 300,000
70,000 70,000
40,000 40,000
423,605 500,000
400,270 400,000
414,810 675,140
884,703 672,737
4,325,593 5,871,828
2,292,599 3,051,701
331,800 864,949
497,122 637,745
436,468
70,842 102,258
1,643,276 2,467,896
3,240,257
899,270 820,374
9,815,961 10,879,498
3,100,534 4,193,579
160,454,671 | 152,262,754

Finance Cost

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - Lease

20,736,373

11,841,599

Interest expenses - Overdraft Loan
Others (to be specified)
Total 20,736,373 11,841,599
Shi khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

43. Income Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Tax
i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year
ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods

Deferred Tax for the Year

i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences
i) Changes in tax rate

iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses
iv) Write-down or reversal

v) Others (to be Specified)

Income Tax Expense

177,311,299 | 174,702,557

4,981,037 -
(36,835,103) 13,648,851
145,457,233 188,351,408

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & Accounting Profit

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Accounting Profit Before Tax

Applicable Tax Rate

Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
i) Donation

i) Deferred Expenses

iii) Unabsorbed repairs

iv) Depreciation as per books

v) Provision for leave

vi) Other Expeses

Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction
i) Dividend Income

ii) Provision written back

iii) Depreciation as per the Act

iv) (Profit) Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset

Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

i) Additional tax for Prior Periods

Add/ (Less): Others

i) Adjustment for Profit as per NFRS and previous GAAP
i) Fine and Penalties

Income Tax Expense (Current)

Effective Tax Rate

554,715,567 | 590,925,714
30.00% 30.00%
166,414,670 177,277,714
1,397,690 588,846

- 62,747

- 941

6,910,314 6,985,472
1,104,247 823,100

- 206,022

(955,504)|  (1,226,719)
(1,135,338)|  (2,417,984)
(7,041,920)|  (7,087,013)
22,729 (152,273)
4,981,037 -
10,594,411|  (3,565,042)

- 3,206,746
182,292,336 174,702,557
32.86% 29.56%

Income Tax Calculation is based on Profit as per previous GAAP so figures stated above are part of

Financial Statements prepared as per previous GAAP
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

44. Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (15th July, 2020) the company has recognised an amount of NPR.
20,356,020 as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars

Fig. in NPR
Employee Any Other
Benefit Plan Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net interest cost

a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO)
b. Interest (income) on plan assets

c. Total net interest cost

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Particulars

Employee Any Other
Benefit Plan Funded Liability
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial
assumption changes in DBO

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO

c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate

Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Particulars

Employee Any Other
Benefit Plan Funded Liability
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Shik
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)
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f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Fig. in NPR
Employee Any Other
Benefit Plan Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year - - -
Service cost - - -
Interest cost - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions - - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience - - -
Defined Benefit Obligation As At Year End - - -
dg) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets
Employee Any Other
Benefit Plan Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - -
Employer contributions = - -
Participant contributions - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - - -
Transfer in/ transfer out - - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - - -
Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year - - -
h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)
Employee Any Other
Benefit Plan Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligation - - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in
Statement of Financial Position - - -
i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year
Employee Any Other
Benefit Plan Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position
Fig. in NPR

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end - - - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss - - - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI = - - -
Acquisition/ divestment = — - _
Employer contributions = - - _
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) - - - -

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period - - - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI g - - -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss - - .

1) Current/Non - Current Liability

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Current Liability = - - -
Non - Current Liability = - - _
Total = - - -

m) Expected Future Benefit Payments

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Within 1 year - - - -
Between 1-2 years - - - -
Between 2-5 years - - - -
From 6 to 10 - - - -
Total - - - -

n) Plan assets

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Particulars (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)
Government Securities (Central and State) - - - -
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds) - - - -
Mutual Funds - - - -

Deposits - - - _
Cash and bank balances = — - _
Others (to be Specified) = - - -
Total = - — _
Sh | khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

o) Sensitivity Analysis

Fig. in NPR
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to

1% Increase in Discount Rate = - - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to

1% Decrease in Discount Rate = - — _

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to

1% Increase in Salary Escalation Rate = - - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to

1% Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate = - - -

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to

1% Increase in Attrition Rate = - - _
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to

1% Decrease in Attrition Rate = - _ _

p) Assumptions

Employee Any Other
Particulars Benefit Plan | Funded Liability

Discount Rate - -
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) - -
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) - -
Mortality Rate During Employment - -

45. Insurance Risk
Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it
has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in
excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is
complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a) Product development

b) Pricing

c) Underwriting

d) Reinsurance

e) Claims Handling

f) Reserving
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a) Product development:
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:
- Fire
- Motor
- Marine
- Engineering
- Micro
- Auviation
- Cattle and Crop
- Miscellaneous

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate
leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation
of costs in respect of spares in the auto industrys.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk
and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review
of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place
to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that
can negatively impact the business.

b) Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base
rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against
the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

c) Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures. Some
of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management
staff, including those attached to the distribution network.

ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate
risk prior to acceptance

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers

Continue...
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d) Reinsurance

c)

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the
reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written
by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in
respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions
made for the loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the
obligation to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers
does not negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the extent
ceded to each reinsurer.

Claims handling:
Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:

i) Claims are assessed immediately.

i) Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working
throughout.

iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of
reserves made in relation to Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and

iv) Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims.
v) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

vi) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers

Sensitivities
The non-life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions as mentioned in the table
below.

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all
other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and
profit after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate
claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be
changed on an individual basis.

Current Year Previous Year

Increase/ | Increase/ | Increase/ | Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
| (Decrease) | (Decrease) |(Decrease)- |(Decrease) - (Decrease) | (Decrease) | (Decrease)-| (Decrease)-
Changesin| on Gross on Net Profit | Profit After | on Gross onNet | Profit Before| Profit After

Particulars Assumptions| Liabilities | Liabilities |Before Tax Tax Liabilities Liabilities Tax Tax

Average Claim Cost +10% | 160,316,781 78,647,820| 78,647,820 | 55,053,474| 277,531,453| 112,504,327| 112,504,327| 78,753,029
Average Number of Claims| ~ +10% | 160,316,781| 78,647,820| 78,647,820 | 55,053,474| 277,531,453| 112,504,327| 112,504,327| 78,753,029

Average Claim Cost -10% |(160,316,781) | (78,647,820) |(78,647,820) |(55,053,474) | (277,531,453)| (112,504,327) | (112,504,327)| (78,753,029)
Average Number of Claims| - 10%  |(160,316,781) | (78,647,820) 78,647,820) |(55,053,474) | (277,531,453)| (112,504,327) | (112,504,327)| (78,753,029)

Claim development table
The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and
IBNR for each successive accident year at each reporting date, together with cumulative payments to date.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Fig. in NPR

Gross insurance contract outstanding claim provision

Year of incident >PY4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY 1| Current Year Total

511,562,335 511,552,335
112,349,559| 112,349,559
50,841,133 50,841,133

At end of incident year - - - -
One year later - - - -
Two year later - - - -
Three year later - - - - 4,132,500 4,132,500
Four year later - - - - 1,273,433 1,273,433
More than Four years - - - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims - - - - 680,148,960 680,148,960
At end of incident year - - - - 931,349,701| 931,349,701
One year later - - - - 628,660,638 628,660,638
Two year later - - - - 78,401,395 78,401,395
Three year later - - - - 16,415,347| 16,415,347
Four year later - - - - 11,005,311 11,005,311
More than Four years - - - - - -
Cumulative payments to date - - - - 1,665,832,392| 1,665,832,392

Gross insurance contract
outstanding claim provision - B | _

(985,683,432)| (985,683,432)

Net insurance contract outstanding claim provision
Year of incident >PY4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY 1| Current Year Total

126,839,394| 126,839,394
39,247,566 39,247,566
15,577,045 15,577,045

At end of incident year - - - -
One year later - - - -
Two year later - - - -
Three year later - - - - 4,132,500 4,132,500
Four year later - - - - 243,487 243,487
More than Four years - - - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims - - - - -] 186,039,992 186,039,992
At end of incident year - - - - 439,632,755 439,632,755
One year later - - - - 341,137,367| 341,137,367
Two year later - - - - 62,165,349 62,165,349
Three year later - - - - 14,601,395| 14,601,395

Four year later - - - - - 2,171,945 2,171,945

More than Four years - - - - - -

Cumulative payments to date - - - - -| 859,708,812 859,708,812

Net insurance contract outstanding

claim provision - - - - - (673,668,820)| (673,668,820)
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

f) Reserving

Fig. in NPR

Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as
at year end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

46.

68hikhar
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Current Year Previous Year
Gross Gross
Insurance | Reinsurance Net Insurance | Reinsurance Net
Particulars Liabilities Assets Liabilities Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Fire 628,928,370 | 530,900,817 | 98,027,553 | 628,724,154| 560,367,566 | 68,356,589
Motor 1,234,734,344 | 448,780,048 | 785,954,295 | 1,123,557,193 | 431,871,346 | 691,685,847
Marine 370,900,685 | 318,393,916 | 52,506,769 | 552,943,403| 260,915,093 | 292,028,311
Engineering 276,307,614 | 255,258,701 21,048,912 210,490,832 196,447,638 14,043,194
Micro 39,857,153 31,817,824 8,039,329 761,279 - 761,279
Aviation 188,544,176 | 180,126,126 8,418,050 | 139,381,256| 138,616,784 764,472
Cattle and Crop 74,845,574 55,035,160 19,810,414 73,003,001 40,813,030 | 32,189,971
Miscellaneous 322,609,315 | 268,211,786 | 54,397,528 | 307,753,299| 222,071,066| 85,682,233
Total 3,136,727,230 | 2,088,524,379 | 1,048,202,851 | 3,036,614,418 | 1,851,102,522 | 1,185,511,895

Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and

for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Current Year Previous Year
Amortised Amortised

Particulars Level | FVTPL |FVOCI Cost FVTPL [ FVOCI Cost
Investments - - - - - -
i) Investment in Equity Instruments 1and3 | 369,533,926 - —-| 199,097,416 - -
ii) Investmentin Mutual Funds 1 18,973,511 - - 17,370,216 - -
iii) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank

and Financial Institutions - - - - - -
iv) Investment in Debentures - —-| 508,686,000 - - 377,325,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/

NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - —-| 20,000,000 - - 38,536,786
vi) Fixed Deposits - -12,115,910,000 - - | 2,076,100,000
vii) Others (to be specified) 1 1,390,689 - 1,045,118 - -
Loans - - - -
Other Financial Assets - —| 149,983,847 - 138,390,581
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 538,197,550 - 399,364,174 - -
Total Financial Assets 928,095,676 -12,794,579,847 | 616,876,924 - | 2,630,352,367
Loans and Borrowings - —-| 183,386,418 - - 154,566,874
Other Financial Liabilities - —-| 101,356,378 - - 143,290,610
Total Financial Liabilities - —| 284,742,797 - - 297,857,484

| 188

appysmurance



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Level 1 : Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2 : Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of
an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument

is included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.
(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are

held at least once in a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.
b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the

discounting is material

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Current Year Previous Year
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Particulars Amount Value Amount Value
Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
ii) Investment in Debentures 508,686,000 | 508,686,000 377,325,000 | 377,325,000
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by

Nepal Government) 20,000,000 20,000,000 38,536,786 38,536,786
iv) Fixed Deposit 2,115,910,000 | 2,115,910,000 | 2,076,100,000 |2,076,100,000
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Loans - - - -
i) Loan to Associates - - - -
ii) Loan to Employees - - - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Assets 149,983,847 | 149,983,847 138,390,581 | 138,390,581
Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 2,794,579,847 | 2,794,579,847 | 2,630,352,367 |2,630,352,367
Loans and Borrowings
i) Bond - - - -
ii) Debenture - - - -
i) Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - - - -
iv) Bank Overdraft 183,386,418 | 183,386,418 154,566,874 | 154,566,874
v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 101,356,378 | 101,356,378 143,290,610 | 143,290,610
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 284,742,797 284,742,797 297,857,484 | 297,857,484

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on
cash flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due
to their short-term nature.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

47. Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance
contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit

risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes
credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches
are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and
for changes in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk
is avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of ?nancial loss from defaults.

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2077

Expected Carrying
Gross Carrying| probability | Expected | Amount After
Particulars Asset Group Amount of Default |Credit Losses| Provision

Credit Risk has not significantly | Loss allowance measured at

increased since initial recognition | 12 months expected credit - - - - -
losses

Credit Risk has significantly
increased and not credit impaired | Loss allowance measured at - - - - -

Credit Risk has significantly life-time expected credit losses

increased and credit impaired - - - - -

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2076

Expected Carrying
Gross Carrying| probability |  Expected | Amount After
Particulars Asset Group Amount | of Default |Credit Losses| Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly | Loss allowance measured at
increased since initial recognition | 12 months expected credit - - - - -
losses
Credit Risk has significantly
increased and not credit impaired | Loss allowance measured at - - - - -
Credit Risk has significantly life-time expected credit losses
increased and credit impaired - - - - -
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Particulars

Measured at 12
months expected
credit losses

Measured at life-time expected
credit losses

Credit Risk has
significantly
increased and not
credit impaired

Credit Risk has
significantly
increased and
credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2076 - - .
Changes in loss allowances - - _
Write-offs - - _
Recoveries -
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2077 - - _

ii) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic
events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows
and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:
The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based
on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.

Current Year Previous Year
Upto 1 1Yearto5 | Morethan5 Upto 1 1Yearto5 | Morethan5
Particulars Year Year Year Year Year Year
Loans and Borrowings 183,386,418 - -| 154,566,874
Other Financial Liabilities 101,356,378 - -| 143,290,610
Total Financial Liabilities 284,742,797 - 297,857,484

iii) Market Risk

a1) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual ?nancial losses as a result of changes in value between the
currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign
currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange
risk related to investments.

Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, with respect to the USD and Indian Rupees. The risk is measured through a forecast of
highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of
the NPR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in NPR, are
as follows:

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars usD Indian Rupees | USD Indian Rupees

Investments - - - -
Loans - -
Insurance Receivables 179,300,919 141,304,363
Other Financial Assets - - - -
Less: Derivative Assets
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Assets) 179,300,919 141,304,363 - -
Insurance Payables - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities - - - -
Less: Derivative Liabilities
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -
Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Liabilities) - - - -

a2) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on the other components of equity arising from foreign
forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges

Impact on profit after tax | Impact on other component of equity

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
USD sensitivity

NPR/USD - Increases by 10% * (17,930,092) - (17,930,092) -
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% * 17,930,092 - 17,930,092 -

INR sensitivity
NPR/ Currency A - Increases by 10% * - - - -
NPR/ Currency A - Decreases by 10% * - - - -

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by

1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following effect on
the Profit After Tax.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* (1,182,837) (1,081,968)
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* 1,182,837 1,081,968
* Holding all other Variable Constant

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

c1) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from
investments held by the Company and classi?ed in the statement of financial position as fair value through
OCI.

c2) Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and
impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/
decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved
in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* 5 -
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* = -

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income.

48 Operation Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss.
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes
in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.

49 Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Beema Samiti to attain a stipulated
minimum paid up capital of NPR 1 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid
up capital is NPR 1,057,310,600

Continue...
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

50

51

68hikhar
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Dividend

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

(i) Dividends recognised

Final dividend for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 of NPR 0/-
(Ashadh 31, 2076 - NPR 0./-) per fully paid share

Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
In addition to the above dividends, for the year ended the directors
have recommended the payment of a final dividend of NPR 38/-
per fully paid equity share (Ashadh 31, 2076 - NPR 0 /-). This
proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting. Due to issue of right shares after
Ashadh 31, 2077, dividend payment will be NPR 29.23/- per fully
paid equity share.

(i)

401,778,028

401,778,028

Earnings Per Share

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Profit For the Year 409,258,334 402,574,306
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds - -
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share 409,258,334 402,574,306
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the

Year For Basic Earning per Share 10,573,106 10,573,106
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share: - -
i) Dilutive Shares 2,872,476 2,872,476
i) Options - -
iii) Convertible Bonds = -
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the

Year for Diluted Earning Per Share 13,445,582 13,445,582
Nominal Value of Equity Shares - -
Basic Earnings Per Share 38.71 38.08
Diluted Earnings Per Share 30.44 29.94

Segmental Information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is
also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that
it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these

industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the
view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary

to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:

i) Fire

i) Motor

iy Marine

iv) Engineering

v) Micro

vi) Aviation

vii) Cattle and Crop

viii) Miscellaneous
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

52

e) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Segmental Profit 656,194,017 598,806,138
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (19,650,382)

Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures

Add: Unallocable Other Income
Less: Finance Cost
Profit Before Tax

(18,046,925)

(62,695,152)
(20,736,373)

23,611,557
(11,841,599)

554,715,567

590,925,714.01

f) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Assets 3,302,570,041(2,801,633,998.25
Intangible Assets 873,207 892,872
Property, Plant and Equipment 623,883,859 606,596,726
Investment Properties - -
Deferred Tax Assets 75,562,819 42,956,516
Investments 3,113,840,939 3,013,333,367
Loans - -
Current Tax Assets (Net) 67,578,879 90,753,183
Other Assets and Other Financial Assets 375,784,683 396,668,869
Cash and Cash Equivalents 538,197,550 399,364,174

Total Assets

8,098,291,979

7,352,199,705

g) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Liabilities

4,111,793,712

4,040,754,994

Provisions 153,812,656 82,372,262
Deferred Tax Liabilities = -
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
Loans and BorrowingsE 183,386,418 154,566,874
Other Financial Liabilities 101,356,378 143,290,610
Other Liabilities 225,079,912 221,275,450

Total Liabilities

4,775,429,077

4,642,260,190

Related Party Disclosure
(a) Identify Related Parties

Holding Company:
N.A.

Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Associates:

Kriti Capital and Investments Limited
Kriti Venture Fund

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries:

N.A.

Key Management Personnel:

Rajendra Prasad Shrestha Chairperson
Saurav J.B. Rana Director
Ramesh Kumar Luitel Director
Shrujana Shrestha Director
Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Director
Skand Amatya Director
Siddhiman Basnyat Director

Chief Executive Officer
General Manager
General Manager
General Manager

Dip Prakash Panday
Bimal Raj Nepal
Pushkar Mahat
Sabita Maskey

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Short-term employee benefits 11,536,584 7,843,690
Post-employment benefits 583,306 591,252
Other long-term benefits 320,000 93,333
Termination benefits - -
Total 12,439,889 8,528,276

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances 12,058,750 8,931,282

Performance based allowances

i) Employee Bonus

ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions 8,441,125 6,251,898

i) Incentives

Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance 615,385 615,385

ii) Accident Insurance 3,900 3,900

iii) Health Insurance (including family members) 8,400 8,400

Total 21,127,560 15,810,865
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

(c) Related Party Transactions: Fig. in NPR

Holding Fellow Key Managerial
Particulars Company | Subsidiaries | Associates |Subsidiaries| Personnel Total

Premium Earned
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Commission Income
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Rental Income
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Interest Income
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Premium Paid
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - -| 4,995,115 - - 4,995115
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - -| 4,360,169 - -| 4,360,169

Commission Expenses
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Dividend
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Meeting Fees
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - -

1,648,000 | 1,648,000
1,540,000 | 1,540,000

Allowances to Directors
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Others
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) - - - - - -
For The Year Ended Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) - - - - - -

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

(d) Related Party Balances:

Fig. in NPR

Holding

Particulars Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables -
As at Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020) -
As at Ashadh 31,2076 (July 16, 2019) -

Other Receivables -
As at Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020) -
As at Ashadh 31,2076 (July 16, 2019) -

Payables including Reinsurance Payables -
As at Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020) -
As at Ashadh 31,2076 (July 16, 2019) -

Other Payables -
As at Ashadh 31,2077 (July 15, 2020) -
As at Ashadh 31,2076 (July 16, 2019) -

46,242,766
81,950,061

46,242,766
81,950,061

53 Leases
(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:

The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 year to 5 years. The leases are renewable
by mutual consent and contain escalation clause. Rental expenses for operating leases recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year is NPR 29,874,009.94 (Ashadh 31, 2076: NPR

27,683,612.12).

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Payments

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company holds assets under finance leases. Future minimum lease payments and lease liability

at the end of the year is given below:

Future Minimum Lease Payments

Current Year

Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year

ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments
Less: Effect of Discounting

Finance lease liability recognised

68hikhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:
The Company has leased out certain office spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis. Rental
income received during the year in respect of operating lease is NPR 15,151,967 (Ashadh 31, 2076
NPR 16,557,254.49).

The Company building situated at Ward No.11, Thapathali, Kathmandu is 8.5 storied and the
comapny has leased out 4 stories for rental purpose.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
ii) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company has given assets under finance leases. At the year end receivables under finance
lease agreements fall due as follows:

Current Year Previous Year
Gross Unearned Net Gross Unearned Net
Particulars Investment |Finance Income| Investment | Investment [Finance Income| Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year - - - - - _
ii) Laterthan 1 year and not later than 5 years | - - - - - -
jii) Later than 5 years - - - - . -
Total - - - - - -

54 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Intangible Assets - -
Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Investment Properties - -
Total - -

55 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts

a) Income Tax 18,306,513 18,306,513
b) Indirect Taxes

c) Other

Total 18,306,513 18,306,513
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

56 Events occuring after Balance Sheet

The company issued Covid 19 insurance policy as per guidelines issued by Beema Samiti. Numeorus
claims are loged against such policy has after Ashad 31, 2077.

Details regarding such policy till December 31, 2020:

Total number of policies issued : 28,495

Premium Amount :NPR 11.78 Crore

No. of Claim received till December 31, 2020 : 10492

Total paid : NPR. 40.32 crore for 4117 claims
Total outstanding : NPR 61 crore for 6375 claims

“Covid 19 insurance policy is managed through covid 19 insurance pool with participation of all insurance
companies, Nepal Re, Beema Samitee and Government of Nepal. As per “Covid 19 insurance Mapdanda”
issued from Beema Samitee total market claim of covid 19 insurance is allocated as follows:

Particular (NPR) Allocated to

First 100 croreE By 20 insurance companies in equal ratio
Next 100 crore By Nepal Re-insurance company

Next 50 crore By 20 insurance companies

Next 100 crore By Beema Samitee

More than 350 crore By government of Nepal

57 Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables = -
Investments in equity - -
Fixed Deposits - -
Property, plant and equipment 542,628,000 528,532,000

Others - -
Total 542,628,000 528,532,000

58 Miscellaneous
(i) Al amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.
(ii) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Annexure I

Minimum Disclosure in Management Report
for the year ended Ashadh 2077

A. Information related to Non- Life Insurer

1. Date of establishment
Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (herein after called company) is incorporated as a Public Limited
Company on Jestha 25,2061 under the Company Act,2053.

2. Insurer license date
The company has obtained license on Kartik 26,2061 under section 10(3) of Insurance Act 2049 and
Rule 8 (2) of Insurance Regulations,2049 in order to carry out insurance business.

3. Insurance business type, nature
The company principally issues non-life insurance contracts such as property, marine, motor, engineering,
aviation, cattle & agriculture, and miscellaneous policies.

4. Date of commencement of business
The date of commencement of business is Kartik 26,2061.

B. Insurer's Board of Directors shall approve following matters
1. Validity of license issued by Beema Samiti to carry insurance business
License issued under section 10(3) of Insurance Act 2049 and Rule 8 (2) of Insurance Regulations,2049

has validity till Chaitra end 2076.

2. Tax, service charge, fine and penalties to be paid under law & regulation whether paid or not
All tax, service charge, fine and penalties are paid.

3. Share structure of the insurer, changes if any in line with prevailing laws & regulation
Share structure on the basis of ownership is illustrated below.

As at July 15, 2020
Share Holder No. of Equity share % of share
Promoter 63,43,864 60%
General Public 4,229,242 40%
Total 10,573,106 100%

4. Whether solvency ratio as prescribed by beema samiti is maintained or not
Solvency ratio is 6.80. It is maintained as prescribed by beema samiti.

5. a) Statement regarding assets that financial amount contained in SOFP are not overstated than
its fair value
The financial amount of the assets contained in SOFP are stated as per their fair value and thus not
overstated.

b) Measurement basis of the assets recognized in financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following material
items in the statement of financial position:
- derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.
- financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
- investment property is measured at fair value.

Shikhar
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- liabilities for cash-settled share-based payment arrangements are measured at fair value.

- the liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the net total of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized
past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

- class of property, plant and equipment: Free hold and building are measured in fair value.

6. Declaration on investment made by insurer that are in line with prevailing laws. If not reason to
be disclosed.
Investment is made in line with the prevailing laws. Details is illustrated below:

% of investment based

_ on Technical Reserve of
Particulars Amount (NRs.) FY 2075-76

Investment in Bonds issued by Government of Nepal or
Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) or Bond guaranteed by

Government of Nepal 2,00,00,000.00 0.67
Fixed Deposit in A Class Banks licensed by NRB. 1,80,08,10,000.00 60.31
Fixed Deposit in Nepal Infrastructure Development Bank

licensed by NRB. - 0.00
Real Estate - 0.00
Investment in shares of listed companies 17,24,03,231.00 5.77

Investment in nonconvertible preference shares and
debentures/bonds issued by A, B and C lass banks and

financial institutions licensed by NRB. 50,86,86,000.00 17.03
Investment in secured debentures/bonds issued listed

public limited companies - 0.00
Investment in agriculture, tourism and hydropower and

other infrastructure sector 9,60,25,000.00 3.22
Investment in mutual fund and schemes of citizen

investment fund 3,09,21,085.00 1.04
Fixed Deposit in B Class Banks licensed by NRB. 25,96,00,000.00 8.69
Fixed Deposit in C Class Banks licensed by NRB. 5,55,00,000.00 1.86
Other investments (specify)

Seed Money in Micro Insurance POOL 13,90,689.00 0.05
Investment in Nepal Re 16,18,16,865.00 5.42
TOTAL 3,10,71,52,871.00 -

7. Number of claim settled within the year and outstanding claim number and time frame to settle
the outstanding claim.
Total number of claim settled within the year is 14,470 and outstanding claim is 3,182. Within next fiscal
year the outstanding claim will be settled.

8. Declaration on compliance with the provision of Insurance Act 2049, Insurance Regulation 2049,
Company Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing laws & regulation to which insurer shall adhere
to and any non- compliance with reasons thereof.

All the provision of Insurance Act 2049, Insurance Regulation 2049, Company Act 2063, NFRSs and
other prevailing laws & regulation has been adhered to except provision regarding the Annual General
Meeting.

9. Declaration that the appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted.
The appropriate accounting policy has been consistently adopted that provides reliable and relevant
information about the effects of transaction, events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial
6 performance, or cash flows.
|nsu rance
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10. Declaration on Financial Statements as at Reporting Date that the insurer's financial position
and financial performance are presented true & fairly.
Financial statements are truly prepared and fairly presented in accordance with the prescribed accounting
standards.

11. Declaration that Board of Directors have implemented adequate and appropriate provision to
safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement
and irregularities.

Adequate and appropriate provision to safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against
losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities have been implemented.

12. Declaration that financial statement has been prepared based on going concern basis.
Financial statement has been prepared based on going concern basis. Management has neither any
intention nor necessity to liquidate the company or cease the operation for foreseeable future.

13. Declaration that the internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of
the insurer's business.
The internal control system is commensurate as per the size, nature & volume of the business.

14. Declaration that the insurer has not conducted any transactions contrary to Insurance Act 2049,
Companies Act 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company and
insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's director has interest.

None of the transactions is conducted contrary to Insurance Act 2049, Companies Act 2063, related
regulations and directions.

15. Disclosure on any penalties levied by Beema Samiti for the particular financial year.
None

16. Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by management.
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JIATNTAT AT (Effective Useful Life) ATITRHTAAEY JUTHT (Straight Line Method) 1 ATETTHT 2T
FE TGS T AT A== TRUE B |

%.0,000 =T FH HeAH TG GHE TRUF THIAH G F@IST T 1T TEH G |

DY ST AT

AT &=
ATTFET AT T TUERT HY, WAT FT AT AGTINETH T JEATeId F FATAAGRT fqeqizor qiewer
9 ATTRT AT TR |

AT BT
FEIATA ATAHL U, 045 TAT TATATT ATTHY TTHAT TUH! FNTh! ATTTHT Mg TR FTLT
nivwert @ | gty faxir faarorar Seor@ TRUSr #7, HY q@rafearer qUr qTedid AT FATATATE

fFamer RSN FR A= FF g qHG |
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T B

faeirar fara=or oAl FFI<il qoT IS THH TAT FH] ATTRATS Tk He 2T g AITdT
#=I (Temporary Difference) T FHRUl HIATHT FTAT g &Y QI TAT THIATRT AT ITCT LT
TR FIH A@TFA TRUH B, | TR F GHAT q9T aT0qcq /19T TR AT ST STOAT 21T
A HHTASAA g Ak, WAl qUepT AT TAZRT AN AE Hebobl hIebl 3 AT BTNkl hiehl a7 AN
T ATEIT TRURT T | AT W FR EATeATs AaerdT 9arq #2499 fafeq 9% 3w+
AT ATTHT FHTATSTA TH G ATH TR @59 RSN G | 9 q@r fafdse T ad@faw
fairer fa@morAT T FRaTs FaWT Y&dd T qUaraT a9 faxiia faaworEr T & g8 a9
TS FHTATSA T 970 AT A=a9d SEreUa & |

& TN QqETEA i
TN A ABTAT TAT ATHFTATT HEll (AETT, TXFNT GRATIAe® aug, feas=r, dHfes
BIIR] AT 7 TS FEITRT STATAT TRUHT Al ATME TESHA |

ARl FAfTEF A gror T grafas S2ed Afed TRUST TS (79Td AXHRET d=qa a1 HITT
a7 AU FFRFT THAA I HIGTH TS AT ATe AIA A@THA THITTH AT AHT
AT 99 YRR (GTee) J91 9 TR g ((STRTSIE) ATE ANTART HBH FHIALT/ FHIATT T
@IS IR TATAHIET AT 0T fafy (effective interest method) T SATTTHT SATST AR @IS
THAA YTEGTT T8 T4T dTHT FIATaR] Mearaawiisad 9T REREH T=qaq a1 HOGT a q9q7d
TXHRH STATT YT HOTTTHT TRUH TS dAfhd Hed a1 R Hed 7 SF T G Alel Tl
@IS TRUHT G | TR A Hedl AT TR Hed G HUHT AT A&l IThHATS AR Fad
HIHT FTe@e T TR F |

qfecter fAfHds FFIAI SR Tl HITTEH AT AGTST I Hedhl ATIRHAT TRUH G | TR
HAHRT TR HA FH TUAT HH FUH THHP a4l T AM1d [@UF F |

AT ArATaRT e SR qierdd FFIATR STORE a5 Hed T TUHT TRATTR] HRTA goTar
qUH ATHATS @TST TRTH T |

S qur faxira ATt Hedl FETHT TP FHIETg ATaT THHHT I@IEUH G | AR AT AR
TITE FHTT 915 & FROE THTA (Bl g ATRAT HSTAT THTHT FEAT AT FRTaRHT AT
T fafq fauer g

9. UEEl HedE GHIASH i
foreelT HaTHT TR TERT UF AIfATeEdTS aUTRTHT Teehl [T HT ¥ T SYATHT TR0 TRThT
B | Fre faaelt Hqe1 gt fAfq ar qereer ffaar #aw e ey wars mar w9 qars
Tiewet @) fom fa o SUaT aueT ST FTaH el fat Ha ST ATIRET B IH I THHATE
fafraaar ATHT ar e e S@reT Aifa dadET RS g |

T. SN QT qETse st
T 9Toh ATRTAT STHT UH, SIHT FOA(ART T THINTH TG JIel ATeamedT afed i fagewr
B, A AU AGTHI FHITH G | T¢ dTHT ek ATRTAT 797G GTT (A STwaT FIHT 9Tesh SThTAT
T o fafq ufig oA afgedr fafaar ook amarr vt ifq faguer g )

TAEH] R T aT9d YT g dTHT e ATFRTAIR] d@igdhd Jaedl Accural ATIRHT TRUHT F
[TAT oTek T TUTRT TET AATIHRI ATNT THHSE T AUHT ST Al gfear auar gq ars
STHITeF ATRATHT ATl AT TEehl YT g URIST @IaTHT AU 3 |
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0.

qq.

0.

3.

RIS WIATAT AMGUHT THHATE TTGeaAT qTeE&HT STHT ATl THIINTF EIH STHT Tesb ATFTAT
it A TEHl B |

UATAT HIFVE STGTeT JETee st

TS FFIAETE I FATAATS A8 T a7 AATAT FFIATare GHT YTqehl ATIHT AR
AGTE TS T | Profit commission @Ts TAATHT HFIATET HTHT FEATAT garR g TR
e qAT YTl AT JAATHT FFIAATE THET GIAHRT ATIRAT ATRTAT A@IZHA TRTH B |

T 3T q@TSa Ay

ATHII 3T

TR AHIETE IT g VG ATATeT | SATAIT I g AR T Ul d@rs+ TRwg, | @ieg
TR FHAGT T GHIART ATRT ATRTATS STOT b ATATIATS @R GHTRT Afer a1 afesw

AT AT FEATIT FGATE gl ARTAR! AFADT TTHT AQI3T Mg | @Y THAHT A0 4T
qiegepT AT A GEATST FoATE AUAT Ih ATHIATE AI%h ATERTAIHT STHT FA@TFH g, |

TG ATATT ATTH FTAT FR FHadl T AR g TR TG ATHITATS ATTHT FLhaal TRT T
TrbT T THHABT ATAAT F@TST TRTH B |

9 9TAR OO ST G YT g AR T TUATAT AT SATol ed @3 e |
rafoe foeiae WeaT ant/ gt

feore Treafaer fH=RT/ Sqer@ TXET HROT TUHT AT TAT BTHATS A1 ATAET TP FHIHAT ATRT a7
FAITTHT FHIELT TG, | AT TAT &R [T A7 F¥epl (Aaare yied @3 I qdr fearar
e et fgerarers fag i

A AT @3 9T @A ATHR GIEHTEl ATIRAT (Accrual Basis) TTRUHT & |

T ArAfaer e AT TE @R, B a9 FAFATe AUH ATATS AT AT, T FAF
AT STFATIHT AR TAT FEIATRT T THHRI TG HATART 4 a9 (Net Worth) &T5 ATHT ST
feamaer A AT gEEferd ST SaAEEl AT Y [EE@TEHr T AR A Ehred argwre T
AT T G |

FHAT qETehel AT
FEIATRT FHAT Aawrae aHifs qar g=nde afafae a0a TRTHT QeaHIiTH FHAREEdrs
FAT J&TT TS, |
e afafaesr AT ATaRyT SHaeTad @ad 90 Fiaerd YHH AThRT A [fdrayr @9 3@rg

FTehT THAATS FFateda ATHT SAAATAR] T STATIHHT ATHHAT HIATT F2T T & ATIT THAATS
g A9 AT AR A G STH AGAIR] AT AT FE@AHT ATSHTS T AT EH G

FFIATS ITATehT AT UM &7 STHTe FHITTH Tl T 9 T6H T4 |1 T Baaiaed! AT
ATAAF IR AT AT @ FHALT T A@TgT TR B, | T AHbb! TIMIRI AT HHATIA

TV HTHHT GIVHTHE T A7 G ATIqbl THH GHTELT TLhT 4 |
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nsurance

Happysurance

|28Y



98. AT gTdt STUd TRcA ARt JETEA aifd
T FFATEedT, 0% FHINTH AMIF TR A=A RN g Tl bl AT arqa Saed Taed
gz a9 el arell ThHepT 998 Fiqerde TR 3 |

QY. gg AT STSWHIE Afa
ATRT ATFIT [EETaeTe ATCH @& ATHTATE T F ST (Deferred Tax Reserve) aTdad! IHH
FHTATSA TR ST Teehl THHB! KO FIaerd THH SrHT ATAfded! (aerd THIfTd =[ehl GSiiel THd
FRIER ATTHFT ATHT HITHT STHAT T AT Teehl B | T [hiaHb SH1 HUAT A7 A7 fedaene
HATUHT T=AH] ATATHT T AFTT ATTAT A HITAT A ARTEREB] THH MG ATSHIES TRTH T |
FTHTRT YO ITAT THH FISHISH! AN IJIAed THH A ATRT AT [@ATTAT FATZT B |

qg,. HHART @I
3
FHAT G AT d6Td THINTHET TaaT

(F) AABTAT FHA Gelgs, Ted: qod, ST, foar arqaepr afqafe

(@) Farere fHaa qudle ThTAl g9 SIS, 59 HT AT, T

HAFTAT FHAT Geleh] @I FHARIA AT J&TF T TLATT a7 FaAT GETT Tl HROT fqafa
(AfeTe) 9T T Afepr fasiar 9u g 1w |

a1 (g WUalEg ARl 84 @edl d@rgd FHERA da1 Yo THl R gl aiqqiaes (
IRAITeR) Ted T ATThTep! (o1 STUHT T, |

HHART A STqeAT
ATHRT AT fEqTe A= el &Y ARl T ATHIH §0% THH FHART SITd ATqqh TaLdT TRTH!
g |

wHHTR! fagT auder =
FHARI faaT araderl @ faa7 arqa el g &faqrd g1 T A7 I @i fafaaamEedr aHiiaa
FHARIEwATS AT o2 faar, fawrdr faar araq gam wfer afqafd odeqT )

IUGTA AT oA B
TIfPUed FaT FqAtg AT AT, FFIATHT LT FHAEE HFIATH GaATaTe (Fad gal Jard T
T UG, TIT =T BIUh FTLIT TR |

FEAE (FATAT STHT == BT GT9qbT SMAcags (el AT ThH STFAT e ATSEH @ | AT
ATEE et ARTET IS (Defined Contribution Plan) &7 ¥ JFHT HFIATR! I, FITHT ARTETAHT
AT FeHfd THT Hepah! geqT 71T fAfaa Ewe |

FFIATR] W [ATIHTEATHT AUH AT THITH FHANEE GIqH] JTRH, T =T HITH
T TOMET LT GTebebl ATIR (accrual basis) AT ATHRT AT EATETHT @9 ATGUH G | G HY
ATIART T Jesh JledT AT Mg | Toish aradrd (9iaas IUaT ardde! afae RTasTar
TUTAT T AT quer AfedH BiEATHT BRERRE TRUST & | UG STcd aTqdehl THY AWIeE
TN PIUERT JUGTT HTTHT IRGAT TR |
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9. HTEUG STHTHT AGEAT Hifd qAT UG Wel AQTehe ATl
F FETTHT FFATAT FeAT=T JqA ST &9 Hed FH TUHT FRUS g TTHT &A1 a1 FHF BT
LT FET G TUHN BTHIATS &7 ATIAH] ATHRATHIR] STHT ATRT-ATHRAT FEdTeHT Sh@rs Mg |
ITRTETE ATHTHT, @I A TIT FheT& b qIT faid FEATEwHT AUEHT HIsaraelrg qATTerere
AT IR ATHT AR [E@Te I=aid G=AT @rsH A AMd FEH AIA0E B | Ih TaedT
TRTRT YT JTed JUHT YT TUHT ATTSh TUAT ATREHT A@ISH T 3 |

frdra arsTeeT G AR THHT, FA AIH] ARTANRT AT aoRare g T9 qice
THH FHH g IMGUHAT ST AT ATRITAIR] ATET T g, | [aards aoedr qinaeadl HRIAR
@WW, Wﬁﬂ%m(recoverable amount)aﬁmﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁm
HATARHAT TR, | &7 AT ATHTAIR] el fhdrell Aed I g g HeAW=T a6 AUH! a@d
feor Tfewg; |

[T STATHT SATITRAT (equity basis) AR =g | AL AR qUHT qFqA T Alp THH
TAATHTRT AT Aval Y TURT ATLTHT, &7 AT FaLdT T, |

9T. I Alfaew

AT WIREH SIST (Unexpired Risk Reserves):

AT fEATEer, 0% HIH QU (@)ATFT FFIAT T, ATHEF, HIeX, g, gars , & q4ar
fafag AT T @3 A1 T AFRTATR] LO0% IHH ATHT ST@H SHISTHT S@EUH B | I
] TRUET THAATE Ufgect] A1 SOUT AR TSR & | O ATHEE STHTHI AT T8
ST TRTHT TFEAATS 3 T TSI AMIF THAT AR TATSURT 3, |

AT BT

Frar afafaer fAgem awifes ycie fefamesr S amiT ggrgs ST #19 T 99 JTaem S |
ATRT ATFITHATE ATTH GE ATRIATE TR AIXUH F ATIAH] THH TaTs T SISl ATI YL 0% IThHdATs
e fRfaHeT STHT HTTHT qIET FHINH ATSHhIS TTRUH F |

AeETfaafa SISt Her

T grafaare AT LT THITTH SISHhIgHT AT ITsd THTH! 0% HEladrd ST HIoHT
AT TRTHT G | T AN SST HITHT AL TRUHT THHATs qHH, ATeraresl, STl
HeTfadtaare gor=r g+ & BFATeHr ITANT T T |
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e =i srust fafes

ST~ Q%
fachiar faeruriir wraferm sar wrmft fomofee

q. wrTfaa gificage

9.9 TTAT & HThTT A dTehl Qormeit
FEITR] =hT AT ATRTAT g STl AT T |

Q.9 uﬁﬂﬂjﬁ' ufaagar (Underwriting Commitments)
FEIATT F qi fpfaaer geamafq gfqagar (Underwriting Commitments) ST TIRET B |

9.3 TG TREAHT dIEdale SIHEGIUR Gl UNET d¥ SHE gTicd TAIHIY AINeT gifdred | THTHT

9.8 HHIAE w0iq HegT dTechare fgSUT JATRUET
FFIATT FMHIE A TdqwaT qTeeh o 9 fepfasepr mevdy fauar S |

9.y 3 FRATaA qTIIcaRe
AT F.R0%Y /&Y, J0%Y /%%, R0%% /%9 0%9/%5 &I FMfad #¥ HARUETE 7.3 %1 fHeizor T
9 F TIT ARATT %.9,53,0% L9313 F1 [a9g ATF I59d [aRTHT ToREcdre el AT Haad
feguerar a1 frees faarmar fa=mfas Teedrer o #nd HaRT w99 &7 g1 Afeamr qutad
TOCHET FTIHT WEH B |

Q. TR I ST gTEt IO GTE WeATEH TGT STaqE ANTHT STHREE
[T quEES AqTT T AH GHATA T TH] qTAT HeATSHAS! ATIRHT ATATAT FTal (a0
TRTHT G | SAT (HATHEAT, 0¥, &l FaRT AT Flod TRUHT FTelehl ATHTAT QAEHT FFIAIH]
HITHT 4% T B ATSH ITHH AT aT9d FAAT TRTH |

3. wFucimT Sifvaar qur faagee
FEIATRT FEIAT F qfT AT To7 famaes et S |

8. Ui wfcagar
FFIAD] AHEATR [THTIRT AN Hebrared oA~ I1Ia &M ISTRTd gfqegdr Wl @ | 41
ATEH AT H [BITHPT ToARTT FfqaTgar Tl ST |

Y. TR SRl @ig ot TRemETeT A
givg MRS GFIH! S@THeT I THTRT | & |
ferT TfeTept TRt SR 9Tt & AR ¢ G

§. T9 GO ARTST et quT fesht ¥ ftRat fager et faavor

FETE TRUHT AMHIEEET faa=o

faaRur IE .
AT AIBRT AT -
TS SehehT O 9%§,389,000
afoTsy SRt WeddT fHarT ¥%Y,390,000
fererar Srepept HeEelr fAerg 2,000,000
forcirar gearer Hgar g 5,000,000
afecteh FFIAIRT AT 3 5¥9 YT
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0.

O HYHAT fiRAT HUHT TorTer

foraruT T T
AT AT HOTTH 95,¥94,000
TS Seheh OIS 9Y,000,000
anforsar ST Heedr fAer ¥Y%,000,000
fereprar SepepT Wl fHaT ¥%,000,000
farefrar Fearept gl faar 3,000,000
Tfecter HFIIRT AT 9R,95¥ .43
¥ e frew

ey &, fara S qor fadrar geaesar e T Aieard FTEr fegqrag T e afemder
T qHvad GEATEEATE HiseTd I I IIe S&behl g |

TwdtHE feae

TR HEHET faq ¥ o afel feqra awaegHr Aifdes 9 0% /99 AT AT FIE /AT 97
T 5 ATALTF FHATAT TREAbb! G |

RUICIRE ) EC AR EUIREI
TP STERT aes I9 FEHI TPl A Jaidd Srar U, qaarasr aar Srar arafaer Haee
FHITTH TEH B |

AT WD

TUT TTHR qAT T A oo v, fgawaa

I uferr
9.9 gfqera

dithaa
SR

FAUS RO &
FHRIHAT 30%

AT RPR TAT ATl AT Sebebl qUE TEPa®T AT ST THHATS SATHT ATHITT (HEQTT it
ST Srehehl HEeT (HEraH T o mT IRuer 3 |

grafeua wafer S HRER
T AfATagRT ST AT qemed qEeredr (ARt aHitad aifde av 098 /90 AT ETIE qAqT
TRATTRER] TATIIT qEieerd Bl I 7T FATer@ ST TR S |

aTadh AHTAHT TGEIEEATs WGTel A(RYHT FauT

ETeTF ATATAR] AEAETATS 1.9, 0% /99 HT TN TRUSH! THH T @bl (qav0
faaRuT IHH .

TeTAF AATTHT 5% ST 9,%¥5,000

ATk ARl Tk @ ¥35,35%

9T ATATTeRT d5F ST 9,694,000

q=T TR TSk @ 40,3%Y

AT TT R09% /99 | FFAIH] JHE FAFN ATdgaars Thial TUH qad AR [qa0
[RESECIEERCCIICE

faa=or I T
qeel qIT AT (AE AT eh) 93,045,940
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qq.

€°Q.

a3.

8.

Q.

1%.

Q.

.

TG FEAFR AGET qATed AT Tarddes dls TRl TR qoad q91 iaar
faa=or IEHA T

e qIT AT 33,200,%¥31

A Ieitad dTedh THE PRAFRT AdEHd qT Tarddesdls HFIAIH (HAATETE TR Far Fiadr,
oA 9T 99 giadr [GguH g |

AR ATTAT TFUCHbT YREUWT Hof Ul HuTaT fudy, o aerm afvfarer

FFIATA ATAISAHT AT AT SFheeeh Hedl AFaee qdT FFIAH] TR q97 qa7 ferdr ata
HAFINAT T FfaeT [ATHN B | ITh AABIAT HT AT [ALRT F.30,93% 393 AT Gocls ATETIH
G A= AL TRTH G |

dAEA HT IR YATUTUA UIe IRGT SIT.4. qAT el TehT WATUT U g afat ammd. ¥ &1 St
faawureT T StfrcET ST A EFET HY AT RATH AU Tl URST ¥ AW STT.a.AT HThT! HUST IS
FFIATER] AT.T.R09% /09 FI FT FHT THIT T T TeTbH B |

fimat IRt famIewer afkwoT T FROT
T AT T AT FFAS & 423,554,409 4T ek [HF FRUEES Tl fFar T 3 |

. [afAde! AREGH dHIE THH TSR

FERT ATATEE ST gH TTH

FFYEY JUTAFRT BRI SHE S g el
ST ¥ & TOH -

FHATAGHT Fed TUH AMGH gargueh!

o a9 4 4

IS g afeh! et faavor
qIAET g Al @ THUH |

WWWWWW (Paid in advance), WWEW (Calls in arrears) ¥ S{thd
TRTHT X U foshoe gt SERet faawor

FEIATHT =Gl AT b FTATROT GATHT (07T FHITH ST TN TFIE AT AT 5.9%%,59% 100
AT ATHTAT ITT AUH B | |1 ATe ATAATTHT BFIS SARATIT ATH AThTAT S d @S G |
ATHTATI YT &9 ATl (Calls in arrears) ¥ SThd IRUHT d% G [ASRTTH ANTRT AT © THTH |

st gieg Fuelt T WIeT SUSEs (Amortization) TFIeT feraRuT
FEIHIHT (oot Blee T @ B |

THATT AM(ERBT PRARDT {qaoT
FEAT T qRAT ATRATT ezt B qi fplawedr FRER T S |

ST SEEEET Wi GeEEE!T faavuT
FFIATERT Ao TUT FFATIT F @ & 5393 W F |
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W®. FABY T WA BT
ATRT AT [EQTaaT TETSUH! Y @Al (9930 MHaaaTs Wwal &

forazor TH T
A ATHT ATTHT G q99,399,3%%
qTF. 309 /R FI Al FR A@raRkerorare fAgrer audr a9 #w g= ¥,259,03%
ST SR el 9T, 3L, 36k

099 FFR 39 I AL =TT F9T TR BT FHA /ST cAb! (a0 FHEATER & |

T FHY R X qiidea faasor & g | aq anfie aster | siferw disera
IS qqT T4t A aaean 9§,2¥3,34% 990%¥,¥9|  95,0¥9500
A & Y %%R,50% (9,93%,33%) %48, ¥%R
FIA HOTART HrTTH 35, 99% ’35,99Y
feay Feoeir araq (0¥,5%0) (R%,9R.9) CAT)
SFT 38,T30,0C9 (930,2CT) 28,51 93

TP HY AMAADT SIST (Deferred Tax Reserve)
TT AHFFH TIF FHT SST Y (Deferred Tax Reserve) AT %.3¥ 530,059 TahAT I&(d auHAT &
130,555 FF HE FA T.1%¥ §3% 9%3 A% FATFAT 9% H I@ETH T |

0. =& HIwig (Cheques in Hand)
AT 4% AT <A HISATT aT9d & R3IR4R3,;5UE AT 3098 AT © TFTHT HFIAH! b @IarHT
ST TEddE G |

9. fafar smamY
fafaer ey wel S RUA d=AId AT AURT STHT oG AvAIAPT ATATHT JAT AT 9T BT
AT AT ATIAH! [ATA ThH FHAL G |

rdr fafay aramer eaera faurd o . |7 AT SqaeT B TREERRT AT TR 5.2,994,5%5
qaET T |

N. TAY HTEAT
=T ATA.FT FR ATHH & ATHIH (0 FAq THA FHART A9 A9 FaGT TR G |

3. FHHART JTATHH! ST
FHHETE ATATHDT ATNT SqGEdT TRTHT T

8. T

B9 R TSh
FEIATET =Gl IR AT A0 TRTHINTH STy TR 30 giqerd goye Saarad g o4
AR THH &, 4%%,59% Y00 A% ghYE SAX ATId ANH ThTAl T=id ATAATTHT I@TSUH B, |
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8.0 T @

e feHTEer 0% 1 fFEH QU 1 SHiE AiaT dHr Sraad T AHEd TRt Sie T
RN TATHFH G& ATRIE] YO FIq9Td TehH ATHT HITHT STFAT T FALT HUHHT T HFIATR
T TS %.9,049,390,500 FRTER ATHT FIT FIAH TSHETE! 28T 1.9, J09% /00 AT ST FIowT
THEH ST TRTHT T |

8.3 AU YA AT WG A

AT . R09L199 FFAET faaRuda ATRTATE RG] HelHTae&drs 090 AN HAT TF HTIH
TEH] FTHT Gl A 35 JIAede & ¥09,995 035 (3 HAMAH FE T A ASAR FAR ASS3H
[TH) ATATT 98 FHINTHST 9 GIR T TG ATAE (BT FATATRT AT FTAT TRURT G |

A AT 359 AT g9 ATST T 359,559,939
TR ATAE . FqeTaed g7 ATST ¥.20,055,%,09

3099 HTYTE HATT T ST TRUH GhYE AR Aladehl ST GSIAT AT ST FIqerd 29, %%,
gfdeTd q9T FE ATAIEH qrqerd 9. ¥&R a8 |

8.8 IBABT UAIThUT TUT YAGHEIDBRUT
Tq qUFN IHAEEATS ATAYAFAT ATAR JAAE T TAGHLTR0 TRTHT T T T A58
fAepaaw ®UaTHT TEEUH B |
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ot LO'% 0% b ar’e 021 BlsRIK blollp lokolk | 32
R ba'b 2%b PN ERb by'b BlsbIk Lk bpRIble 102 hblk be / 1k lebblkle lbeh lble | R
& Rb 2t Rb 237%h abor AR'RE b b BlsbIK L2k leBblile 1e2 hkle he Bl / L@k lbBblkll ek Inpdlbb kb bk | 22
202 WRb 2bo’ber bRRRBE 8 ‘tok 13T R P PITRVEY ITETECYS Lk 1bpRlble 1b2e bkl kb |k
RRRY a%e bR'a% PR PR %be BlsbIk L2k lolpl 1ok plak he bk / 13k lelpls lble b2 [bldk |3
3937 %R SR 2% 0% 60 %t Yo 22708 BIsbIA heer gl ehie [plwk / b Jblb Iglb b3 lblwk | by
ARR R YRR Rt ba3 2R BRE‘ER biz‘o0¥, RREOER 2k Llebe / kR Rlebd | ok
A3 R%R 32 RR bo'o} RR'2R EERX 3bey Blsblh BB bhikeble / kB Rlabd [Sh
ot K& KR a2 tob tob L2k Lk bbbkl [ 2h
et K2e LEN OR% oty ®b3 L2k Ik Rlehe |ab
R A3 A3 0 ) beb L2k L2k [bdhlle 1kl |3b
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Graphs of Key Indicators
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Who are our Reinsurers?
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Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd.
Head Office

Shikhar Biz Centre, Thapathali
P.O. Box: 10692, Kathmandu, Nepal
Tel: 4246101, 4246102, Fax: 977-1-4246103
E-mail: shikharins@mos.com.np

Our Branch Offices

www.shikharinsurance.com

Anbukhaireni Bhojpur Dhading
Anbukhaireni, Tanahu - 3 Bhojpur -7, Bich Bazar Nilakanth -3, Dhading besi, Shanta bazar
9816688271 029-420185 01-0521300
anbukhaireni@shikharinsurance.com bhojpur@shikharinsurance.com dhading@shikharinsurance.com
Arghakhanchi Bijuwar Dhangadhi
Sandhikharka-1, Arghakhachi Bijuwar- 4, Pyuthan ggfj‘q?;'ggad Chauraha
077-420560 086-460121 dhangadi@shikharinsurance.com
arghakhanchi@shikharinsurance.com bijuwar@shikharinsurance.com 9 ’

. Dharan
Baglung Biratnagar Laxmi Sadak, Dharan-1
Dhawalagiri Chowk-2, Baglung Chandra complex, Mahendra chowk 025-521430
068-521896 021-578391/021-511128 dharan@shikharinsurance.com
baglung@shikharinsurance.com birt@shikharinsurance.com Dolpa
Bajhang Birgunj Dunai Bazar, Guthi chaur, Dolpa
Jay Prithivi -10, Chainpur, Bajhang Adarshanagar, Birgunj 9864873003
9801912427 051-528181/051-528088 dolpa@shikharinsurance.com
bajhang@shikharinsurance.com birg@shikharinsurance.com Doti
Banepa Birtamod Pipla Bazar, Dipayal, Doti
Banepa-5, Tindobatok, Kavre Aduwapul, Birtamod, Jhapa 9801235129
011-663855 023-545666 dotl@shlkharlnsurance.com
banepa@shikharinsurance.com birtamod@shikharinsurance.com Dulegauda

Khairenitar, Tanahu
ganesr:\wor 31/0ld Banesh: ag;twalh k, Butwal 065-412158
aneshwor - aneshwor, ilan chowk, Butwa Hehari

01-4464193/01-4464184 071-542568 g‘ﬂ:’rae”da@smkha””s”rance‘mm
baneshwor@shikharinsurance.com butwal@shikharinsurance.com Bandipur - 1, Chisapani, Tanahu, Dunre
Bardaghat Chabahil 065-580380
Bardaghat - 4, Nawalparasi Chabahil, chuchchepati dumre@shikharinsurance.com
078-590968 01-4481707 / 4481932 Gaighat
bardaghat@shikharinsurance.com chabahil@shikharinsurance.com Gaighat -11, Udayapur
Bardibas Chandrauta 035-420270
Bardibas - 1, Mahottari Shivraj, Kapilvastu gaighat@shikharinsurance.com
044-550697 076-540568 Global Bancassurance

bardibas@shikharinsurance.com

chandrauta@shikharinsurance.com

Global Bank ,Kantipath
9801249738/9849555980

Belauri Chapagaon A IR

Belauri -4, Kanchanpur Godabari -11, Chapagaon, Lalitpur pratima@shikharinsurance.com

9801235141 01-5265088 Gongabu

belauri@shikharinsurance.com chapagaon@shikharinsurance.com Buddha Mall, Machhapokhari, Gongabu
. . 01-4350722 / 4350793

Beni , Charikot gongabu@shikharinsurance.com

Beni - 7, Newroad, Myagdi Charikot, Dolakha .

069-521335 049-421414 Gulariya .

beni@shikharinsurance.com charikot@shikharinsurance.com OGE;J‘I‘ig%géHulak Chowk, Bardiya

Bhainsepati Dadeldhura gulariya@shikharinsurance.com

Sainbu, Bhaisepati - 4, Lalitpur Amargadi-5, Dadeldhura Gulmi

01'5,9006:,33 o 096-410315 o Resunga -1, Putali Bazar, Gulmi

bhaisepati@shikharinsurance.com dadeldhura@shikharinsurance.com 079-520991

Bhairahawa Dailekh gulmi@shikharinsurance.com

Naya Sadak-7, Bhairahawa Devkota Chowk, Narayan Municipality-1, Dailekh Gwarko

071-520141 089-410227 Gwarko - 7, Lalitpur

bhw@shikharinsurance.com dailekh@shikharinsurance.com 01-5200783

Bhaktapur Damak gwarko@shikharinsurance.com

Barahi sthan Suryabinayak, Bhaktapur Damak-10, Main Road Hetauda

01-6617471/01-6610720 023-584634 gggggg?gé/gg;agggm

bhaktapur@shikharinsurance.com damak@shikharinsurance.com hetauda@shikharinsurance.com

Narayangarh (Bharatpur) Dang Hile

Balmandir chowk, Bharatpur Shahid Umesh marga 11, Ghorahi, Dang Dhankuta-1. Hile

056-531636/531637 082-563549 026-540715

narayangarh@shikharinsurance.com

®Shikhar
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Humla

Simikot - 5, Humla
087-680226
humla@shikharinsurance.com

lllam

lllam-7, Bhanu path
027-521837
ilam@shikharinsurance.com

Itahari

Main road, Itahari
025-585273
itahari@shikharinsurance.com

Janakpur

Shiv Chowk, Station Road, Janakpur
041-590134
janakpur@shikharinsurance.com

Jeetpur

Jeetpur-4, Kapilvastu
076-550317
jitpur@shikharinsurance.com

Jumla

Chandannath - 6, Jumla
087-520625
jumla@shikharinsurance.com

Kalikot

Khadachakra -1, Kalikot
087-440033
kalikot@shikharinsurance.co

Kawasoti

Kawasoti - 8, Savapati chowk
078-541141/078-541142
kawasoti@shikharinsurance.com

Khandbari

Khandabari-1, Pokhari bazar
029-560076
khandbari@shikharinsurance.com

Kirtipur

Kirtipur, Bahiri Gaun-9, Nayabazar
01-4334385
kirtipur@shikharinsurance.com

Kohalpur

Newroad Ganesh Chowk - 4, Kohalpur
081-540272
kohalpur@shikharinsurance.com

Kalimati

Kalimati-13, Kathmandu
01-5389458
kalimati@shikharinsurance.com

Kumaripati

kumaripati, Lalitpur
01-5552805/5539804
kumaripati@shikharinsurance.com

Kushma

Kushma-6, Dhaneshwor Chowk, Parbat
067-420497
kushma@shikharinsurance.com

Lahan

Lahan-8, Purbabus Stand, Mainroad, Siraha
033-560933

lahan@shikharinsurance.com

Lalbandi

Sarlahi, Lalbandi -7
046-501344
lalbandi@shikharinsurance.com
Lamahi

Bank Road, Lamahi-5
082-540878
lamahi@shikharinsurance.com
Lamki

Lamki chuha-1, Lamki, Kailali
9801184857

lamki@shikharinsurance.com

Lekhnath

Talchowk- 27, Lekhnath, Pokhara
061-561832
lekhnath@shikharinsurance.com

Madi

Basantapur-3 Madi, Chitwan
056-501056
madi@shikharinsurance.com

Maharajgunj

Chakrapath, Maharajgunj
01-4370190/01-4370089
maharajgunj@shikharinsurance.com

Mahendranagar

Vimdatta-18, Campus road, Mahendranagar
099-524464
mahendranagar@shikharinsurance.com

Manthali

Manthali-1, Ramechhap
048-540612
manthali@shikharinsurance.com

Mirchaiya

Mirchaiya- 6, Siraha

033-550343
mirchaiya@shikharinsurance.com

Mugu

Chhayanath Rara -1, Gamgadhi, Mugu
087-460236
mugu@shikharinsurance.com

Murgiya

Murgiya, Sainamaina - 3, Rupandehi
071-440389
murgiya@shikharinsurance.com

Mustang

Gharapjhong - 3 Airport, Jomsom
069-440442
mustang@shikharinsurnce.com

Naubise

Dhunibesi - 6, Dharke, Naubise
010-414142
naubise@shikharinsurance.com

Naxal

Lalupate Marg, Hattisar
01-4446138/4446139
naxal@shikharinsurance.com

Nepalgunj

Dhamboji-2, Surkhet road
081-527464/081- 527465
nepg@shikharinsurance.com

New Baneshwor

Standard Chattered Bank, New Baneshwor
9801246509
newbaneshwor@shikharinsurance.com

Newroad

Shiva Arcade, Newroad
01-4239960/4215799
newroad@shikharnsurnce.com

Nuwakot

Bidur - 4, Batar Nuwakot
010-561829
nuwakot@shikharinsurance.com

Palpa

Tansen - 4, Silkhantole, Palpa
075-521517
palpa@shikharinsurance.com
Phidim

Main Road, Phidim-1, Phidim
024-520832
phidim@shikharinsurance.com

Pokhara

next to Everest Bank, Newroad, Pokhara
061-523100/061-520333
pokhara@shikharinsurance.com

Rajbiraj

Rajbiraj-7, Saptari
031-520065
rajbiraj@shikharinsurance.com

Rasuwa

Dhunche-8, Rasuwa
9867077909
rasuwa@shikharinsurance.com

Garuda

Garuda - 4, Rautahat
055-565249
rautahat@shikharinsurance.com

Simara

Simara - 1, Main Road
053-521550
simara@shikharinsurance.com

Sunawal

Nawalparasi road, Sunawal
078-570471
sunawal@shikharinsurance.com

Sundar Bazar

Sundar Bazar, Lamjung
066-402162
lamjung@shikharinsurance.com

Surkhet

Birendranagar-6, Hulak chowk, Surkhet
083-523410
surkhet@shikharinsurance.com

Tandi

Ratnanagarpalika-1, Bakulahar chowk, Tandi
056-561114

tandi@shikharinsurance.com

Taplejung

Phungling -5, Birendra chowk, Taplejung
024-460883
taplejung@shikharinsurance.com

Terhathum

Terhathum myaglung -2, BN Bhawan
026-460350
tehrathum@shikharinsurance.com

Thamel

Thamel- 27, Tridevi Marg, Kathmandu
9841634669
udayashahi@shikharinsurance.com

Thapathali

Thapathali, Kathmandu
01-4101643/4252678
thapathali@shikharinsurance.com
Thimi

Thimi, Gaththaghar, Bhaktapur
01-6635765
thimi@shikharinsurance.com

Tulsipur

Tulsipur- 5, BP Chowk, Dang
082-523515
tulsipur@shikharinsurance.com

Waling

Waling - 3, Syangja
063-440701
waling@shikharinsurance.com

Sipradi, Thapathali

Thapathali, Kathmandu
01-4101643
kalpana@shikharinsurance.com

IME Motor

IME Unit Panipokhari
01-4101643/4252678
diwash@shikharinsurance.com

Karkarvitta Biratchowk
Duhabi Inaruwa
Khotang Okhaldhunga
Lukla Chautara
Mulpani Achham
Dumkib Satungal

Shihgal[ance
Happysurance |Q€e3



QShikhar
nsurance

Happysurance |Q€!€!



.al - K NN
(=N o\ i
AT GG TALOTAg PFYCY SYDPRY G

"




:
5
m
m
m

H&

i
|

i

Y

Ll

i
l

l;

/.. \S
Y )




Management Team









